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To be a world class and leading 
company continuously providing 
quality glass tableware, containers 
and float by utilizing best blend 
of state of the art technologies, 
highly professional staff, excellent 
business processes and synergistic 
organizational culture.

To be a premier glass manufacturing 
organization of International 
standards and repute, offering 
innovative value-added products, 
tailored respectively to the customer’s 
needs and satisfaction. Optimizing 
the shareholder’s value through 
meeting their expectations, making 
Tariq Glass Industries Limited an 
“Investor Preferred Institution” is 
one of our prime policies. We are a 
“glassware supermarket” by catering 
all household and industrial needs of 
the customers under one roof.

OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

VISION AND MISSION
STATEMENTS
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NOTICE is hereby given that 46th Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) of Tariq Glass Industries 
Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Monday, the October 28, 2024, at 11:00 AM at the registered 
office of the Company situated at 128-J, Model Town, Lahore and through video link to transact the 
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.	 To confirm the minutes of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the members held on February 
15, 2024.

2.	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2024 together with the Chairman’s Review Report, Directors’ Report and 
Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3.	 To appoint Auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration. The shareholders are hereby 
notified that the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the name 
of retiring Auditors M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants for re-
appointment as auditors of the Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.	 To consider, and if deemed fit to approve the renewal of investment of upto PKR 1,000,000,000 
in the form of short-term loan / advance / running finance in M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, 
an associated company and pass the following resolution as special resolution, with or without 
modification, addition(s) and deletion(s) as proposed in the statement of material facts annexed 
to this notice circulated to the entitled persons. 

	 “Resolved that approval of the members of Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the “Company”) 
be and is hereby accorded in terms of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the 
Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 
2017, and the Company be and is hereby authorized to renew the investment of up to PKR 
1,000,000,000 (Rupees One Billion Only) in Baluchistan Glass Limited, an associated company, 
in the form of Short-Term Loan / Advance / Running Finance as and when needed by 
Baluchistan Glass Limited for a further period of one (1) year from the date of approval on 
rollover / renewable basis, provided that the return on any outstanding amount of loan shall be 
Average Borrowing Cost of TGL + 1% OR 3MK + 1.50%, whichever is higher and as per other 
terms and conditions disclosed to the members.

	 Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company be 
and are hereby singly empowered and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment. 

	 Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company 
and / or Company Secretary be and are hereby singly empowered and authorized to do all 
acts, matters, deeds and things, take any or all necessary actions and to complete all legal 
formalities including execution of all documents and agreements as may be necessary or 
incidental expedient for the purpose of implementing the aforesaid resolutions.”

Attached to this Notice circulated to the entitled persons, is a statement of material facts under 
Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2017 along with proposed special resolution pertaining to the 
special business to be transacted at the AGM and the statement as required by Regulation 4 (2) of the 
Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017.

	 By Order of the Board

Lahore	 (MOHSIN ALI)
Date: September 20, 2024	 COMPANY SECRETARY

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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NOTES:
	
1.	 Declaration of Interest & Due Diligence: Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL) owns 50% 

equity stake in MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM) which is a holding company of 
Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) with 84.34% shareholding. The Directors and their relatives 
of TGL have no interest other than disclosed in MMM and BGL / investments in MMM and 
BGL except that Mr. Mohammad Baig (director of TGL) and Mr. Mustafa Baig (executive of 
TGL) are nominee directors on the Boards of MMM and BGL. MMM and BGL are not the 
shareholders of TGL, however, their directors namely Mr. Mohammad Baig and Mr. Mustafa 
Baig are also the major shareholders of TGL, holding 11.49% and 11.54% shareholding 
respectively in TGL. Further, the Directors of TGL certify that they have carried out necessary 
due diligence for the proposed investments before recommending it for members’ approval.

2.	 Weblink & QR Enabled Code: In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 
and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the annual report including the 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 can be viewed using 
the following link and QR enabled code:

	 Weblink: https://www.tariqglass.com/uploads/financials/Annual_Report_2024.pdf
	 QR Enabled Code:

	

	 The annual report for the year ended June 30, 2024 is also available on website of the Company 
i.e., www.tariqglass.com.

3.	 Book Closure: he Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from October 22, 2024 to October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive) and no transfer of 
shares will be accepted for registration during this period. Physical transfers received in 
order at the office of our Share Registrar M/s Shemas International (Pvt) Limited, 533-Main 
Boulevard, Imperial Garden Block, Paragon City, Barki Road, Lahore (Phone: +92-42-37191262) 
at the close of business hours the October 21, 2024 will be treated in time for the purpose of 
transfer of shares and voting rights.

4.	 All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. A member entitled to attend and 
vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint another member of the Company as his / her 
proxy to attend, speak and vote for him / her. A proxy must be a member of the Company. A 
member shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend anyone meeting. The 
instrument of proxy duly executed should be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company 
not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. The form of proxy must be witnessed 
with the addresses and CNIC numbers of witnesses, certified copies of CNIC of member and 
the proxy member must be attached and the revenue stamp should be affixed and defaced 
on the form of proxy. Proxy Form in English and Urdu languages is attached with the notice 
circulated to the members. In case of proxy appointed by the corporate entity, the Board of 
Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the proxy shall be required 
along with the form of proxy.

5.	 The members are advised to bring their ORIGINAL Computerized National Identity Card 
(CNIC) and those members who have deposited their shares in Central Depository System 
should also be cognizant of their CDC Participant ID and Account Number at the meeting 
venue. A corporate entity being a member can directly participate in the meeting through its 
authorized representative. In this regard, certified copy of the Board of Directors’ resolution / 
power of attorney with specimen signature of the authorized representative shall be produced 
at the time of the meeting.
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6.	 The Company has arranged for participation of members in annual general meeting through 
video-link. In this regard, the shareholders interested to attend the meeting through video link 
may send the relevant information (i.e, Name of the Shareholder, CNIC Number, Folio / CDC 
Account Number, Cell Number,  Email Address etc.) to the Company Secretary by October 
26, 2024 at Email Address: corporateaction@tariqglass.com. Video link and login credentials 
will be shared with the members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are 
received by the above deadline.

7.	 In compliance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to the S.R.O. 
389(I)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the Company has electronically transmitted the Annual 
Report 2024 (including the financial statements) containing the weblink and QR enabled code 
through email to the Members whose email addresses are available with the Company’s Share 
Registrar. However, in cases, where email addresses are not available, the printed copies of the 
notice of AGM along-with the QR enabled code / weblink to download the Annual Report 2024 
(containing the financial statements) have been dispatched. Notwithstanding the above, the 
Company will provide hard copies of the Annual Report 2024, to any Member on their request, 
at their registered address, free of cost, within one (1) week of receiving such request. Further, 
Members are requested to kindly provide their valid email address (along with a copy of valid 
CNIC) to the Company’s Share Registrar if the Member holds shares in physical form or to the 
Member’s respective Participant / Investor Account Services, if shares are held in book entry 
form.

8.	 In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, (the “Regulations”) the 
right to vote through electronic voting facility and voting by post shall be provided to members 
of every listed company for, inter alia, all businesses classified as special business under the 
Companies Act, 2017 in the manner and subject to conditions contained in the Regulations.

a.	 Procedure for E-Voting:

I.	 Detail of E-Voting facility will be shared through e-mail with those members of the 
company who have valid cell numbers / e-mail addresses (Registered e-mail ID) available 
in the Register of Members of the Company by the end of business on October 21, 2024. 
Members who intend to exercise their right of vote through E-Voting shall provide their 
valid cell numbers and email addresses on or before at 05:00 PM on October 21, 2024.

II.	 Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through E-Voting shall be authenticated 
through electronic signature or authentication for login. 

III.	 Members shall cast vote for agenda item No. 4 online from October 25, 2024 at 09:00 AM 
till October 27, 2024 at 5:00 PM. Voting shall close on October 27, 2024 at 5:00 PM. A vote 
once cast by a Member, shall not be allowed to be changed.

IV.	 The Company has appointed M/s CDC Share Registrar Services Limited as E-Voting 
Service Provider in terms of Regulation 5 of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 
2018.

V.	 The Board of Directors of the Company has designated M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury 
& Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Scrutinizer for the purpose of voting, bringing with 
them the relevant experience, in accordance with Regulation 11 of the Companies (Postal 
Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

b.	 Procedure for Voting Through Postal Ballot:

I.	 Members may alternatively opt for voting through postal ballot. For convenience of the 
members, Ballot Paper is annexed to this notice and the same is also available on the 
Company’s website www.tariqglass.com to download.
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II.	 The members must ensure that the duly filled and signed ballot paper, along with a 
copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the 
meeting through post at the Company’s registered address, 128-J, Model Town, Lahore, or 
through email address at corporateaction@tariqglass.com one day before the AGM, i.e., on 
October 27, 2024 before 5:00 PM. A postal ballot received after this time / date shall not be 
considered for voting. The signature on the Ballot Paper shall match with signature on the 
CNIC / Company’s record.

9.	 As per section 72 of Companies Act 2017, every listed company shall be required to replace its 
physical certificates with book entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date 
notified by the commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement 
of this Act. In compliance with the SECP’s directive, the Company has already dispatched 
the follow-up letter to all physical shareholders on April 20, 2021. The shareholders having 
physical shares are once again requested to open the CDC sub-account with any of the broker 
or investor account directly with the CDC to place their physical certificates into book entery 
form which has several benefits to the shareholders.

10.	 Shareholders who could not collect their dividend / physical shares are advised to contact the 
Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company to collect / enquire about their 
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

11.	 Pursuant to the directives of the SECP, the future dividends of Members whose valid CNIC or 
NTN (in case of corporate entities) are not available with the Share Registrar could be withheld. 
Members are therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC or NTN (if not already 
provided) to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s Shemas International (Pvt) Limited.

12.	 Members are requested to have their updated email and cell number incorporated in their 
physical folio with the Share Registrar of the Company and with their Participant or Broker / 
CDC Investor Account Services for shares held in electronic form. 

13.	 The members are requested to notify the Company / Share Registrar of any change in their 
address. For any query / information, the investors may contact the Share Registrar: Mr. Imran 
Saeed, Phone No. +92-42-37191262 and / or the Company: Mr. Mohsin Ali, Phone No.: 042-
111-343434, Email Address: corporateaction@tariqglass.com.

Statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017
This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be transacted at the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2024.

Agenda Item No. 4 – Grant of Short-Term Loan / Short Term Advance / Running Finance to Baluchistan 
Glass Limited 

Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the “Company” or “TGL”) is a holder of 50% shares of MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited (“MMM”), [a holding company of Baluchistan Glass Limited, a listed company (“BGL”) 
(MMM owns 84.34% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of BGL)]. TGL has also acquired 
joint management control of MMM and BGL on December 7, 2023.

Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) was incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited company in 1980 
under the repealed Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are listed on the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of tableware glass, 
pharma glass packaging, glass bottles, container-ware glass and plastic shells.
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Although BGL’s units were operational in the past, however its production units closed one after 
another and was completely closed since May-2022. The new board members and CEO as nominee 
of TGL has been appointed in BGL since December 7, 2023. By the Grace of Allah Almighty one 
of the BGL’s plant (Unit-1) situated at Hub, Baluchistan has been successfully revived by the new 
management, the furnace of which was fired on May 15, 2024 and subsequently commercialized 
on June 04, 2024. Moreover, after revitalization of BGL’s Unit-1, its production capacity has been 
increased from 60 tons per day to 110 tons per day. This move brings about several summarized 
financial benefits:

1.	 Manufacturing / Fuel Cost Advantage:

	 Fuel cost is a critical component in glass manufacturing (approximately 40% - 45% of the 
total cost of goods). BGL benefits from the availability of Sui Gas at comparatively lower rates 
in Baluchistan compared to the high-priced RLNG tariff in Punjab. The fuel cost advantage 
translates to a drop of 25% - 28% when comparing gas rates between TGL in Sheikhupura 
(Punjab) and BGL in Hub (Baluchistan).

2.	 New Segment for TGL – Pharma Glass Packaging & Glass Containers:

       •	 Under new management, BGL is manufacturing pharma glass packaging for the pharmaceutical 
industry, glass containers & bottles for the food & beverage industry and tableware glass for 
household.

       •	 Infrastructure and operational facilities (e.g., Gas connection, electricity, molds, machinery, 
refractory, compressors, generators, etc.) for this purpose are already available on-site. 

3.	 Freight Cost Advantages:

       •	 Due to the location of the Hub (Baluchistan) Plant, significant freight costs would be saved for 
the Southern Region.

       •	 Export costs would be reduced due to easier transportation to Karachi Ports.
       •	 Less travel also results in less breakage of glass, considering its fragile nature.

To ensure the operational readiness and efficiency of BGL’s Unit-1, as well as the overall stabilization 
and future growth of the Company, the Board of Directors has recommended that the members 
approve the renewal of a short-term advance facility for an additional 12 months. No disbursement 
has been made under this facility to date. Therefore, to support BGL’s working capital needs, TGL 
will renew the limit to provide a short-term loan / advance or running finance facility of up to PKR 
1,000,000,000 on a rollover / renewable basis annually. This loan will bear mark-up at TGL’s average 
borrowing cost + 1% or 3MK + 1.50%, whichever is higher.

Note: 
1.	 Average borrowing cost of TGL will be derived as under:

	 Average of “KIBOR for the relevant period” + “the Bank Spread”. Where the existing KIBOR 
for various facilities of TGL is on 1 Month, 3 Month and 6 Month basis and the bank spread 
is ranging from 0.05% to 0.50%. The Company’s average borrowing cost as on June 30, 2024 
from banks / financial institutions for short-term and long-term loans / financing stands at 
21.57% and 6.14%, respectively.

Declaration:

In pursuance of Regulation 3(3) of the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or 
Associated Undertakings) Regulations 2017 under S.R.O No. 1240(1)/2017 dated 06 December 
2017, the directors have certified that they have carried out their necessary due diligence for the 
proposed investments before recommending it to members for approval and that the financial health 
of Baluchistan Glass Limited is such that it has the ability to repay the aforesaid facility as well as 
the markup to be paid to the Company as per agreement. The signed recommendations of the due 
diligence report shall be made available to the members at the general meeting along with latest 
annual audited and latest interim financial statements.
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Special Resolution:

Agenda Item No. 4 – Grant of Short-Term Loan / Advance / Running Finance to Baluchistan Glass 
Limited 

The following resolution is proposed to be passed as a special resolution:

“Resolved that approval of the members of Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the “Company”) be and 
is hereby accorded in terms of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the Companies 
(Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, and the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to renew the investment of up to PKR 1,000,000,000 (Rupees 
One Billion Only) in Baluchistan Glass Limited, an associated company, in the form of Short-Term 
Loan / Advance / Running Finance as and when needed by Baluchistan Glass Limited for a further 
period of one (1) year from the date of approval on rollover / renewable basis, provided that the return 
on any outstanding amount of loan shall be Average Borrowing Cost of TGL + 1% OR 3MK + 1.50%, 
whichever is higher and as per other terms and conditions disclosed to the members.

Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company be and are 
hereby singly empowered and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment. 

Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company and / 
or Company Secretary be and are hereby singly empowered and authorized to do all acts, matters, 
deeds and things, take any or all necessary actions and to complete all legal formalities including 
execution of all documents and agreements as may be necessary or incidental expedient for the 
purpose of implementing the aforesaid resolutions.”

Inspection:

All the documents relating to special business can be inspected by the shareholders from the date 
of issue of this notice till the day before the AGM at the registered office of the Company during usual 
business hours from Monday to Friday (9AM-5PM). 

In pursuance of Regulation 3(1) of the Companies (Investment in Associated 
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations 2017 under S.R.O No. 
1240(1)/2017 dated December 6, 2017, the information required to be disclosed to 
the members is as follows:

Ref. No. Requirement Information
(a) Disclosure for all types of investments:

(A)   Disclosure regarding associated company
(i) Name of associated company 

or associated undertaking 
 M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited (“BGL”)

(ii) Basis of relationship Associated company by virtue of common directorship
(iii) Earnings per share (EPS) for the 

last three years 
Year EPS of BGL

2024 -1.94

2023 -0.52

2022 -1.03
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Ref. No. Requirement Information
M Break-up value (BV) per share, 

based on latest audited 
financial statements

Year BV of BGL
2024 6.74

2023 3.29

2022 4.25

(v) Financial position, including 
main items of statement of 
financial position and profit and 
loss account on the basis of its 
latest financial statements 

Description (Rupees in “000”)
2024 2023 2022 

Operating
Results:
Net Sales 161,345 186,006 1,346,050
Gross (loss) / 
profit

(286,682) (193,690) (170,579)

(Loss) / profit 
before Tax

(514,188) (142,143) (261,742)

(Loss) / profit after 
Tax

(507,722) (135,055) (269,442)

Dividend / bonus - - -
Financial 
Position:
Property, plant 
and equipment

3,557,658 2,357,172 2,488,135

Current Assets 868,675 178,560 433,540
Current Liabilities 2,474,640 1,614,913 1,802,394
Current portion 
of Long Term 
Liabilities

- - 7,746

Long Term Loans 100,000 - -
Director's loan - 
unsecured

- - 313,235

Subordinated 
Loan-Unsecured

5,003,967 3,830,740 3,635,082

Share Capital 2,616,000 2,616,000 2,616,000
Financial Ratios:
Gross (Loss) / 
ratio

-177.68% -104.13% -12.67%

(Loss) / Profit 
before tax ratio

-318.69% -76.42% -19.45%

(Loss) / Profit after 
tax ratio

-315.30% -72.61% -20.02%

(Loss) / Earnings 
Per Share

(1.94) (0.52) (1.03)

Current ratio 0.351 0.111 0.32
Working Capital (1,605,965) (1,436,353) (1,229,440)
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Ref. No. Requirement Information
(B) General Disclosures
(i) Maximum amount of 

investment to be made
Upto PKR 1,000,000,000

(ii) Purpose, benefits likely 
to accrue to the investing 
company and its members from 
such investment and period of 
investment

Purpose: to provide financial support to BGL 

Benefits: BGL being subsidiary of MMM with improved 
results will add to the value of the members of the 
Company. The profitability of the Company will increase 
on receipt of dividends.

Period of Investment:  one year.

(iii) Sources of funds to be utilized 
for investment and where the 
investment is intended to be 
made using borrowed funds

The Company will preferably utilize internally generated 
funds for providing the short-term loan / advance / 
running finance facility to BGL. However, in the event 
of liquidity constraints, debt financing can be arranged 
to support this investment. A combination of internally 
generated funds and external debt will be employed, 
as necessary, to ensure the successful provision of the 
proposed investment to BGL.

(I)        Justification for investment 
through borrowings

It is expected that investment will generate higher 
returns in the long term and favourable gearing ratios 
justify the investment through debt.

 (II)     Detail        of       collateral,
           guarantees provided  and  
            assets       pledged       for 

obtaining such funds

The Company’s current assets will be mortgaged, if 
necessary to raise the debt.

(III)      Cost benefit analysis The anticipated returns from this investment are 
expected to exceed the cost of debt. The short-term 
loan/advance or running finance facility will accrue a 
mark-up of TGL’s average borrowing cost + 1% or 3MK 
+ 1.50%, whichever is higher. This ensures that the 
spread is consistently added, keeping the return higher 
than the cost of funds.

(iv) Salient features of the 
agreement(s), if any, with 
associated company or 
associated undertaking with 
regards to the proposed 
investment

A formal agreement was previously executed between 
TGL and BGL after approval by the members of the 
Company. Now for renewal of this funded facility for 
further period of 12 months a special resolution is 
proposed which will be endorsed through execution 
of supplemental agreement after approval from the 
members.

(v) Direct or indirect interest of 
directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, 
if any, in the associated 
company or associated 
undertaking or the transaction 
under consideration 

TGL owns 50% equity stake in MMM which is a holding 
company of BGL. The Directors, and their relatives 
have no interest other than disclosed for investment in 
BGL except that Mr. Mohammad Baig (director of TGL) 
and Mr. Mustafa Baig (executive of TGL) are nominee 
directors on the Board of BGL and MMM. BGL is not a 
shareholder of TGL, however, its two directors namely 
Mr. Mohammad Baig and Mr. Mustafa Baig are also 
the major shareholders of TGL, holding 11.49% and 
11.54% shareholding respectively in TGL. 
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Ref. No. Requirement Information
(vi) In case any investment in 

associated company or 
associated undertaking 
has already been made, the 
performance review of such 
investment including complete 
information / justification for 
any impairment or write offs

The commercial operations of BGL’s Unit-1 
commenced successfully on June 4, 2024. Since then, 
no impairments or write-offs have occurred or been 
recorded in relation to this investment. Additionally, 
the market price of BGL’s shares has remained stable 
since TGL entered into the investment agreements, 
indicating positive market confidence and alignment 
with our initial investment strategy.

(vii) Any other important details 
necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction 

None

(c) In case investments in the form of loans, advances and guarantees

i. category-wise amount of 
investment 

Short-term loan / advance / running finance upto PKR 
1,000,000,000

ii. average borrowing cost of the 
investing company, the Karachi 
Inter Bank Offered Rate (KIBOR) 
for the relevant period, rate of 
return for Shariah compliant 
products and rate of return for 
unfunded facilities, as the case 
may be, for the relevant period 

Average borrowing cost of TGL will be derived as under:
Average of “KIBOR for the relevant period” + “the Bank 
Spread”. Where the existing relevant KIBOR for various 
facilities of TGL is on 1 Month, 3 Month and 6 Month 
basis and the bank spread is ranging from 0.05% to 
0.50%. The Company’s average borrowing cost as on 
June 30, 2024 from banks / financial institutions for 
short-term and long-term loans / financing stands at 
21.57% and 6.14%, respectively.

iii. rate of interest, mark up, profit, 
fees or commission etc. to be 
charged by investing company

Average Borrowing cost of TGL + 1% OR 3MK+1.50% 
whichever is higher.

iv. particulars of collateral or 
security to be obtained in 
relation to the proposed 
investment

NIL

v. if the investment carries 
conversion feature i.e. it is 
convertible into securities, 
this fact along with terms and 
conditions including conversion 
formula, circumstances in 
which the conversion may take 
place and the time when the 
conversion may be exercisable

NIL

vi. repayment schedule and 
terms and conditions of loans 
or advances to be given to 
the associated company or 
associated undertaking

The Short Term Loan / Advance / Running Finance, 
with a total tenor of 1 year (on a rollover / renewable 
basis), will be repaid by BGL within the stipulated 1-year 
period. In case of delay in repayment of mark-up, an 
additional sum equivalent to 25% per annum on the 
unpaid amount for the period for which the payment is 
delayed shall be paid by BGL to TGL in addition to the 
agreed markup amount.
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This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special resolution already passed for 
making investment in associated companies.

A.   M/s Lucky TG (Private) Limited

The Company in its Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 21, 2022 obtained approval for 
an equity investment of up to PKR 4,414,900,000 (Pak Rupees Four Billion Four Hundred Fourteen 
Million Nine Hundred Thousand only) by way of subscription of up to 441,490,000 Ordinary Shares 
in a joint venture company namely Lucky TG (Private) Limited (“Lucky TG”) in accordance with 
Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies 
or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017. The investment was to be made in tranches over 
a period of 5 years.

The Company, together with Lucky Core Industries Limited (LCI) incorporated a joint venture 
company, Lucky TG (Private) Limited, to set up a float glass manufacturing facility with a production 
capacity of up to 1,000 metric tons per day. The facility was intended to be set up in two phases 
having production capacity of 500 metric tons per day each with expectation that the first phase 
of the facility would become commercially operational during FY 2024-25. However, due to the 
uncertain economic conditions, there have been delays in the project which have necessitated a 
reassessment of the project timelines.

As the funds in Lucky TG remained unutilized, on July 23, 2024, Lucky TG completed a buy-back 
of a certain proportion of its shares in accordance with section 88 of the Companies Act 2017 
read with relevant provisions of the Companies Regulations 2024. Notwithstanding the same, 
the joint venture partners remain committed to completing the project as soon as the economic 
environment becomes conducive.

The information as required in compliance with Regulation 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, is as under:

Sr. Description Details
(a) Name of the Investee 

Company
M/s Lucky TG (Private) Limited

(b) Total investment approved PKR 4,414,900,000
(c) Amount of investment made to 

date
Company’s initial investment amounted to PKR 
269,500,000 (on June 05, 2023). Following the buy-
back of shares by Lucky TG (Private) Limited which was 
completed on July 23, 2024, the current investment of 
the Company in Lucky TG stands at PKR 4,900,000. The 
Company still holds 49% of the current issued and paid-
up capital of Lucky TG following the buy-back.

(d) Reasons for deviations from the 
approved timeline of investment, 
where investment decision was 
to be implemented in specified 
time; and

Delays in project timelines are due to uncertain economic 
conditions.

(e) Material change in financial 
statements of associated 
company or associated 
undertaking since date of the 
resolution passed for approval 
of investment in such company

Lucky TG bought back its 54,000,000 (Fifty-four million) 
paid up shares from Lucky Core Industries Limited and 
Tariq Glass Industries Limited, in proportion to their 
shareholdings, the process of which was completed 
on July 23, 2024 to allow utilization of injected funds 
that were lying dormant in Lucky TG. Lucky TG remains 
capable of meeting its financial liabilities.

STATEMENT UNDER REGULATION 4(2) OF THE COMPANIES 
(INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES OR ASSOCIATED 

UNDERTAKINGS) REGULATIONS, 2017
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B.  M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited

The information as required in compliance with Regulation 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, is as under:

Sr. Description Details
(a) Name of the 

Investee Company
M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited

(b) Total investment 
approved

In order to support BGL’s 
working capital requirements 
TGL will grant short term loan 
/ short term advance / running 
finance upto PKR 1,000,000,000 
on rollover / renewable basis 
every year.

To facilitate BGL's financing 
requirements from the Banks 
the Company may issue cross-
corporate guarantees of up to PKR 
3,000,000,000 in favor of banks on 
behalf of BGL.

(c) Amount of 
investment made 
to date

Nil
However, this facility is being 
renewed for another period of 
1 year in the annual general 
meeting to be held on October 
28, 2024.

In this respect, the Company has 
issued guarantees to Meezan 
Bank Limited amounting to PKR 
1,067,000,000 dated April 02, 
2024 and Soneri Bank Limited 
amounting to PKR 618,768,000 
dated May 16, 2024 on behalf of 
BGL.

(d) Reasons for 
deviations from the 
approved timeline 
of investment, 
where investment 
decision was to 
be implemented in 
specified time; and

The members passed 
special resolution during an 
extraordinary general meeting 
held on February 15, 2024 to 
authorize short term loan to BGL 
The resolution remains valid for 
1 year. Therefore, there has been 
no deviation from the specified 
timeline for its implementation 
up to the present date.

The members passed special 
resolution during an extraordinary 
general meeting held on February 
15, 2024 to authorize issuance of 
corporate guarantees on behalf of 
BGL. The resolution remains valid 
for 10 years. Therefore, there has 
been no deviation from the specified 
timeline for its implementation up to 
the present date.

(e) Material change 
in financial 
s t a t e m e n t s 
of associated 
company or 
a s s o c i a t e d 
u n d e r t a k i n g 
since date of the 
resolution passed 
for approval of 
investment in such 
company

In a positive turn of events, a Share Purchase Agreement was 
executed on May 26, 2023 between Mr. Muhammad Tousif Peracha 
(the sponsor) and M/s Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL), a leading 
player in the glass industry. Subsequent to which TGL acquired 
50% equity stake in M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM), 
the holding company of Baluchistan Glass Limited and became an 
ultimate beneficial owner of 42.17% in the Company. Following this 
strategic partnership and with the support provided by TGL and the 
sponsors the rehabilitation of Unit-1 situated at Hub-Baluchistan was 
successfully completed. The furnace of Unit-1 was ignited on May 
15, 2024 succeeding to commercial operations on June 4, 2024. 
Alhamdulillah, Unit-1 is now fully operational capable of producing 
tableware glass, container-ware glass and pharma glass packaging 
products. 
The members of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting 
held on September 18, 2024 approved an increase in the Company’s 
paid-up capital from PKR 2,616,000,000 to PKR 6,385,120,570 by 
the issuance of additional 376,912,057 Ordinary Shares by way of 
otherwise than right shares amounting to PKR 3,769,120,570 to M/s 
MMM Holding (Private) Limited, holding company against its loan 
already provided to the Company subject to approval of SECP.
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C. M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited

The information as required in compliance with Regulation 4(2) of the Companies (Investment in 
Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, is as under:

Sr. Description Details
(a) Name of the 

Investee Company
M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited

(b) Total investment 
approved

For the balance 
payment of PKR 
350,000,000 out of 
the total investment 
of PKR 970,000,000 
for the acquisition 
of 50% shares of 
M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited 
from Mr. Muhammad 
Tousif Peracha as 
long-term equity 
investment. 

For further long-term 
equity investment of 
PKR 583,387,560 in 
M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited 
against right issue.

To extend term loan 
convertible into 
equity amounting to 
PKR 350,000,000.

(c) Amount of 
investment made 
to date (upto June 
30, 2024)

PKR 678,333,332 PKR 583,387,560 PKR 58,333,332

(d) Reasons for 
deviations from the 
approved timeline 
of investment, 
where investment 
decision was to 
be implemented in 
specified time; and

The members 
passed special 
resolution during 
an extraordinary 
general meeting 
held on February 15, 
2024 to authorize 
payment against 
acquisition of shares 
of M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited from 
Mr. Muhammad 
Tousif Peracha. The 
resolution remains 
valid for 5 years. 
Therefore, there has 
been no deviation 
from the specified 
timeline for its 
implementation up to 
the present date.

The members 
passed special 
resolution during an 
extraordinary general 
meeting held on 
February 15, 2024 
to authorize further 
equity investment 
against right shares 
of M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited. The 
resolution remains 
valid for 5 years 
and the investment 
has been made as 
per approval of the 
members, therefore, 
there has been no 
deviation from the 
specified timeline for 
its implementation up 
to the present date.

The members 
passed special 
resolution during an 
extraordinary general 
meeting held on 
February 15, 2024 to 
authorize extension 
of long-term loan 
convertible into 
equity amounting to 
PKR 350,000,000 in 
quarterly instalments 
to M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited 
for the purpose of 
onward provision 
of loan to BGL for 
settlement of the loan 
of Gharibwal Cement 
Limited (GCL) 
standing in the books 
of BGL. The resolution 
remains valid for 5 
years. Therefore, 
there has been no 
deviation from the 
specified timeline for 
its implementation up 
to the present date.
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Sr. Description Details
(e) Material change 

in financial 
s t a t e m e n t s 
of associated 
company or 
a s s o c i a t e d 
u n d e r t a k i n g 
since date of the 
resolution passed 
for approval of 
investment in such 
company

Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL) has acquired 50% shares (i.e., 
57,555,625 shares) of M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM), 
a holding company of Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) from Mr. 
Muhammad Tousif Peracha pursuant to the completion of process of 
public offer under the Securities Act, 2015. These shares have been 
transferred in the name of TGL. Consequently, TGL acquired a 50% 
equity stake in MMM and by virtue of which, became an ultimate 
beneficial owner of 42.17% of the total issued share capital of BGL. 
The nominees of TGL were appointed on the Boards of Directors 
of MMM and BGL and the TGL has successfully acquired joint 
management control of MMM and BGL on December 7, 2023.

The Board of Directors of MMM in their meeting held on June 3, 2024 
approved to increase the paid-up capital of the Company from PKR 
1,151,112,500 to PKR 2,317,887,620 by the issuance of additional 
116,677,512 Ordinary Shares on face value of PKR 10 each by way 
of right shares, total PKR 1,166,775,120 (i.e., 101.3606506748910% 
right shares of the existing paid up capital) to the existing members 
of MMM, the allotment of right shares was made on June 28, 2024.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors of MMM in their meeting held on 
June 3, 2024 has given its consent to BGL for the issuance of shares 
by way of otherwise than right shares, specifically for the purpose of 
settling the outstanding loans owed to M/s MMM Holding (Private) 
Limited as recorded in the books and payable by BGL subject to all 
the requisite regulatory approvals. In this regard, the members of BGL 
in their extraordinary general meeting held on September 18, 2024 
approved an increase in the Company’s paid-up capital from PKR 
2,616,000,000 to PKR 6,385,120,570 by the issuance of additional 
376,912,057 Ordinary Shares by way of otherwise than right shares 
amounting to PKR 3,769,120,570 to MMM against the loan already 
provided to BGL in terms of proviso to Section 83 of the Companies 
Act, 2017 (Act) and subject to approval of the Securities & Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
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As the Chairman of the Board of Directors of M/s Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL), I am honored 
to present the annual review for the financial year concluded on June 30, 2024.

The economy appeared mild in the FY2024. However, the government of Pakistan is still steadfastly 
dedicated to achieving macroeconomic stabilization, with a strategic goal of switching to inclusive 
and sustainable growth. The government is tackling ingrained systemic problems that have 
traditionally impeded development in a number of economic areas. Targeted policy initiatives are 
being used to address important issues including fiscal mismanagement and vulnerabilities in 
the external account, which are crucial to inflationary pressures. It is expected that the financial 
pressures on citizens would gradually ease as these reforms take hold. It is anticipated that a 
renewed emphasis on high-potential industries such as IT, SMEs, mining, tourism, exports, and 
agriculture will greatly improve the nation’s balance of payments. Concurrently, measures to draw 
in foreign capital and improve remittances are being stepped up to guarantee long-term fiscal 
stability.

Despite all the challenges, TGL increased its market share and achieved a growth of 4.12% in the 
sales volumes, outperforming the industrial sector growth of 1.21%. The main factor behind the 
growth was partial pass-through of escalated cost of production to the customers.

As required under section 192 of the Companies Act 2017 to report on the overall performance 
of the Board and the effectiveness of the role played by the Board in achieving the Company’s 
objectives. The annual evaluation of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of M/s Tariq Glass 
Industries Limited (the “Company”) was carried out on self-assessment basis. The purpose of 
this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness is assessed 
and benchmarked against anticipations in line with the objectives set for the Company. Areas 
where improvements are required are duly considered and action plans formulated. The Board 
has completed its annual self-evaluation for the year ended June 30, 2024, and I am pleased to 
report that the overall performance and effectiveness of the Board and its committees assessed 
on the basis of guidelines / questionnaire was satisfactory for the year. The assessment criteria 
was based on evaluation of the following variables, which have a direct relevance on Board’s role 
in attainment of Company’s objectives:

1.	 Vision, mission and values: The Board members have a clear understanding about 
Company’s vision, mission and values and promote them.

2.	 Strategic planning, engagement and policy formulation: The Board members empathize 
with all the stakeholders (shareholders, customers, employees, vendors, government, and 
society at large) whom the Company serves. The Board has evolved strategic planning as 
to how the organization should be progressing over the next three to five years. Further, the 
Board sets goals and objectives on annual basis for the management in all major areas of 
business and community.

3.	 Organization’s business activities and effective oversight: The Board remained updated 
with respect to achievement of Company’s goals & objectives and implementation of 
plans & strategies and review of financial performance through regular analysis of MIS, 
presentations by the management, internal and external auditors report and other opinions 
and feedback. The Board members provided appropriate direction and guidance on timely 
basis. It received clear and brief agendas supported with written material and in sufficient 
time prior to board and committee meetings. The board met frequently enough to adequately 
discharge its responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
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4.	 Assiduity & monitoring: The Board members have developed a system of sound internal 
control with emphasis on financial matters and implemented it at all levels within the 
Company. The Board members diligently performed their duties and thoroughly reviewed, 
discussed and approved business strategies, corporate objectives, plans, budgets, financial 
statements and other reports. 

5.	 Board structure and diversification: The Board members successfully brought diversity on 
the Board by constituting a mix of independent, non-executive and executive directors. 
Representation to one female director has also been given. The independent female and 
non-executive directors were equally involved in important board decisions. The Board 
members also displayed specialization in specific areas like management, accounts & 
finance, marketing, glass manufacturing, public relations, prevalent laws etc.

6.	 Governance: The Board has implanted a strong governance framework which supports 
the effective management and success of the business of the Company. This ensures the 
compliance with all applicable laws, accountability and enhancing shareholders’ value. The 
Board has efficiently set the tone-at-the-top, by positioning the transparent and robust system 
of governance in front of the organization’s people. The achievement of this phenomena is 
insured by setting up an effective controlled environment, compliance with best practices 
of corporate governance, advocating code of conduct, promoting ethical and fair behavior 
across the Company and supporting behavior for the whistleblower.

	 Lahore                                                 	 MANSOOR IRFANI
	 September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN
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The Directors of Tariq Glass Industries Limited are pleased to present before you their report with 
respect to the state of the company’s affairs together with the annual audited financial statements of 
the company, statement of compliance along-with the auditors’ reports thereon and other relevant 
documents for the year ended June 30, 2024.

Economy Review:

Pakistan remains firmly committed to its journey toward macroeconomic stabilization, with a 
strategic focus on achieving sustainable and inclusive growth. The Government is addressing deep-
rooted systemic issues that have long hindered progress across various sectors of the economy. 
Key challenges, such as external account vulnerabilities and fiscal mismanagement both central to 
inflationary pressures are being tackled through targeted policy interventions. As these reforms take 
hold, the economic burden on citizens is expected to gradually ease. Renewed focus on high-potential 
sectors, including IT, SMEs, mining, tourism, agriculture and exports is anticipated to significantly 
strengthen the Country’s balance of payments. Concurrently, efforts to attract foreign investment and 
enhance remittances are being intensified to ensure long-term financial stability.

In FY2024, the economy showed signs of moderate recovery, with GDP growth reaching 2.38 percent 
after a contraction in the previous year. Agriculture played a pivotal role, achieving a growth rate 
of 6.25 percent, while the industrial and services sectors also demonstrated resilience. Through 
fiscal discipline and targeted reforms, the Government effectively managed the current account 
deficit, improved foreign exchange reserves to US$ 14.47 billion by August 2024 (June-2024: US$ 
13.997 billion), and maintained a primary surplus. Additionally, inflation dropped down to single 
digit, the Rupee appreciated by nearly 3.0 percent, and the external account position strengthened 
due to prudent fiscal and monetary management. These developments underscore the progress 
toward economic stabilization, further supported by a new 37-month Extended Fund Facility (EFF) 
arrangement with the IMF for $7 billion in July-2024.

Business Review:

By the Grace of Allah Almighty, the Company has registered net sales of PKR 29,599 million which 
is slightly higher than the corresponding figure of the last year which amounted to PKR 28,427. The 
cost of sales has decreased to 73.56% as compared to previous year of 79.83% attributable to the 
adoption of cost effective alternate of Natural Gas and effective management of energy mix. Moreover, 
the Company has successfully partially passed to the customers the higher costs being incurred and 
also recording of bargain purchase gain on investment in associate. Consequently, the Company has 
not only regained its fiscal soundness but also its profitability, reporting a 73.65% higher profit after 
tax at PKR 4,375 million optimizing earnings per share (EPS) to 25.41, compared to PKR 2,519 million 
and PKR 14.63 of the last year respectively 

The key operating and financial data in summarized form is also annexed for the consideration of 
shareholders which, in brief is as under:

	 FY-2024	 FY-2023
	                                 (Rupees in Million)	

Sales – net	 29,599	 28,427
Gross profit	 7,827	 5,734
Operating profit	 6,754	 4,833
Profit before tax	 6,789	 4,118
Profit after tax	 4,375	 2,519
		
Earnings per share – basic and diluted – Rupees	 25.41	 14.63

Alhamdulillah, one plant each of the Company’s Tableware and the Float Glass were fully operational 
during the year under report. While the other plant of Float Glass (Unit-1) after repair is ready for 
production but has been on hold considering the market conditions and low demand for the float glass 
products. However, one of the Tableware Plants completed the useful campaign life and was closed for 
rebuild.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Company has entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 26, 2023 with Mr. 
Muhamad Tousif Peracha, the main shareholder of M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM) for the 
purchase of 57,555,625 Ordinary Shares representing 50% of the total issued share capital of MMM, at 
an aggregate price of PKR 970,000,000 calculated at the rate of PKR 16.853 per share. Further, MMM 
owns 220,644,430 Ordinary Shares comprising 84.34% of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares 
of M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL). Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, 2015 and 
the Listed Companies (Substantial Acquisition of Voting Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2017, the 
Company has made a public offer to acquire 50% of the remaining ordinary shares of BGL subject to 
minimum acceptance level of 5.4795% shares (i.e., 14,334,450 Ordinary Shares) through Manager to 
the Offer namely M/s AKD Securities Limited on August 10, 2023 which was duly published in the 
newspapers on August 12, 2023. This acquisition process was conducted under Section 111 of the 
Securities Act 2015 and was successfully completed in October-2023. Subsequent to which TGL 
acquired a 50% equity stake in M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM), the holding company 
of Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) and by virtue of which, became an ultimate beneficial owner of 
42.17% of the total issued share capital of BGL. The nominees of TGL were appointed on the Boards of 
Directors of MMM and BGL and the TGL has successfully acquired joint management control of MMM 
and BGL on December 7, 2023. The Company has started making payments as per SPA and sought its 
members’ approvals for investments in associated companies (i.e., MMM & BGL) in the extraordinary 
general meeting held on February 15, 2024. By the Grace of Allah Almighty one of the BGL’s plant (Unit-
1) situated at Hub, Baluchistan has been successfully revived, the furnace of which was fired on May 15, 
2024 and subsequently commercialized on June 04, 2024.

With regards to the joint venture company with the name of M/s Lucky TG (Private) Limited (LTG) 
between Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL) and M/s Lucky Core Industries Limited (LCI) for setting 
up a float glass manufacturing facility with production capacity of up to 1,000 tons per day in two phases 
of 500 tons per day, it is advised that due to the prevailing economic conditions in the country, the 
project has not progressed as planned, leading to delays and necessitating a reassessment of the 
project timelines. LTG has cancelled the arrangements of land reserved for the proposed project and 
got back the funds from the relevant authority which were lying unutilized. The Board of Directors of 
LTG approved the buyback of its 54,000,000 Shares out of the total 55,000,000 Shares in May-2024 
in accordance with Section 88 of the Companies Act 2017, the cancellation process of bought back 
shares has been completed in July-2024. Despite the buyback, LTG remains an associated company of 
TGL, as TGL retains a 49% equity share in LTG following the buyback. The joint venture partners remain 
committed to completing the project as soon as the economic conditions become conducive.

It is a matter of satisfaction that The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA) has maintained long-term 
and short-term entity ratings of “A+” (A Plus) and “A1” (A One) respectively with Stable outlook to Tariq 
Glass Industries Limited. We feel privileged to inform about this momentous achievement that fills 
us with immense pride and gratitude. Tariq Glass Industries Limited has earned its debut spot in the 
esteemed “200 Best Under A Billion” list by Forbes Asia. Notably, it is prudent to highlight that only three 
companies from Pakistan have secured a coveted place on this prestigious roster, and TGL proudly 
stands among them. The Company received a certificate of appreciation from Forbes Asia in November 
2023.

Contribution to the National Exchequer:

Your Company contributed over PKR 4 billion to the government’s tax revenue in the form of income tax, 
sales tax, duties and other local taxes during the year under review.

Future Outlook:

The ongoing geopolitical tensions arising from the Iran-Israil and Russia-Ukraine confrontations have 
taken the world on brink of global conflict which may lead to the world economic crisis. Pakistan is still in 
the midst of significant economic and political challenges. Soaring inflation driven by escalating costs 
of essential commodities has severely impacted businesses across all sectors of the economy. The 
heavy reliance on imported fuels such as LNG, Furnace Oil, and Diesel has further strained Company’s 
cash flows and forcing us to absorb a portion of these increased costs to the detriment of liquidity and 
profitability.
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Amid an uncertain economic climate marked by excessive taxation and unpredictable government 
interventions have challenged the Company’s ability to implement effective sales and pricing strategies. 
While the Float Glass Plant’s furnace (Unit-1, with a capacity of 550 metric tons per day) of the Company 
stands technically ready for operations but it is delayed strategically awaiting improved market conditions 
and increased demand. Our immediate focus is on maintaining high product quality, ensuring customer 
satisfaction, and identifying new growth opportunities.

The realization of our growth objectives is heavily dependent on the improved and stabilized political 
and economic landscape. Despite these challenges, we remain cautiously optimistic about Pakistan’s 
future. We are confident that with resilience and strategic adaptation, we can navigate the current 
headwinds and continue on a path toward sustained progress. We extend our gratitude to Allah 
Almighty for bestowing blessings upon humanity. Moreover, we harbor a strong belief that our nation 
will overcome all hurdles and impediments and navigate towards economic and political stability, 
ushering in a period of growth in the near future.

Cash Dividend & Bonus Shares:

In light of the challenging economic conditions particularly the slowdown in construction activity which has resulted 
in an extended credit period for customers and to ensure the fulfillment of financial commitments especially to Mr. 
Muhammad Touseef Peracha (MTP) and MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM), the Board has not recommended 
any dividends or bonus shares for the year ended June 30, 2024. This step is necessary to protect the Company’s 
financial health and ensure that all financial obligations are met in a timely manner.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

(a)	 The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the 
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(b)	 Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.
(c)	 Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and 

accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
(d)	 International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of 

financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed and explained.
(e)	 The systems of internal control whether financial or non-financial are sound in design and have been 

effectively implemented and monitored.
(f)	 There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
(g)	 The information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements. 
(h)	 There has been no departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance as detailed in the Listed 

Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this 
report.

Risk Management and Internal Control:

a)	 A system of sound internal financial control has been developed and implemented at all levels within the 
company. The system of internal financial control is sound and adequate in design for ensuring achievement 
of Company’s objective, its operational effectiveness, efficiency, reliable financial reporting, compliance with 
laws, regulations and policies.

b)	 The Company has developed a mechanism for identification of risks and devised appropriate mitigation 
measures which are regularly monitored and implemented by the Management across all major functions of 
the Company and presented to the Board Audit Committee for information and review.

c)	 The Internal Audit function is responsible for providing assurance on the effectiveness and adequacy of 
internal control and risk management framework in managing risks within acceptable levels throughout the 
Company.

d)	 The Board Audit Committee has met regularly with Management to understand the risks that the Company 
faces and has reviewed the management of Company’s material business, to assess the effectiveness of 
those systems in minimizing risks that may impact adversely on the business objectives of the Company.

ESG Factors:

The Company has conducted a thorough assessment of sustainability-related risks including 
environmental, social, and governance (ESG) factors. Key risks have been identified, and robust 
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strategies are in place to manage and mitigate these risks. This involves adopting sustainable practices, 
ensuring compliance with relevant regulations and actively monitoring and addressing potential ESG 
impacts to minimize our environmental footprint and enhance operational resilience.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion:

The Company is dedicated to promoting Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DE & I) throughout its 
operations. The Company has implemented policies and initiatives aimed at creating a diverse and 
inclusive workplace. The efforts are focused on ensuring equal opportunities for all employees and to 
ensure that all employees feel valued, respected and empowered., fostering an inclusive culture and 
supporting a wide range of perspectives. These measures are regularly reviewed and updated to align 
with Company’s core values and contribute to the overall success and sustainability of the Company.

Gender Pay Gap:

The Company is committed to fostering a workplace free from gender discrimination. Employee 
remuneration is determined by multiple factors, including professional experience, tenure, education, job 
role, performance, market dynamics, and geographical location. Compensation is based on objective, 
merit-based criteria, with no gender bias. The Mean gender pay gap and Median gender pay gap for 
the year ended June 30, 2024 are 32.53% and 36.09% respectively, indicating higher remuneration for 
the female employees.

Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors and its Committees worked with a marked level of diligence and assiduity to 
advise and guide the Company towards achieving its potential in the face of a significantly challenging 
economic scenario.

Composition of the Board:

The current composition of the Board of Directors in compliance with the requirements of Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is as under: 

Total number of Directors are 7 of which:

(a)	 Male Directors are: 	                6
(b)	 Female Director is: 	                1

Further, from the board of 7 directors the status wise summary is as under:

(i)	 Independent Directors:	  	 2
(ii)	 Non- Executive Directors:	 3
(iii)	 Executive Directors:		  2

During the period between the end of financial year to which the attached financial statements relate 
and the date of this Directors’ Report, no casual vacancy occurred on the Board of Directors.

At present, the following directors are serving on the Board of Directors of the Company:

 Status / Category		  Names

 Independent Directors:		  Mr. Faiz Muhammad
		  Mr. Adnan Aftab

 Non-Executive Directors:		  Mr. Mansoor Irfani (Chairman)
		  Mr. Saad Iqbal
		  Ms. Rubina Nayyar (Female Director)

 Executive Directors:		  Mr. Omer Baig (Managing Director / CEO)
		  Mr. Mohammad Baig

The Board of Directors completed its tenure of three years on September 02, 2023. The same members 
were elected unopposed as directors in the Extraordinary General meeting held on September 01, 
2023 under the provisions of section 159 of the Companies Act, 2017 for the next term of three 
years (i.e., from September 03, 2023 to September 02, 2026) by the shareholders of the Company. 
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Mr. Mansoor Irfani was elected as chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company and Mr. Omer 
Baig appointed as a continuing Managing Director / CEO for the next term of three years (i.e., from 
September 03, 2023 to September 02, 2026).

Board Casual Vacancy:

Mr. Muhammad Ibrar Khan, the independent director of the Company passed away on October 28, 2023                                     
                                        . and Mr. Adnan Aftab is a co-opted Director on the Board of Directors of the Company 
to fill the casual vacancy w.e.f. November 28, 2023. He holds the status of an independent director.

Board Meetings:

During the year under report, 5 meetings of the board were held. The attendance of the Board 
members was as follows:

Sr.	 Name of Director	 Board Meetings Attended

1.	 Mr. Omer Baig	 4 / 5
2.	 Mr. Mansoor Irfani	 5 / 5
3.	 Mr. Mohammad Baig	 5 / 5
4.	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad	 4 / 5
5.	 Mr. Saad Iqbal	 5 / 5
6.	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar	 5 / 5
7.	 Mr. Adnan Aftab	 1 / 2
8.	 Mr. Muhammad Ibrar Khan (late)	 1 / 3

Committees of the Members of the Board of Directors:

The Board has constituted the Audit Committee (AC) and Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee (HRRC) for its assistance. The details of members and scope is as under:

Audit Committee (AC):

  1.         Mr. Faiz Muhammad 		  Chairman Audit Committee
  2.         Mr. Mansoor Irfani 		  Member
  3.         Ms. Rubina Nayyar		  Member

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly, half yearly and annual financial statements before 
submission to the board and their publication. The audit committee also reviewed internal audit 
findings and held separate meetings with internal and external auditors. The audit committee 
had discussed with external auditors the points mentioned in their transmission letter. The Audit 
Committee also conducts a review of the effectiveness of risk management procedures by focusing on 
monitoring and reviewing all material controls (financial, operational, and compliance), ensuring that 
risk mitigation measures are robust, financial information integrity is maintained and an appropriate 
level of disclosure of the Company’s risk framework and internal control system is provided in the 
Directors’ report.

During the year under report, 4 meetings of the audit committee were convened. The attendance of 
the members of audit committee was as follows:

Sr.	 Name of Director	 Audit Committee 
		  Meetings Attended
1.	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad	 4 / 4
2.	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar	 4 / 4
3.	 Mr. Mansoor Irfani	 2 / 4

The aforementioned board members, in the same capacities, have been reappointed for the next 
term from September 03, 2023, to September 02, 2026 except for Ms. Rubina Nayyar who has been 
succeeded by Mr. Saad Iqbal.



24

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR&R):

  1.	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad		  Chairman HR&R Committee
  2.	 Mr. Omer Baig		  Member
  3.	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar		  Member

The HR & R committee has been constituted to address and improve the area of Human Resource 
Development. The main aim of the committee is to assist the Board and guide the management in 
the formulation of the market driven HR policies regarding performance management, HR staffing, 
nominations, compensation and benefits, that are compliant with the laws and regulations. The HR & 
R Committee also administer nominations for the Board by considering and making recommendations 
to the Board regarding the Board’s committees, the chairmanship of the Board’s committees, regular 
review of the structure, size, and composition of the Board and making necessary recommendations 
for any required changes.

During the year under report, one meeting of the human resource & remuneration committee was 
held. The attendance of the members of human resource & remuneration committee was as follows:

   Sr.	 Name of Director	 HR & R Committee  
		  Meetings Attended
   1	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad	 1 / 1
   2	 Mr. Omer Baig	 1 / 1
   3	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar	 1 / 1

The aforementioned board members, in the same capacities, have been reappointed for the next 
term from September 03, 2023, to September 02, 2026.

Related Party Transactions & Investment in Associated Companies:

All the related party transactions are disclosed under Note No. 46 of the annexed Notes to the 
Financial Statements. However, the summary of a few important transactions, agreements and 
approvals is given below:

1.	 The Company has acquired 50% shares (i.e., 57,555,625 shares) of M/s MMM Holding (Private) 
Limited (MMM), a holding company of Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) from Mr. Muhammad 
Tousif Peracha pursuant to the completion of process of public offer under the Securities Act, 
2015. These shares have been transferred in the name of TGL. Consequently, TGL acquired a 
50% equity stake in MMM and by virtue of which, became an ultimate beneficial owner of 42.17% 
of the total issued share capital of BGL. The nominees of TGL were appointed on the Boards of 
Directors of MMM and BGL and the TGL has successfully acquired joint management control of 
MMM and BGL on December 7, 2023, as officially announced on PSX on the same day. Pursuant 
to the total consideration of PKR 970 million of Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) dated May 26, 
2023 and concurrent to approval of the shareholders dated February 15, 2024, the Company 
has paid PKR 620 million to Mr. Muhammad Tousif Peracha and started payments of balance 
amounting to PKR 350 million in quarterly installments under the terms and conditions of the SPA.

2.	 In line with the approval granted by the members of the Company on February 15, 2024 for 
extending term loan convertible into equity amounting to PKR 350,000,000 to M/s MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited (MMM), an associated company for the purpose of onward provision of loan to 
BGL for settlement of the loan of Gharibwal Cement Limited (GCL) standing in the books of BGL, 
the Company has entered into an agreement dated March 01, 2024 with MMM for the grant of 
loan convertible into equity amounting to PKR 350 million and started payments as per terms of 
the agreement.

3.	 In accordance with the members’ approval dated February 15, 2024 to support BGL’s working 
capital needs the Company will provide a short-term loan / advance / running finance of up to 
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PKR 1,000,000,000 on a renewable basis annually and to facilitate BGL’s financing requirements 
from the Banks the Company may issue cross-corporate guarantees of up to PKR 3,000,000,000 
in favor of banks on behalf of BGL, for a maximum period of 10 years. The Company has entered 
into an agreement with BGL for the grant of short-term loan upto PKR 1,000 million and issuance 
of cross corporate guarantees for the banks / FIs upto PKR 3,000 million on March 01, 2024. In 
this respect, the Company has issued guarantees to Meezan Bank Limited amounting to PKR 
1,067,000,000 dated April 02, 2024 and Soneri Bank Limited amounting to PKR 618,768,000 
dated May 16, 2024 on behalf of BGL as per the terms stipulated under the agreement.

4.	 In agreement with the approval of members dated February 15, 2024 authorizing further long-
term equity investment of PKR 583,387,560 in M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM), an 
associated company where the proceeds of right issue supposed to be utilized by MMM by 
making payment of PKR 83,387,560 to settle Muhammad Tousif Peracha’s (MTP) outstanding 
loan and balance PKR 500,000,000 shall be extended to Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) as a 
loan convertible into equity of BGL for the capital expenditure of BGL. In this regard, the Company 
has subscribed for 58,338,756 ordinary shares of MMM at PKR 10 per share against the offer 
received on June 12, 2024 subsequently the allotment of right shares made in the name of 
Company on June 28, 2024 by MMM.

5.	 A Supply Agreement dated February 15, 2024 signed between Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the 
“Company” or “TGL”) and Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) considering that BGL is a distressed 
company facing significant challenges in securing bank financing and establishing letters of 
credit, it is imperative for the “Company to intervene and provide the necessary support to facilitate 
the revival of BGL’s operations. The proposed strategy involves initiating the rehabilitation of Unit-
1 of BGL, located at Hub, Baluchistan, in the first phase of this recovery plan. In this context, 
the Management of BGL has formally requested the supply of essential materials, refractory 
components and spare parts that are critical for the restoration and optimization of production 
operations at Unit-1. The request observed in line with the principle of arm’s length transaction 
and fulfilled based on the availability of such items within TGL’s inventory. By providing these 
technical resources, TGL aims to ensure the operational readiness and efficiency of BGL’s Unit-
1, thereby contributing to the overall stabilization and future growth of BGL and the Country. 
The procurement and supply of raw materials and consumable stores are vital for ensuring 
the uninterrupted and efficient operations of BGL. The Company is supplying raw materials, 
machinery spares and stores to BGL strictly adhering to the arm’s length principle, Company’s 
Related Party Transaction Policy and the relevant laws / regulations.

6.	 Another Contract Manufacturing Agreement dated February 15, 2024 was concluded between 
Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the “Company” or “TGL”) and Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL) 
considering strategic collaboration with BGL for the manufacturing of specific glassware 
products for TGL and for fulfilling bespoke orders tailored to specific customer requirements. 
This agreement would leverage BGL’s production capabilities while ensuring sales consistency 
and quality across TGL’s product offerings. The Company is procuring finished goods from BGL 
strictly adhering to the arm’s length principle, Company’s Related Party Transaction Policy and 
the relevant laws / regulations.

7.	 The Company has received PKR 264.60 million from Lucky TG (Private) Limited (LTG) on June 
28, 2024. LTG is a joint venture company between Tariq Glass Industries Limited (TGL) and M/s 
Lucky Core Industries Limited (LCI) for setting up a float glass manufacturing facility. The Board 
of Directors of LTG has approved the buyback of its 54,000,000 shares out of the total 55,000,000 
shares in May-2024 in accordance with Section 88 of the Companies Act 2017 read with relevant 
provisions of Chapter IX of the Companies Regulations 2024, the cancellation process of bought 
back shares was completed on July 23, 2024. Despite the buyback, LTG remains an associated 
company of TGL, as TGL retains a 49% equity share in LTG following the buyback.

It is hereby confirmed that all related party transactions executed during the year under review were 
conducted with formal approvals or under the binding agreements in compliance with applicable 
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laws and regulations. Additionally, all interested directors have duly submitted declarations of their 
interests, if any, and withdrew themselves from voting and participating in proceedings of the Board 
of Directors while granting approvals with respect to the transactions with the related parties.

An extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on February 15, 2024 to seek approval of 
members for the transactions enumerated above categorized as investment in associated companies 
namely M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited (MMM) and M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited (BGL).

Remuneration of Directors:

The remuneration / fee of directors is determined in accordance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2017, related Regulations, Articles of Association of the Company and the Directors’ 
Remuneration Policy.

The main features of approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy by the Board are as follows:

•	 The Company shall not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including independent 
directors except for meeting fee for attending the meetings.

•	 The Company will incur or reimburse expenses of travelling, boarding and lodging of Directors in 
relation to attending the meetings.

•	 The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors from 
time to time.

•	 Remuneration of directors & other executives are detailed in financial statements.

During the year under report a total amount of PKR 87,489,062 was paid to the Managing Director 
/ CEO and the Executive Director on account of remuneration and other benefits. The breakup of 
which is as under:

Particulars Managing Director / CEO Executive Director Total
Managerial remuneration 27,000,000 13,500,000 40,500,000
House rent 12,150,000 6,075,000 18,225,000
Conveyance 24,000 24,000 48,000
Bonus 6,750,000 3,375,000 10,125,000
Utilities 2,700,000 1,350,000 4,050,000
Medical and other 
allowances

3,126,000 1,551,000 4,677,000

Travelling expenses 2,138,460 7,725,602 9,864,062
Total 53,888,460 33,600,602 87,489,062

	
The Executive Directors are also entitled to other benefits as per Company’s policy like insurance, 
personal security, club membership and any other benefits entitled thereto. They are also authorized 
free use of Company maintained transport for official purposes.

Moreover, a sum of PKR 3,200,000 was paid to Independent and Non-Executive Directors as meeting 
fee for attending the board and committee meetings. The fee for attending each meeting is upto PKR 
100,000.

The remuneration paid to the directors is disclosed under Note No. 44 of the annexed Notes to the 
Financial Statements.
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Directors Training Program:

Out of 7 members on the Board there are six certified directors who have obtained the certification 
under the directors training program. The remaining one director namely Mr. Omer Baig is exempt 
from the directors training program as he qualifies the criteria of having a minimum of 14 years of 
education and 15 years of experience on the Board of a listed company.

However, the Company has also made appropriate arrangements to carry out orientation / briefing 
sessions for its directors to acquaint them with the applicable laws & regulations, Company’s 
Memorandum and Articles of Association, their duties and responsibilities to enable them to 
effectively govern the affairs of the listed company for and on behalf of shareholders.

Pattern of Shareholding:

The pattern of shareholding as required under the Companies Act, 2017 is attached separately with 
this report.

The following transactions in the shares of the Company were carried out by the Directors, during the 
year under report:

Mr. Omer Baig, Managing Director / CEO of the Company has gifted 5,139,983 ordinary shares to his 
real sons namely Mr. Mohammad Baig and Mr. Mustafa Baig through gift deeds dated January 02, 
2024. The details of shareholding of the sponsors prior to gift transaction and the current shareholding 
status are tabulated hereunder:

Name

Shareholding Prior to 
Gift Transaction

Change in 
Shareholding Due to 

Gift Transaction

Shareholding After 
Gift Transaction

No. of 
Shares % No. of 

Shares
% No. of 

Shares %

Mr. Omer Baig (MD/CEO) 49,111,853 28.53% (5,139,983) (2.99%) 43,971,870 25.54%
Mr. Mohammad Baig (Son) 17,215,560 10.00% 2,566,450 1.49% 19,782,010 11.49%
Mr. Mustafa Baig (Son) 17,294,560 10.05% 2,573,533 1.49% 19,868,093 11.54%

Number of Employees:

The number of permanent employees as at June 30, 2024 was 1,034 (2023: 1,211).

Value of Investments of Provident Fund:

The value of total investment of provident fund as at June 30, 2024 was PKR 232.079 million (2023: 
PKR 224.069 million).

Financial Statements:

As required under the Listed Companies Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019 the Managing 
Director / CEO and Chief Financial Officer presented the financial statements, duly endorsed under 
their respective signatures, for consideration and approval of the Board of Directors and Board after 
consideration authorized the signing of financial statements for issuance and circulation on September 
20, 2024.

The financial statements of the Company have been duly audited and approved without qualification by 
the auditors of the Company M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants and their 
following reports are attached with the financial statements:
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•	 Auditors’ Report to the Members
•	 Review Report to the Members on Statement of Compliance with Best Practices of Code of Corporate 

Governance

Auditors:

The present auditors M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants have completed 
their term of appointment and offer themselves for reappointment. As recommended by the audit 
committee the board of directors has endorsed the reappointment as auditors of the company for the 
financial year ending June 30, 2025. The reappointment of auditors and their remuneration is subject 
to the approval of members in the forthcoming annual general meeting. 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

Tariq Glass Industries Limited maintains focus on investing in its communities. In accordance with 
the Company’s CSR Policy, the focus is primarily on education, health, community and environment. 
The Company also supports civic development through investment in community projects, disaster 
relief and rehabilitation activities as needed. The Company has spent PKR 21.035 million (2023: PKR 
51.115 million) on account of CSR activities during the period under report.

In its efforts to sustain the environment, the Company responded appropriately to curtail flow of 
wastewater and carbon emissions into the atmosphere. Your Company has a comprehensive air quality 
measurement program that enables it to identify the limits of pollution parameters in the ambient air 
in and around the plant site. All of the parameters monitored are well below their respective limits 
specified in the National Environmental Quality Standards (NEQS). Similarly, the levels of emissions 
from stacks of Silica Sand, Limestone and other raw materials are continuously monitored and well 
controlled.

Authorization to Sign Directors’ Report & Statement of Compliance:

Mr. Mansoor Irfani, Chairman and Mr. Omer Baig, Managing Director / CEO are authorized jointly 
to sign the Directors’ Report, Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 and audited financial statements on behalf of the Board, whereas Mr. 
Waqar Ullah, CFO signed the audited financial statements pursuant to section 232 of the Companies 
Act 2017.

Acknowledgement:

We would like to thank and appreciate all the employees and workers with whose efforts and 
dedication the affairs of the Company are being managed successfully. We would also like to express 
our gratitude towards our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers and financial institutions for 
their co-operation, continued support and trust in the Company.

			   For and on behalf of the Board

   Lahore		  MANSOOR IRFANI	  OMER BAIG
   September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO
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Name of Company:	 Tariq Glass Industries Limited
Year Ended:		  June 30, 2024

Tariq Glass Industries Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) in the following 
manner:

1.	 The total number of directors are seven as per the following:

	 Male:	             Six
	 Female:         One

2.	 The composition of the board is as follows:

	            Category	             Names

	   a.  Independent Directors:	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad 	
			   Mr. Adnan Aftab

	   b.  Non-Executive Directors:	 Mr. Mansoor Irfani	
			   Mr. Saad Iqbal	

	   c.  Executive Directors:	 Mr. Omer Baig
			   Mr. Mohammad Baig

	   d.  Female Director:	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar	
	       (Non-Executive Director)	

	 The Board comprised of minimum number of members which is seven (7) hence it fulfills the 
requirement of minimum two (2) independent directors and the fraction (0.33) for independent 
directors has not been rounded up as one. Further, the existing independent directors have the 
requisite skills and knowledge to take independent decisions;

3.	 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven 
listed companies, including this Company;

4.	 The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures;

5.	 The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars 
of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been 
maintained by the Company;

6.	 All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have 
been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act 
and these Regulations;

7.	 The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a 
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements 
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of 
meeting of the Board;

8.	 The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

9.	 There are total six directors who obtained the certification under the directors training program, 
their names are as under:

	 -	 Mr. Mohammad Baig          	 -	        Mr. Mansoor Irfani
	 -	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad	 -	 Mr. Saad Iqbal
	 -	 Mr. Adnan Aftab	 -	        Ms. Rubina Nayyar

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
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	 Remaining one director namely Mr. Omer Baig is exempt from the directors training program 
as he qualifies the criteria of having a minimum of 14 years of education and 15 years of 
experience on the Board of a listed company;

10.	 No new appointments have been made during the year for the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
and the Company Secretary whereas the Head of Internal Audit resigned and the appointment 
of a professional with requisite qualification made w.e.f. October 27, 2023. However, all such 
appointments including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment are duly 
approved by the Board and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11.	 Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements 
before approval of the Board;

12.	 The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a)  Audit Committee 

-	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad (Chairman)
-	 Mr. Mansoor Irfani (Member)
-	 Mr. Saad Iqbal (Member)

b)  Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

-	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad (Chairman)
-	 Mr. Omer Baig (Member)
-	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar (Member)

13.	 The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and 
advised to the committee for compliance;

14.	 The frequency of meetings of the Committee were as per following:

	 a)	 Audit Committee: Quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2024;
	 b)	 Human Resource and Remuneration Committee: Yearly and as per requirement;

15.	 The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably qualified 
and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the 
Company;

16.	 The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of 
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the 
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and 
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal 
audit, company secretary or director of the Company;

17.	 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard. 

18.	 We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been complied 
with.

	 Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	  OMER BAIG
	 September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO
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We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of 
Tariq Glass Industries Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2024 in accordance with 
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations. 

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status 
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company 
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the 
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit 
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, 
the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related 
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent 
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of 
the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with 
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 
30, 2024.

 

	
	
	
Lahore	 CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
September 20, 2024	 Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202410051rjzCX9oJL	

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TARIQ GLASS INDUSTRIES LIMITED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
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Opinion 

We have audited the annexed financial statements of TARIQ GLASS INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the 
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2024 and the statement 
of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming 
part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of 
the profit, its comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable 
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TARIQ GLASS INDUSTRIES LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. No.     Key audit matters

1. 	 Trade receivables and 
Revenue

	 Refer to note 3.11 & 12 to 
the financial statements. 

	
	 As at June 30, 2024, the 

Company’s gross trade 
receivables were Rs. 
3,479.43 million against 
which provision of Rs. 
99.98 million has been 
recognized. We identified 
recoverability of trade 
receivables as key audit 
matter as it involves 
significant management 
judgement in determining 
the recoverable amount.

	 Refer to notes 3.10 & 29 to 
the financial statements.

	 The Company has 
earned revenue of Rs. 
29,598.544 million for 
the year ending June 30, 
2024. The Company is 
primarily engaged in the 
manufacturing and sale 
of glass products. We 
identified recognition of 
revenue as a key audit 
matter due to revenue 
being one of the key 
performance indicators of 
the Company.

2.	 Stock in trade

	 Refer to notes 3.5 & 11 to 
the financial statements. 

	 The Company’s stock in 
trade has increased from 
Rs. 4,608.449 million to Rs. 
5,922.804 million as at June 
30, 2024.

	 Stock in trade is stated at a 
lower of cost and estimated 
net realizable value. 

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Our key audit procedures relating to valuation of trade 
receivables included:

•	 Obtained an understanding of the Company’s processes 
and related internal controls for revenue recognition, debt 
collection process and making expected credit loss for 
doubtful receivables and on a sample basis, testing the 
operating effectiveness of those controls.

 
•	 Testing the accuracy of aging report, on sample basis, 

by comparing individual balances in the report with 
underlying documentation.

 
•	 Assessing the appropriateness of assumptions and 

estimates made by management for the expected 
credit loss by comparing on sample basis, historic cash 
collection, actual write offs and cash receipts from 
customers subsequent to reporting date.

•	 Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s revenue 
recognition policies and their compliance with applicable 
accounting and reporting standards.

•	 Obtaining an understanding of the types of contracts with 
the Company’s customers and comparing a sample of 
revenue transactions recorded during the year with sales 
orders, sales invoices, delivery challans and other relevant 
underlying documents to assess whether the revenue 
was recorded in accordance with the Company’s revenue 
accounting policy and applicable financial reporting 
framework.

•	 Performing cut-off procedures on sales to ensure revenue 
has been recorded in the correct period.

•	 Checking receipts from customers to whom sales were 
made on sample basis.

•	 Considering adequacy of the related disclosures and 
assessed whether these are in accordance with the 
applicable financial reporting framework.

Our key audit procedures included:

•	 Observing physical inventory count procedures and 
comparing, on a sample basis, physically counted 
inventories with valuation sheets provided by the 
management

•	 Comparing on a sample basis specific purchases and 
directly attributable costs with underlying supporting 
documents.

•	 Checking the accumulation of costs at different stages of 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

			  Sr. No.     Key audit matters

	 We have considered this 
area as a key audit matter 
due to its size, representing 
21% of the total assets of 
the Company as at June 30, 
2024.

	 Further, determining 
an appropriate written-
down value (NRV) and 
provisioning of stock in 
trade involves management 
judgment and estimation.

How the matters were addressed in our audit

production to ascertain the valuation of work in process 
and finished goods on a sample basis.

•	 Comparing the net realizable value, on a sample basis, 
to the cost of finished goods to assess whether any 
adjustments are required to value stocks in accordance 
with applicable accounting and reporting standards

•	 Assessing the provision for slow moving stocks as of the 
reporting date and assessing whether it is in accordance 
with the Company’s policies and relevant accounting and 
reporting standards

•	 Considering adequacy of the related disclosures and 
assessing whether these are in accordance with the 
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)	 proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b)	 the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the 
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and 
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c)	 investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d)	 zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 
of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Amin Ali.

Lahore	                	CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated: September 20, 2024		                              Chartered Accountants
UDIN: AR202410051zEQPhmXg6             
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION		
As at June 30, 2024	

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assets			  			 
Property, plant and equipment	 5	  12,859,379,365 	  13,837,112,437 
Intangible assets	 6	  71,226 	  4,883,972 
Investment in associates	 7	  2,424,989,940 	  269,500,000 
Long term advances and deposits 	 8	  539,581,503 	  67,844,003 
Loan to associate	 9	  58,333,332 	  -   			 
		   15,882,355,366 	  14,179,340,412 
Current assets			  			 
Stores and spare parts	 10	  1,260,870,232 	  1,245,932,710 
Stock in trade	 11	  5,922,803,932 	  4,608,449,316 
Trade debts	 12	  3,379,451,710 	  1,957,898,325 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables	 13	  1,000,305,210 	  376,291,586 
Cash and bank balances	 14	  682,395,720 	  431,749,673 			 
		   12,245,826,804 	  8,620,321,610 			 
Total assets		   28,128,182,170 	  22,799,662,022 			 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES			  			 
Share capital and reserves			  			 
Authorized share capital			 
500,000,000 (2023: 500,000,000) ordinary 			 
shares of Rs. 10 each		   5,000,000,000 	  5,000,000,000 
			 
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital	 15	  1,721,671,870 	  1,721,671,870 
Share premium	 16	  410,116,932 	  410,116,932 
Unappropriated profit		   13,975,854,172 	  10,549,186,421 
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land	 17	  2,515,984,264 	  2,515,984,264 
Loan from director	 18	  -   	  	 135,000,000 			 
Shareholders’ equity		   18,623,627,238 	  15,331,959,487 			 
Non current liabilities			  			 
Long term finances - secured	 19	  1,161,091,102 	  1,907,003,607 
Deferred taxation	 20	  1,091,183,714 	  930,766,354 
Long term payable	 21	  145,219,284 	  -   
			 
		   2,397,494,100 	  2,837,769,961 
Current liabilities			 
			 
Trade and other payables	 22	  2,783,255,079 	  2,252,864,195 
Contract liabilities	 23	  363,265,399 	  298,663,075 
Unclaimed dividend		   16,369,361 	  13,825,399 
Accrued mark-up	 24	  140,303,029 	  84,205,686 
Current portion of long term liabilities	 25	  1,060,342,604 	  914,360,754 
Short term borrowings	 26	  2,487,334,790 	  921,546,448 
Taxation - net	 27	  256,190,570 	  144,467,017 
			 
		   7,107,060,832 	  4,629,932,574 
			 
Total equity and liabilities		   28,128,182,170 	  22,799,662,022 
			 
Contingencies and commitments	 28	   
			 
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

Revenue	 29	  29,598,543,542 	  28,426,970,766 
Cost of sales	 30	  (21,771,804,715)	  (22,692,998,356)
			 
Gross profit		   7,826,738,827 	  5,733,972,410 
			 
Administrative expenses	 31	  (525,721,555)	  (457,827,644)
Selling and distribution expenses	 32	  (546,950,329)	  (443,475,974)
			 
		   (1,072,671,884)	  (901,303,618)
			 
Operating profit		   6,754,066,943 	  4,832,668,792 
			 
Impairment allowance on trade debts	 12.1	  (46,583,901)	  (14,760,273)
Other income	 33	  336,296,740 	  127,507,793 
Bargain purchase gain	 7.1.3	  915,162,011 	  -   
Share of profit / (loss) from associates	 7.1 & 7.2	  (148,696,810)	  -   
Other operating expenses	 34	  (449,125,865)	  (319,101,499)
Finance cost	 35	  (572,350,655)	  (508,152,938)
			 
Profit before levy and taxation		   6,788,768,463 	  4,118,161,875 
			 
Levy / final taxation		   (32,945,300)	  (33,151,317)
			 
Profit before taxation		   6,755,823,163 	  4,085,010,558 
			 
Taxation	 36		
Current     - For the year		   (2,236,575,376)	  (1,506,939,749)
                    - Prior year		   603,267 	  5,592,843 
Deferred		   (145,381,783)	  (64,532,574)
			 
		   (2,381,353,892)	  (1,565,879,480)
			 
Net profit for the year		   4,374,469,271 	  2,519,131,078 
			 
			 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 	 37	  25.41 	  14.63 
			 

The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.			 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS	
For the year ended June 30, 2024	

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

Net profit for the year		   4,374,469,271 	  2,519,131,078 
			 
Other comprehensive income			 
			 
Items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss			 
			 
Share of other comprehensive income from associate	 7.1	  100,237,179 	  -   
Related deferred tax impact		   (15,035,577)	  -   
			 
		   85,201,602 	  -   
			 
Items that may be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss	 	  -   	  -   
			 
Other comprehensive income for the year		   85,201,602 	  -   
			 
Total comprehensive income for the year		   4,459,670,873 	  2,519,131,078 
			 
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.		
	

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME			 
For the year ended June 30, 2024			 

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended June 30, 2024

		  Capital	 Revenue
		  reserve	 reserve	

		  Share	 Unappropriated		   	    	
	 	 premium	 profit	 	 	 	
				  
	                                                                                            ----------------------------------------------------------Rupees---------------------------------------------------------

				  
Balance as at June 30, 2022	  1,377,337,500 	  410,116,932 	  8,649,857,213 	  2,515,984,264 	  135,000,000 	  13,088,295,909 
						    
Net profit for the year	  -   	  -   	  2,519,131,078 	  -   	  -   	  2,519,131,078 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
						    
Total comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  2,519,131,078 	  -   	  -   	  2,519,131,078 
						    
Transactions with owners 						    
						    
Bouns shares issued 	  344,334,370 	  -   	  (344,334,370)	  -   	  -   	  -   
						    
Final dividend for the year ended 
June 30, 2022 @ of Rs. 2 						    
(20%) per ordinary share	  -   	  -   	  (275,467,500)	  -   	  -   	  (275,467,500)
						    
Balance as at June 30, 2023	  1,721,671,870 	  410,116,932 	  10,549,186,421 	  2,515,984,264 	  135,000,000 	  15,331,959,487 
						    
Net profit for the year	  -   	  -   	  4,374,469,271 	  -   	  -   	  4,374,469,271 
Other comprehensive income for the year	  -   	  -   	  85,201,602 	  -   	  -   	  85,201,602 
						    
Total comprehensive income	  -   	  -   	  4,459,670,873 	  -   	  -   	  4,459,670,873 
						    
Transactions with owners 						    
					   
Repayment of director’s loan	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (135,000,000)	  (135,000,000)
						    
Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2023 @ Rs. 6 						    
(60%) per ordinary share	  -   	  -   	  (1,033,003,122)	  -   	  -   	  (1,033,003,122)
						    
						    
Balance as at June 30, 2024	  1,721,671,870 	  410,116,932 	  13,975,854,172 	  2,515,984,264 	  -   	  	 18,623,627,238 
						    
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.					   
	

Surplus on
revaluation
of freehold

land

Loan from
director

Shareholders’
equity

Share capital

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

Profit before levy and taxation		    6,788,768,463 	  4,118,161,875  
			 
Adjustments for:			 
			 
 - Depreciation	 5.1.1	  1,161,591,438 	  1,235,490,600 
 - Amortization of intangible assets	 6	  4,812,746 	  5,234,729 
 - Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment	 33	  (168,231)	  (26,661,328)
 - Finance cost		   540,016,908 	  498,297,218 
 - Bad debts written off	 34	  5,912,580 	  3,666,517 
 - Advances written off	 34	  1,645,793 	  -   
 - Impairment allowance on trade debts	 12.1	  46,583,901 	  14,760,273 
 - Provision for doubtful advances	 34	  795,700 	  5,701,843 
 - Liabilities written back	 33	  (9,998,781)	  (6,919,869)
 - Recovery against doubtful advances	 33	  (1,803,671)	  (827,978)
 - Bargain purchase gain	 7.1.3	  (915,162,011)	  -   
 - Gain on discounting of investment to present value	 33	  (100,087,774)	  -   
 - Unwinding of long term payable	 35	  27,165,493 	  -   
 - Interest income on loan to associate	 33	  (242,874)	  -   
 - Provision for workers’ welfare fund	 22.4	  121,388,733 	  88,338,388 
 - Share of (profit) / loss from associate	 7.1 & 7.2	  148,696,810 	  -   
 - Provision for workers’ (profit) participation fund	 22.3	  310,258,285 	  221,394,751 
 - Interest on workers’ (profit) participation fund	 22.3	  5,168,254 	  9,855,720 
			 
			    1,346,573,299 	  2,048,330,864 
			 
Operating profit before working capital changes		   8,135,341,762 	  6,166,492,739 
			 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets			 
 - Stores and spare parts		   (14,937,522)	  110,031,626 
 - Stock in trade		   (1,314,354,616)	  (387,306,479)
 - Trade debts - considered good		   (1,474,049,866)	  (254,578,252)
 - Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables		   (623,401,494)	  218,665,402 
			 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities			 
			 
 - Contract liabilities		   67,615,184 	  6,732,961 
 - Trade and other payables		   419,235,480 	  (392,005,942)
			 
			    (2,939,892,834)	  (698,460,684)
Increase in non - current assets			 
 - Long term deposits		   (472,744,578)	  (6,904,681)
Decrease in non - current liabilities			 
 - Long term payable		   -   	  (2,342,833)
			 
Cash generated from operations		   4,722,704,350 	  5,458,784,541 
			 
Payments for workers’ profit participation	 22.3	  (231,250,471)	  (370,511,941)
Payments to workers’ welfare fund	 22.4	  (87,423,476)	  (132,300,457)
Income tax paid / deducted		   (2,157,193,856)	  (1,641,517,631)
			 
			    (2,475,867,803)	  (2,144,330,029)
			 
Net cash generated from operating activities		   2,246,836,547 	  3,314,454,512 		
	

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			 
			 
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment		   (198,130,548)	  (942,707,729)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment		   14,440,413 	  33,113,000 
Investment in associates - net		   (1,261,720,892)	  (269,500,000)
Proceeds from disposal of investments		   264,600,000 	  100,000,000 
Loan to associates		   (58,333,332)	  -   
			 
Net cash used in investing activities		   (1,239,144,359)	  (1,079,094,729)
			 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES			 
			 
Receipt of long term finances		   235,000,000 	  -   
Repayment of long term finances		   (908,455,758)	  (829,012,756)
Repayment of director’s loan		   (135,000,000)	  -   
Short term borrowings - net		   1,565,788,342 	  (996,546,259)
Finance cost paid		   (483,919,565)	  (497,700,360)
Dividend paid		   (1,030,459,160)	  (274,726,848)
			 
Net cash used in financing activities	 45	  (757,046,141)	  (2,597,986,223)
			 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		   250,646,047 	  (362,626,440)
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 		   431,749,673 	  794,376,113 
			 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year		   682,395,720 	  431,749,673 
			 
The annexed notes from 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.		
	

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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1	 The Company and its Operations			 

	 Tariq Glass Industries Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1978 and 
converted into a Public Limited Company in the year 1980. The Company’s shares are listed on 
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is domiciled in Pakistan and is  principally engaged in 
manufacturing and sale of glass containers, opal glass, tableware and float glass. 

	 The geographical locations and addresses of the Company’s business units, including 
production facilities are as under:

Business unit Geographical location
Head office / Registered office 128-J Block, Model Town, Lahore.
Manufacturing facility 33-Km, Lahore-Sheikhupura Road, Kot 

Saleem, Sheikhupura.
Float glass office 118 & 119 - D Block, Model Town, Lahore.
Sales and marketing office 10 - B, Model Town, Lahore.
Sales and marketing office 33, X - Block, DHA, Lahore.
Warehouse Ayesha Textile Mills Limited, 32-KM, Lahore-

Sheikhupura Road, Sheikhupura.
				 

2	 Basis of preparation					  
		

	 2.1	 Statement of compliance					  
	

		  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards 
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

		
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the International 

Accounting  Standards  Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;		

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and		

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.		
	

		  Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the 
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been 
followed.		

	 2.2	 Basis of measurement				   	
				  

		  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 
except to the extent of the following: 

		  Land	 Note 5	 (measured at Revalued amount)		
		  Investment in associates	 Note 7		 (measured at Equity method)		
		  Long term payables	 Note 21	 (measured at Present value)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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	 2.3	 Functional and presentation currency				   	
		

		  These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees (Rs.) which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency. All the figures have been rounded off 
to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

	 2.4	 Use of estimates and judgments					  
				  

		  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and related assumptions are based 
on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

		  These estimates and related assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accounting 
estimates are revised in the period in which such revisions are made. Significant 
management estimates in these financial statements relate primarily to:

- Useful lives, residual values, depreciation method and fair value of property, plant and 
equipment – Note 3.1 & 5

- Useful lives, residual values and amortization method of intangible assets – Note 4.3 & 6

- Provision for impairment of inventories - Note 4.4, 3.5 & 11

- Impairment loss of non-financial assets other than inventories – Note 4.4, 5 & 6

- Expected credit loss allowance – Note 3.7.1.5, 12 & 13

- Estimation of provisions - Note 4.5

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 4.9 & 28

- Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax 
asset (for carried forward tax losses and credits) - Note 3.8, 36, 27 & 20

	 However, the management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would 
not have a material effect on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements.			
					   

	 2.5	 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements			
				  

	 2.5.1	 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are 
effective in the current year					  
	

		  The following standards, amendments, and interpretations are effective for the year 
ended June 30, 2024. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either 
irrelevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to significantly impact the 
Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 
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                                     		                                       Effective Date - 
			  Annual Periods 
			  Beginning on or 
			  After

IAS 1	 Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - 	 January 01, 2023
	 Disclosure of accounting Policies	
		
		
IAS 8	 Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in 	 January 01, 2023
	 Accounting Estimates and Errors’ - Definition of accounting 
	 estimates	
		
		
IAS 12	 Amendments to IAS 12 ‘ Income taxes’ - International Tax 	 January 01, 2023
	 Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules	
		
		
IAS 12	 Amendments to ‘IAS 12 Income Taxes’ - deferred tax related 	 January 01, 2023
	 to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction	
		
		
IFRS 17	 Initial Application of ‘IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and IFRS 9 - 	 January 01, 2023
	 Comparative Information’	

		

	 2.5.2 	Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are 
not yet effective

		  The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for 
accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. 
These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the 
Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s 
financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

					     		
		                                       Effective Date - 

			  Annual Periods 
			  Beginning on or 
			  After

IAS 1	     Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) 	 January 1, 2024
		
IAS 7	     Amendments to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” 	 January 1, 2024
	  	
IAS 21	   The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates (Amendments) 	 January 1, 2024
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                                		                                      Effective Date - 
			  Annual Periods 
			  Beginning on or 
			  After

IFRS 7	 Amendments to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments Disclosures”- 	 January 1, 2024
	 Supplier Finance Arrangements	
		
IFRS 7 & 9	 Amendments to Classification and Measurement of 	 January 1, 2024
	 Financial Instruments - Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9	
		
IFRS 16	 Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases” - Clarification on how 	 January 1, 2024
	 seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and lease back 
	 transaction	
		

	 Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretations, and amendments, IASB has also 
issued the following standards, which have not been notified locally, in relation to the Company, 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at January 31, 2024:		
		
IFRS 18	 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements	
IFRS 19	 IFRS 19 ‘Subsidiaries Without Public Accountability: Disclosures’	
IFRS 1	 First Time Adoption of IFRS	
IFRS S1	 General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information	
IFRS S2	 Climate-Related Disclosures	

3	 Material Accounting Policy Information					  
	 			 

	 The Company has adopted the amendments to IAS 1 regarding the disclosure of accounting 
policies. Although these amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting 
policies themselves, they impact the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial 
statements.

	 The amendments require disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’ accounting policies. 
The amendments also provide the guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure 
of accounting policies, assisting entities to provide useful entity specific accounting policy 
information that user need to understand other information in the financial statements.

	 The material accounting policiy information related to the preparation of these financial 
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods 
presented except otherwise stated.					  
					  

	 3.1	 Property, plant and equipment				  
	

		  Owned

		  Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and identified impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is 
stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent 
impairment losses, if any. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from their fair value. Additions, 
subsequent to revaluation, are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Surplus 
on revaluation of freehold land is recognized in OCI. On disposal of particular revalued 
asset the related revaluation surplus is transferred to unappropriated profits.
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		  Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase 
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly 
attributable to acquisition or construction including expenditures on material, labour 
and overheads directly relating to construction, erection and installation of items of 
property, plant and equipment. Cost in relation to certain assets may also includes cost 
of borrowing during construction period in respect of loans taken for specific projects. 

		  Depreciation charge is based on the reducing balance method, except for furnaces which 
are being depreciated using the straight line method, so as to write off the historical cost 
of an asset over its estimated useful life at rates mentioned in note 4, after taking into 
account their residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in 
which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which an 
asset is disposed off.

		  The depreciation method and useful lives of each part of property, plant and equipment, 
that are significant in relation to the total cost of the asset, are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each reporting date.

		  Normal repairs are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred. Gains or losses on 
disposal of property, plant and equipment are included in the current year’s profit or loss. 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.				 
				  

	 3.2	 Capital work-in-progress					  
		  		

		  Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All 
expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction 
period are carried under capital work-in-progress. Cost may also include applicable 
borrowing costs. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available 
for use. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to proft or loss during the period 
in which these are incurred.					  
		

	 3.3	 Investment in associates					  
		  	

		  Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not 
control or joint control. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 
20% and 50% of voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using the 
equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost or at share in fair 
value of net assets, whichever is higher. If at initial recognition, the fair value of net assets 
is higher than the cost then bargain purchase gain shall be recorded. And if fair value 
of net assets is less than the cost then this would result in goodwill but as per IAS 28, 
recognition of goodwill is not allowed.

		  Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at 
higher of cost or share in fair value of net assets and adjusted thereafter to recognise the 
Company’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, 
and the Company’s share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee 
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates are 
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of  investment.

		  When the Company’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or 
exceeds its interest in the entity, the Company does not recognise further losses, unless 
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee company.

		  Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company and its associates are eliminated 
to the extent of the Company’s interest in the entity. Unrealised losses are also eliminated 
unless the transaction provides evidence of  impairment of the asset transferred.			
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	 3.4	 Stores and spare parts					  
	 			 

		  These are valued at lower of moving average cost and net realizable value while items 
considered obselete  if any are carried at nil value. Cost is determined using the weighted 
average method. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other 
charges paid thereon. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stores and spares 
based on management estimate.

	 3.5	 Stock in trade

		  These are stated at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.	

		  Cost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in 
bringing inventories to their present location and condition, the valuation has been 
determined as follows:

		  Raw materials and packing materials        Weighted average cost				 
			 

		  Work-in-process and finished goods        Cost of direct materials, labour and 
			                                       appropriate manufacturing overheads

		  Stock in transit is valued at a cost, comprising invoice value plus other charges invoiced 
thereon.

		  Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale (selling expenses). If the net realizable value is lower than the carrying amount, 
a write-down is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its 
net realizable value. Provision is made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow 
moving stock in trade based on management estimate.

	 3.6	 Trade debts

		  Trade receivables represent the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is 
unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less expected 
credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the reporting date. Bad debts 
are written off when identified.

	 3.7	 Financial instruments

		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

	 3.7.1	 Financial assets - Classification and measurement

		  All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial 
assets are recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade-date accounting or 
settlement date accounting.

	 3..7.1.1	 Classification
		
		  Financial assets are classified in either of the three categories: at amortized cost, at 

fair value through other comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss. 
Currently, the Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost. This classification 
is based on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.
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	 3.7.1.2  Initial recognition and measurement		

		  All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to its acquisition except for trade receivable. Trade receivables are 
initially measured at transaction price. Trade receivables are initially measured at the 
transaction price if these do not contain a significant financing component in accordance 
with IFRS 15.

		
	 3.7.1.3	 Subsequent measurement		
	
		  Financial assets measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the 

effective interest rate method (EIR). The amortized cost is reduced by impairment 
losses, if any. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognized in profit or loss.

	 3.7.1.4	 Derecognition	

		  Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from 
assets have expired. The difference between the carrying amount and the consideration 
received is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.				 
				  

	 3.7.1.5	Impairment of financial assets		

		  The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all financial 
assets which are measured at amortised cost. ECLs are based on the difference between 
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows 
that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate.

		  ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been 
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit 
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months 
(a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit 
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the 
default (a lifetime ECL).

		  For trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. 
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established 
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
forward looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

	 3.7.2	 Financial liabilities		

	 3.7.2.1	Initial recognition and measurement		

		  Financial liabilities are initially classified at amortized cost. Such liabilities are recognized 
at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument and include trade and other payables, loans or borrowings and accrued mark 
up etc. The Company does not reclassify any of its financial liabilities.

		  Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value minus transaction costs for all 
financial liabilities not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities carried 
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and transaction 
costs are credited in profit or loss.
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	 3.7.2.2	Subsequent measurement		

		  The Company measures its financial liabilities subsequently at amortized cost using the 
EIR method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR. EIR amortization is included 
as finance costs profit or loss. Difference between carrying amount and consideration 
paid is recognized in the profit or loss, when the liabilities are derecognized.

	 3.7.3	 Offsetting			 

		  A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously.

	 3.8	 Taxation

		  Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss  except to the extent that relates to items recognized 
directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized in 
other comprehensive income or equity.

		  Current

		  Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured 
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using 
the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year 
end of the reporting date.

		  The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax (higher of tax based on taxable 
income and minimum tax) and alternative corporate tax. Super tax applicable on the 
Company is also as per the applicable rates as per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. 
However, in case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized as minimum tax 
liability on turnover of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

		  Corporate tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with 
the prevailing laws of taxation. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing 
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted after taking 
into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax 
also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in 
previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. 

		  Alternative corporate tax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, after taking into 
account the required adjustments. Current tax for current and prior periods, to the extent 
unpaid is recognized as a liability. If the amount already paid irrespective of current and 
prior period exceeds the amount due to those periods the excess recognized as an 
asset.

		  The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities if, and only if, the entity 
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

		  The management periodically evaluates positions  taken in the tax returns with respect 
to situation in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provision where appropriate.
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		  When minimum tax is higher than tax calculated on taxable profits, excess amount 
is recognized as levy under IFRIC 21. Further, the Company shall also charged tax 
expense under levy when tax is calculated under final tax regime.

		  Deferred
				  
		  Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all 

temporary timing differences arising from the difference between the carrying amount 
of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for 
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a 
business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects accounting nor 
taxable profit or loss.

		  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.			
		

		  Deferred tax assets are recognized for all major deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which deductible 
temporary differences unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

		  The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

		  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent of probable future taxable profit available that will allow 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

		  Deferred tax is calculated at rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
differences reverse based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or have 
been notified for subsequent enactment by the reporting date.

		  When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using the average rates that are expected to apply to the 
taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods in which temporary differences are expected to 
reverse.

	 3.9	 Trade and other payables		

		  These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company 
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and 
are usually paid within short period. Trade and other payables are presented as current 
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They 
are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method.

	 3.10	 Revenue recognition		

		  Revenue is recognized by applying the following steps:			 

		  i) 	 Identifying contract with a customer
		  ii) 	 Identifying performance obligation in the contract
		  iii) 	 Determining transaction price of the contract
		   iv) 	 Allocating transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in 

the contract
		   v) 	 Recognizing the revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance 

obligation					  
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		  Revenue is recognized at a point in time, when the Company satisfies performance 
obligations by transferring goods to its customers and when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration 
to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Control is 
transferred when the goods are dispatched to the customers in case of local sales and 
when goods are shipped to the customers and loaded on vessel or delivered at port in 
case of export sales. The transaction price is fixed and decided mostly through internal 
and external factors. The contracts do not contain the right of return as the goods are 
dispatched to the customer after their inspection and acceptance.			
	

	 3.11	 Balances from contract with customers

		  Contract assets				  

		  A contract asset is the right to receive in exchange for goods transferred to the customer 
against which no invoice has been raised.

		  Trade receivables		

		  Trade receivables represent the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is 
unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less expected 
credit loss based on review of all outstanding amounts at the reporting date. Bad debts 
are written off when identified.

		  Contract liabilities		

		  A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which 
the Company has received consideration from the customer. A contract liability is 
recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer 
pays consideration before the Company transfers goods to the customer.

		  Right of return assets		

		  Right of return assets represent the Company’s right to recover the goods expected 
to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of 
the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential 
decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement 
of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any 
additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

		  Refund liabilities	

		  A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or 
receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately 
expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of 
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of 
each reporting period.

		
	 3.12	 Earnings per share

		  Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year.

		  Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary 
shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result from conversion of all 
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.
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	 3.13	 Segment reporting		

		  An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business 
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and 
expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company’s other components. All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating 
decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and 
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

	 3.14	 Related party transactions		

		  Transactions with related parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all 
transactions between the Company and the related party or between two or more 
segments of the Company are at arm’s length basis determined using the comparable 
uncontrolled price method except in circumstances where it is not in the interest of the 
Company to do so.

4.		 Other Accounting Policies
		
		 Other accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of these financial statements 

is set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented 
unless stated otherwise.				  
	

	 4.1	 Leases
			   	
		  For contracts entered into, or modified, on or after January 1, 2019, the Company 

assesses whether a contract contains a lease or not at the inception of a contract. The 
Company reassesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease further when the terms 
and conditions of the contract are modified.					  
	

		  The Company determines the lease term as non-cancellable period of a lease, together 
with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably 
certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the 
Company is reasonably certain to not to exercise that option.

		  The Company reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, 
or not to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant event or 
a significant change in circumstances that is within the control of the Company and affects 
whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included 
in its determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an option previously included in the 
determination of the lease term.

		  The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a 
lease.

			 
	 4.1.1	 Company as a lessee

	 4.1.1.1	 Recognition

		  The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement 
date. A commencement date is the date on which the lessor makes an underlying asset 
available for use by the lessee (the Company).

		  The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for 
short-term leases of all underlying assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less 
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and leases for which the underlying asset, when new, is of low-value. The Company 
recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on straight-
line basis over the lease term.

	 4.1.1.2	 Initial measurement 

		  Lease liability	

		  At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present 
value of the lease payments that are not paid. The lease payments are discounted using 
the interest rate implicit in the lease, or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate if 
the implicit rate is not readily available.  Generally, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

		  Lease payments comprise fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a 
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. Lease payments 
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised 
by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

		  Right-of-use asset

		  The Company initially measures the right-of-use asset at cost. This cost comprises 
the amount of lease liability as initially measured, plus any lease payments made on or 
before the commencement date, less lease incentives received, initial direct costs and 
estimated terminal costs (i.e. dismantling or other site restoration costs required by the 
terms and conditions of the lease contract).

	 4.1.1.3	 Subsequent measurement 

		  Lease liability	

		  After the commencement date, the Company re-measures the lease liability to reflect the 
affect of interest on outstanding lease liability, lease payments made, reassessments and 
lease modifications etc. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the 
lease liability and interest on lease liability are recognized in profit or loss, unless these 
are included in the carrying amount of another asset.

		  Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of lease 
liability using the incremental borrowing rate to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability.

		  Lease liability payable in foreign currency is translated to local currency of the Company 
i.e. Pak Rupees at the reporting date. Any foreign exchange differences arising on 
translation of lease liability are recognized in profit or loss.

		  Right-of-use asset		

		  After the commencement date, the Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated identified impairment losses, if any, 
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

		  The Company depreciates the cost of right-of-use asset, net of residual value, from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset 
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or the end of the lease term. However, if the lease contract transfers ownership of the 
underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of right-
of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise the purchase option, the Company 
depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful 
life of the underlying asset.

		  Depreciation is charged to profit or loss at the same rates as used for owned asset.		
	

	 4.2	 Ijarah contracts		

	 	 The Company has entered into Ijarah contracts under which it obtains usufruct of an 
asset for an agreed period for an agreed consideration. Ijarah contracts are undertaken 
in compliance with the Shariah essentials for such contracts prescribed by the State 
Bank of Pakistan.

		  The Company accounts for its Ijarah contracts in accordance with the requirements of 
IFAS 2 ‘Ijarah’. Accordingly, the Company as a Mustaj’ir (lessee) in the Ijarah contract 
recognises the Ujrah (lease) payments as an expense in the profit or loss on straight line 
basis over the Ijarah term.

	 4.3	 Intangibles assets

		  An intangible asset is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic 
benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of such asset can 
be measured reliably. Cost of intangible assets i.e. ERP software includes purchase cost 
and directly attributable expenses incidental to bring the software to its intended use.

		  Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable economic 
benefits beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. However, costs associated 
with the maintenance of software are recognized as an expense.

		  All intangibles are measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less 
accumulated amortization and identified impairment losses, if any. Amortization is 
charged to profit or loss using the straight line method so as to write off the cost of an 
asset over its estimated useful life. The amortization period and the amortization method 
for intangible assets are reviewed, at each reporting date, and adjusted if impact on 
amortization is significant. ERP software is being amortized over 5 years on straight line 
method.		

			 
	 4.4	 Impairment of non-financial assets		

		  Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill or intangible assets not 
ready to use - are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment. 
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses on fixed assets that 
offset available revaluation surplus are charged against this surplus, all other impairment 
losses are charged to profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash 
flows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than 
goodwill) are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date. Where impairment 
loss is recognized, the depreciation / amortization charge is adjusted in future periods 
to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value, over its remaining 
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useful life.  Any reversal of impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation 
increase.

	 4.5	 Provisions

		  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources shall be 
required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions 
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

	 4.6	 Employee benefits

		  Salaries, wages and benefits are accrued in the period in which the associated services 
are rendered by employees of the Company and measured on an undiscounted basis. 
The accounting policy for employee retirement benefits is described below:

		  Leave encashment		

		  Accruals are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulated unavailed leaves on 
the basis of last drawn salary and are charged to profit or loss.

		  Post employment benefits - Defined Contribution Plan			 

		  The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund for all its 
eligible employees. Equal contributions are made monthly both by the Company and the 
employees in accordance with the rules of the scheme at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

		  Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related 
service is provided. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a 
cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.			 

		
	 4.7	 Share capital

		  Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the 
issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

	 4.8	 Borrowings cost		

		  Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of 
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 
get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time 
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

	 4.9	 Contingent liabilities		

		  A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. 

		  A Contingent liabilities is also disclosed when the present obligation arises from past 
events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability.
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	 4.10	 Foreign currency transactions and balances			 

		  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees by applying the 
foreign exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are translated into Pak 
Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing at that date. Monetary translation differences are 
recognized in of profit or loss account.

	 4.11	 Cash and cash equivalents		

		  Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash 
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and cash at banks in current 
and savings accounts.

	 4.12	 Dividend distribution		

		  Dividend distribution to Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the period 
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees			 
5	 Property, plant and equipment			  			 

	 Operating fixed assets	 5.1	  11,079,591,394 	 11,747,908,365
	 Capital work in progress	 5.2	  1,210,260,811 	 1,245,135,643
	 Stores held for capitalization		   569,527,160 	 844,068,429

				     12,859,379,365 	 13,837,112,437
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5.1.5	 The property, plant and equipment of the Company are subject to first and joint pari passu 
charge as security for certain financing by banks (Note 19).				 
				  

5.1.6	 Operating fixed assets include fully depreciated assets amounting to Rs. 1,306.66 million (2023: 
Rs. 1,288.75 million)					  
				  

5.1.7	 Plant and machinery includes solar power plants having cost and written down value 
amounting to Rs. 403.29 million and 383.77 million  (2023: Rs. 75 million and Rs. 64.69 million), 
respectively.					   
				  

5.2	 Capital work in progress					  
				  

	 This represents civil work, plant and machinery that is in the process of completion and 
advances given to different suppliers for civil work and purchase of the property, plant and 
equipment.

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Civil works		   1,157,358 	  14,393,933 
	 Plant and machinery		   1,159,865,127 	  1,186,683,273 
	 Advances against CAPEX - plant and machinery		   49,238,326 	  44,058,437 

			  5.2.1	  1,210,260,811 	  1,245,135,643

5.2.1	 Reconciliation of the carrying amount is as follows:

2024

                                                  Balance as 
at July 01, 

2023

Expenditure 
incurred 

during the year

Inter 
classification

Transfers to 
operating 

assets and 
repairs

Balance as 
at June 30, 

2024

                                                       Note -------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------

	 Civil works			   14,393,933 	  1,157,358  	 -   	  (14,393,933)	  1,157,358 

	 Plant and machinery		 5.2.2	  1,186,683,273 	  282,368,426 	  44,058,437 	  (353,245,009)	  1,159,865,127 
	 Advances against CAPEX - Plant 								      

and machinery			    44,058,437 	  49,238,326 	  (44,058,437)	  -   	  49,238,326 

					     1,245,135,643 	  332,764,110 	  -   	  (367,638,942)	  1,210,260,811	
	

2023

                                                  Balance as 
at July 01, 

2022

Expenditure 
incurred 

during the year

Inter 
classification

Transfers to 
operating 

assets and 
repairs

Balance as 
at June 30, 

2023

                                                     -------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------

		 Civil works			    34,995,804 	  54,597,956 	 -	  (75,199,827)	  14,393,933 
	 Plant and machinery	 		  190,714,905 	  1,233,619,882 	  436,651,244 	  (674,302,758)	  1,186,683,273 
	 Advances against CAPEX - Plant 							     

and machinery	  		  436,651,244 	  44,058,437 	  (436,651,244)	  -   	  44,058,437 	 
			
					    662,361,953 	 1,332,276,275 	  -   	  (749,502,585)	  1,245,135,643

5.2.2	 The capital work in progress as at June 30, 2024 mainly represents the float glass furnace amounting to 
Rs. 1,054.66 million (2023 : 1,054.66 million) . 							    
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

6	 Intangible assets				   				  
	 Net carrying value			 
				  
	 Net carrying value - opening balance		   4,883,972 	  10,118,701 
	 Additions during the year		   -   	  -   
				     4,883,972 	  10,118,701 
	 Amortization during the year	 6.1	  (4,812,746)	  (5,234,729)

	 Net carrying value as at June 30,		   71,226 	  4,883,972 
				  
	 Gross carrying value			 
				  
	 Cost			    33,136,507 	  33,136,507 
	 Accumulated amortization		   (33,065,281)	  (28,252,535)

	 Net book value		   71,226 	  4,883,972 
				  
	 Amortization rate		  20%	 20%

6.1	 Amortization charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses (Note 31). 			
				  

6.2	 The cost of fully depreciated asset that is still in use as at reporting date is Rs. 32.28 million 
(2023: Rs. 6.96 million)

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

7	 Investment in associates

	 Under equity method			 
				  
	 MMM Holding (Private) Limited			 
	 115,894,381 (2023: nil) fully paid ordinary 
	 shares of Rs. 10 each			 
	 Equity held 50.00% (2023: nil)			 
	 Cost of investment Rs. 970,000,000 (2023: Nil) 			 
	 Carrying amount of investment	 7.1	  2,414,599,000 	  -   
				  
	 Lucky TG (Private) Limited			 
	 490,000 (2023: 26,950,000) fully paid ordinary 
	 shares of Rs. 10 each			 
	 Equity held 49.00% (2023: 49.00%)			 
	 Cost of investment Rs. 4,900,000 
	 (2023: Rs. 269,500,000) 			 
	 Carrying amount of investment	 7.2	  10,390,940 	  269,500,000 

				     2,424,989,940 	  269,500,000
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

7.1	 MMM Holding (Private) Limited 					  
				  

	 Cost of investment	 7.1.2	  970,000,000 	  -   
	 Bargain purchase gain	 7.1.3	  915,162,011 	  -   
	 Further investment on purchase of right shares	 7.1.4	  583,387,560 	  -   
	 Share in net assets during the period		   (53,950,571)	  -   

				     2,414,599,000 	  -   
				  
7.1.1	 Reconciliation of the above information to the 
	 carrying amount of interest in MMM Holding 
	 (Private) Limited is as under:			 
				  
	 Net assets of consolidated financial 
	 statements of the associate		   4,829,198,000 	  -   
				  
	 Percentage of shareholding in associate		  50.00%	 0.00%
				  
	 Carrying amount of investment		   2,414,599,000 	  - 

7.1.2	 This represents the purchase of 57,555,625 shares, constituting 50% of the shareholding of 
MMM Holding (Private) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of Pakistan, with its 
registered office located at 27-H, Pace Tower, First Floor, College Road, Gulberg II, Lahore. The 
investment was acquired for a total consideration of Rs. 970 million. Out of the total consideration 
of Rs. 970 million, Rs. 620 million was paid in cash, while Rs. 350 million is payable in 12 equal 
quarterly installments of Rs. 29.17 million starting from March 2024 (refer note 21).  

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

7.1.3	 Bargain purchase gain 					  
				  

	 Fair value of net assets on date of initial investment		   1,885,162,011 	  -   
				 
	 Less: Cost of investment			 
	 - Cash Consideration		   (620,000,000)	  -   
	 - Deferred Consideration	 21	  (350,000,000)	  -   

					     (970,000,000)	  -   

					     915,162,011 	  -

7.1.4	 This represents the purchase of 58,338,756 (2023: Nil) rights shares issued by MMM Holding 
(Private) Limited at a par value of Rs. 10.

7.1.5	 The principal objectives of MMM Holding (Private) Limited is to serve as a holding company for 
its subsidiary and managing this investment.
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7.1.6	 The Company accounts for its investment in MMM Holding (Private) Limited (the Associate) 
under equity method as prescribed in IAS 28 (Investments in Associates). Information extracted 
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Associate is as follows:			
						   

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Current assets		   885,957,000 	  -   
	 Non-current assets		   7,361,788,000 	  -   
	 Current liabilities		   2,484,844,000 	  -   
	 Non-current liabilities		   206,423,000 	  -   
	 Subordinated loans - unsecured		   1,234,846,000 	  -   
	 Equity - parent		   4,829,198,000 	  -   
	 NCI			    (507,566,000)	  -   
	 Total assets		   8,247,745,000 	  -   
	 Revenue		   161,345,000 	  -   
	 Net loss for the year		   (518,073,000)	  -   
	 Other comprehensive income		   237,686,000 	  -   
	 Total comprehensive loss for the year		   (280,387,000)	  -   
				 
7.1.7	 The Company has made investments during the year; therefore, comparative balances for the 

consolidated financial statements have not been presented.			 
				 
7.2	 Lucky TG (Private) Limited 			 
				 
	 Opening balance		   269,500,000 	  269,500,000 
	 Share in net assets		   5,490,940 	  -   
	 Divestment of shares during the year	 7.2.3	  (264,600,000)	  -   

					     10,390,940 	  269,500,000 
				 
7.2.1	 Reconciliation of the above information to the carrying 
	 amount of interest in Lucky TG (Private) Limited is as under:			 
				 
	 Net assets of the associate		   21,206,000 	  535,862,000 
				 
	 Percentage of shareholding in associate		  49.00%	 49.00%
				 
	 Carrying amount of investment		   10,390,940 	  262,572,380 	

	

7.2.2	 Lucky TG (Private) Limited was incorporated under the laws of Pakistan on October 25, 2022, 
with its registered office located at 5 West Wharf Road, Karachi. The principal line of business of 
Lucky TG (Private) Limited is to carry on the business of manufacturing, moulding, purchasing, 
selling, importing and / or exporting, marketing, distributing and trading in float glass and its 
variants.					   
					  

7.2.3	 This represents the buyback of 26,460,000 shares of Lucky TG (Private) Limited at par value of 
Rs. 10 on June 28, 2024. The payment for this buyback was received in full during the year.	

7.2.4	 The share in the net assets of the associate is calculated based on its audited financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 (2023: unaudited financial statements).

7.2.5	 The Company accounts for its investment in Lucky TG (Private) Limited (the Associate) under 
equity method as prescribed in IAS 28 (Investments in Associates). Information extracted from 
the audited financial statements of the Associate is as follows:
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Current assets		   21,760,000 	  536,542,000 
	 Current liabilities		   554,000 	  680,000 
	 Equity		   21,206,000 	  535,862,000 
	 Total assets		   21,760,000 	  536,542,000 
	 Revenue		   31,619,000 	  -   
	 Net profit / (loss) for the year		   25,344,000 	  (13,814,000)
	 Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year		   25,344,000 	  (13,814,000)
				  
8	 Long term advances and deposits 		

	 Advance rentals against ijarah		   -   	  3,796,584 
	 Guarantes margin deposits		   38,703,662 	  37,250,000 
	 Deposit against utilities 		   519,306,503 	  44,304,253 
	 Others		   2,775,000 	  2,689,750 

					     560,785,165 	  88,040,587 
	 Less: Current portion 	 13	  (21,203,662)	  (20,196,584)

					     539,581,503 	  67,844,003

9	 Loan to associate			 

	 Loan to MMM Holding (Private) Limited	 9.1	  58,333,332 	  -     	
	

9.1	 The Company has entered into an agreement with M/s MMM Holding (Private) Limited, an 
associated company, for a long-term loan amounting to Rs. 350 million. This loan will be 
disbursed in 12 equal quarterly installments of Rs. 29.17 million. The Company has disbursed 
two installments during the year. The period of the loan is three years from the date of the 
first disbursement, and upon accumulation of Rs. 350 million, this loan shall be converted 
into ordinary shares of MMM Holding (Private) Limited. The markup on this loan is charged at 
average borrowing cost of the Company plus 1% or the 3-month KIBOR plus 1.5%, whichever is 
higher and is payable on quarterly basis.

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
10	 Stores and spare parts				  

	 Stores		   604,979,336 	  588,433,833 
	 Spare parts		   655,890,896 	  657,498,877 

					     1,260,870,232 	  1,245,932,710 	
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
11	 Stock in trade				  

	 Raw materials		   1,281,247,667 	  1,034,972,153 
	 Chemical and ceramic colors 		   309,945,911 	  360,870,472 
	 Packing materials		   221,353,679 	  218,739,165 
	 Work in process		   119,802,256 	  112,256,421 
	 Trading goods	 11.1	  253,777,069 	  -   
	 Finished goods		   3,770,316,258 	  2,905,388,983 

					     5,956,442,840 	  4,632,227,194 
	 Less: Provision for slow moving finished goods	 11.2	  (33,638,908)	  (23,777,878)

					     5,922,803,932 	  4,608,449,316 

11.1	 This includes trading material purchased from  	M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a related party, 
	 amounting to Rs. 2.97 million (2023: Nil).

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

11.2	 Provision for slow moving stock		

		 Opening balance		   23,777,878 	  65,346,843 
	 Provision for the year		   9,861,030 	  23,777,878 

					     33,638,908 	  89,124,721 
	 Less: Written off during the year		   -   	  (65,346,843)

			   		  33,638,908 	  23,777,878

12	 Trade debts	

	 	Local debtors - considered good		   3,214,686,115 	  1,761,976,971 
	 Local debtors - considered doubtful		   99,303,577 	  53,156,795 
	 Foreign debtors - considered good		   164,765,595 	  195,921,354 
	 Foreign debtors - considered doubtful		   671,890 	  671,890 

					     3,479,427,177 	  2,011,727,010 
	 Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL)	 12.1	  (99,975,467)	  (53,828,685)

					     3,379,451,710 	  1,957,898,325 
12.1	 Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL)			 
				 
	 Opening balance		   53,828,685 	  39,860,377 
	 Add: Impairment allowance for the year - net		   46,583,901 	  14,760,273 

					     100,412,586 	  54,620,650 
	 Less: Bad debts written off during the year		   (437,119)	  (791,965)

	 Closing balance 		   99,975,467 	  53,828,685
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12.2	 Detail of trade receivables from export sales

Jurisdiction	
 Gross Export 

Sales During the 
Year

 Gross 
Receivables at 

Year End

 Names of 
Defaulting 

Parties

 Legal Action 
Taken

			   	 Rupees 	  Rupees 	   		
						   
	 Sri Lanka	  453,203,665 	  36,610,096 	    	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Brazil	  	 400,956,985 	  -   	    	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Italy		   246,358,434 	  8,726,245 	     	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Saudi Arabia	  220,809,101 	  22,919,954 	    	 No default 	  N/A 
	 South Africa	  129,534,752 	  -   	     	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Cameroon	  115,203,330 	  22,573,513 	   	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Poland	 	 110,077,956 	  4,694,193 	     	 No default 	  N/A 
	 United Arab Emirates	  105,391,312 	  11,720,386 	    	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Others		  674,012,004 	  57,521,208 	    	 No default 	  N/A 
	 Total		   2,455,547,539 	  164,765,595 			 
							    
12.3	 The Company has obtained security deposits amounting to Rs. 319.83 million (2023: Rs. 425.19 

million) from various customers against these receviables. 

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
13.	 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables			

	 Advances to suppliers (unsecured - considered good)		   264,669,766 	  312,343,447 
	 Advances to staff (unsecured - considered good)		   5,712,247 	  2,332,685 
	 Current portion of long term advances and deposits		   21,203,662 	  20,196,584 
	 Security deposits		   3,145,000 	  2,365,000 
	 Sales tax - net		   -   	  20,004,440 
	 Prepayments		   41,122,944 	  33,198,311 
	 Interest income receivable on loan to associate		   242,874 	  -   
	 Other receivables	 13.1	  670,866,991 	  -   

					     1,006,963,484 	  390,440,467 
	 Provision against doubtful advances	 13.2	  (6,658,274)	  (14,148,881)

					     1,000,305,210 	  376,291,586

13.1	 This represents amount receivable from M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a related party, as at the 
reporting date against the sales of stores, spares, raw materials and receivable against guarantee 
commission. The maximum outstanding balance during the year was Rs. 1,496.71 million (2023: 
Nil). The aging of this balance is as under:	

Related party
Less than 30 

days 
More than 
30 but less 

than 60 days 

 More than 
60 but less 

than 90 
days  

 More than 
90 but less 
than 180 

days  

 More 
than 180 

days 
 Total 

                                                                  ------------------------------------------------------Rupees ------------------------------------------------------

			  2024	  670,866,991	 -	 -	 -	 -	     670,866,991

				   2023	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

								     

Baluchistan Glass Limited
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
13.2	 Provision against doubtful advances 				  

	 Opening balance		   14,148,881 	  9,275,016 
	 Add: provision for the year	 34	  795,700 	  5,701,843 

					     14,944,581 	  14,976,859 
	 Less: written off during the year		   (6,482,636)	  -   
	 Less: Recovery against doubtful advances	 33	  (1,803,671)	  (827,978)

	 Closing balance		   6,658,274 	  14,148,881

14	 Cash and bank balances

	 Cash in hand		   11,448,857 	  9,082,025 
			
	 Bank balances:			 
			
	 Local currency			 
			
	 - Current accounts - conventional banks		   227,643,280 	  181,791,316 
			
	 - Current accounts - shariah compliant banks		   72,637,855 	  147,048,690 
			
	 - Mark-up based deposits and saving accounts - 
		   conventional banks	 14.1 & 14.2	  360,554,050 	  54,856,380 
			
	 - Profit based deposits and saving accounts - 
		   shariah compliant banks		   1,537,597 	  1,381,612 

					     662,372,782 	  385,077,998 
			
		 Foreign currency - current accounts		   8,574,081 	  37,589,650 

					     682,395,720 	  431,749,673

14.1	 Saving accounts yeild interest / profit at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates ranging 
from 17.5% to 22.5%  (2023: 12% to 16%) per annum.	

14.2	 This includes Rs. 16.37 million (2023: Rs. 13.83 million) of unclamied dividend amount.			
	

14.3	 The above figure of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash 
equivalents shown in the statement of cash flows at the end of financial year.		
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15	 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

	 2024	 2023		  2024	 2023
	                    Number of Shares	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
	   67,750,000 	  67,750,000 	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
			   each fully paid in cash 		    677,500,000 	  677,500,000  
							     
							     
	   100,259,187 	  100,259,187  	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
			   allotted as fully paid bonus shares 		   1,002,591,870 	  1,002,591,870 		
					   
							     
	  4,158,000 	  4,158,000  	 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued 
			   as consideration other than cash	 15.4	  41,580,000 	  41,580,000  
							     
	  172,167,187 	  172,167,187 			    1,721,671,870 	  1,721,671,870  

	 15.1 	 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to residual assets of the Company. Ordinary 
shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other 
entitlements in the form of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Company. 
Voting and other rights are in proportion to the shareholding.

	 15.2	 Shares held by related parties are as follows:				  

			   2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
			                              (Percentage)                          (Number of shares) 
	 Omer Glass Industries Limited		  10.53%	 10.53%	  18,126,000 	  18,126,000 
	 M & M Glass (Private) Limited		  1.26%	 1.26%	  2,176,977 	  2,176,977 
	 Directors		  37.69%	 39.18%	  64,886,460 	  67,460,274 
	 Executives		  11.54%	 10.05%	  19,868,093 	  17,294,560 

					      105,057,530 	  105,057,811 

	 15.3 	 Movement in number of shares issued

		  2024	 2023 
		                            (Number of shares)		
		

	 Opening balance		   172,167,187 	  137,733,750 
	 Issuance of bonus shares / (shares cancelled)		   -   	  34,433,437 

	 Closing balance		   172,167,187 	  172,167,187 
	

	 15.4 	 During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Company issued 4,158,000 ordinary shares, 
for consideration other than cash, i.e. against import of plant and machinery. Under the 
terms of the contract, the shares were issued at Rs. 45.21 per share including share 
premium of Rs. 35.21 per share.

16	 Share premium					  
	

	 This reserve can be utilized by the Company only for the purpose specified in section 81(2) of 
the Companies Act, 2017.
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		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

17	 Surplus on revaluation of freehold land

	 Land - Freehold		   2,515,984,264 	  2,515,984,264 

	  17.1	 This represents surplus arisen on revaluation of freehold land. The latest revaluation 
of freehold land was carried out by an independent valuer, M/S Hamid Mukhtar & Co. 
(Private) Limited as at June 23, 2021. The revaluation of the freehold land was based on 
inquiries from real estate agents and property dealers in near vicinity of the freehold 
land.

	 17.2	 The surplus on revaluation is not available for distribution to the shareholders in 
accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

18	 Loan from director
					    	
	 This represented interest free loan obtained from the Chief Executive / Managing Director 

of the Company to meet the Company’s liquidity requirements. During the year, this loan has 
been fully repaid.	

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

19	 Long term finances - secured			 
							    

		  	
	 The Bank of Punjab - Demand finance 1	 19.1 & 19.4	  28,117,000 	  46,865,001 
	 The Bank of Punjab - Demand finance 2	 19.2 & 19.4	  447,444,000 	  500,000,000 
	 The Bank of Punjab - Demand Finance 3	 19.3 & 19.4	  232,986,000 	  349,470,000 
	 Bank Alfalah Limited - Term Finance	 19.5	  235,000,000 	  -   
	 Askari Bank Limited - Term Finance	 19.6	  218,750,000 	  343,750,000 
	 Habib Bank Limited - Term Finance	 19.7	  291,302,265 	  466,294,016 
	 MCB Bank Limited - Demand Finance	 19.8	  140,408,000 	  265,316,000 
	 National Bank of Pakistan - Demand Finance	 19.9	  299,612,338 	  473,120,344 
	 Allied Bank Limited - Term Loan	 19.10	  254,289,000 	  376,549,000 
				  
				     2,147,908,603 	  2,821,364,361 
				  
	 Less: Current portion of long term financing 
		  shown under current liabilities	 19.11	  (986,817,501)	  (914,360,754)

				     1,161,091,102 	  1,907,003,607  

	 19.1	 This demand finance facility was availed to meet the capital expenditure requirements 
of the Company. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 80 million (2023: 
Rs. 80 million) which included sub-limit of SBP Refinance for Renewable Energy. During 
the prior years, the facility was converted to SBP Refinance for Renewable Energy.  This 
facility is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments ending on November 2025 and 
carries markup at SBP rate plus 50 bps against SBP Refinance for Renewable Energy 
(2023: SBP rate plus 50 bps) per annum, payable on quarterly basis.
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	 19.2	 This demand finance facility was availed to rebuild the float glass furnace. The sanctioned 

limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million), which included 
sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) for the SBP long term 
finance facility (LTFF). During the prior years, the facility was converted to SBP long term 
finance facility (LTFF).  This facility is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments ending 
on June 2028 and carries markup at SBP rate plus 50 bps against SBP LTFF (2023: SBP 
rate plus 50 bps) per annum, payable on quarterly basis.

	 19.3	 This demand finance facility was availed to finance new production line for manufacturing 
of float glass. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs. 
700 million) which included sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) 
of SBP long term finance facility (LTFF). During the prior years, the demand finance was 
fully repaid and only SBP LTFF facility is being availed now. LTFF is repayable in 16 equal 
quarterly installments ending on April 2026 and carries markup at SBP rate plus 50 bps 
against SBP LTFF (2023: SBP rate plus 50 bps for LTFF) per annum, payable on quarterly 
basis.

		
	 19.4	 These facilites are secured by way of first joint pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 1,734 

million (2023: Rs. 1,734 million) over present and future fixed assets of the Company and 
ranking charge amounting to Rs.  258.542 million (2023: Rs. 258.542 million) .

		
	 19.5	 This term finance facility is availed during the year to meet the capital expenditure 

requirements for the Company. The sanctioned limit amounts to Rs. 235 million (2023: 
Rs. Nil) which includes sub-limit amounting to Rs. 235 million (2023: Rs. Nil) of SBP 
Refinance for Renewable Energy. This facility is secured by way of combined security of 
first joint pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 867 million (2023: Rs. Nil) out of which Rs. 
314 million is allocated against this facility over the present and future fixed assets of the 
Company.  The facility is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments , ending on April 
2030 including a grace period of 2 years and carries markup at 1 month KIBOR plus 50 
bps per anum, payable on quarterly basis.

	 	
	 19.6	 This term finance facility was availed for financing new production line for manufacturing 

of float glass. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs. 
700 million) which included sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) 
of SBP LTFF. This facility is secured by way of first joint pari passu charge on present and 
future fixed assets of the Company amounting to Rs. 934 million. During the prior years, 
the term finance was fully repaid and only SBP LTFF facility is being availed now. LTFF 
facilities are repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments, ending on February 2026 and 
carries markup at SBP rate plus 50 bps against SBP LTFF (2023: SBP rate plus 50 bps) 
per annum, payable on quarterly basis.

		
	 19.7	 This term finance facility was availed for financing new production line for manufacturing 

of float glass. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023: Rs. 
700 million) which included sub-limit of Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) of SBP 
LTFF. This facility is secured by way of first joint pari passu charge on present and future 
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fixed assets of the Company amounting to Rs. 934 million. The term finance facility is 
repayable in 48 equal monthly installments ending on May 2026 and LTFF in 16 equal 
quarterly installments ending on May 2026. The facility carries markup at 3 months 
KIBOR plus 50 bps against demand finance and SBP rate plus 50 bps against SBP LTFF 
(2023: 3 months KIBOR plus 50 bps and SBP rate plus 50 bps) per annum, payable on 
quarterly basis.

	 19.8	 This demand finance facility was availed to finance new production line for manufacturing 
of float glass. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 700 million (2023: 700 
million) which included sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: Rs. 500 million) of 
SBP LTFF. During the prior years, the demand finance has been fully repaid and only 
SBP LTFF facility is being availed now. The facility is secured by way of first joint pari 
passu charge amounting to Rs. 934 million over all present and future fixed assets of the 
Company. LTFF is repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments ending on April 2026 and 
carries markup at SBP rate plus 50 bps (2023: SBP rate plus 50 bps) per annum, payable 
on quarterly basis.

	 19.9	 This demand finance facility was availed for financing new production line for 
manufacturing of float glass.  The sanctioned limit  for this facility amounted to Rs. 700 
million (2023: Rs. 700 million) which included sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million 
(2023: Rs. 500 million) of SBP LTFF. The facility is secured by way of combined security 
of first joint pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 997 million out of which Rs.934 million 
is allocated to this facility over all present and future fixed assets of the Company. The 
demand finance and LTFF facilities are repayable in 48 equal monthly installments and 
16 equal quarterly installments respectively, ending on February 2026. The facility carries 
markup at 3 months KIBOR plus 50 bps against demand finance and SBP rate plus 50 
bps against SBP LTFF (2023: 3 months KIBOR plus 50 bps and SBP rate plus 50 bps) per 
annum, payable on quarterly basis.

	 19.10	This term loan facility was availed to meet capital expenditure requirement of the 
Company. The sanctioned limit for this facility amounted to Rs. 500 million (2023: 500 
million) which included sub-limit amounting to Rs. 500 million (2023: 500 million) of SBP 
LTFF. During the prior years, the facility was converted to SBP long term finance facility 
(LTFF). The facility is secured by way of first joint pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 667 
million on all the present and future fixed assets of the Company. The term loan and LTFF 
facilities are repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments, ending on December 2026. The 
facility carries markup at 3 months KIBOR plus 40 bps against term loan and SBP rate 
plus 100 bps against SBP LTFF (2023: 3 months KIBOR plus 40 bps and SBP rate plus 100 
bps) per annum, payable on quarterly basis.
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20	 Deferred taxation

	 The deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net 
settlement. 

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
					   
	 Credit / (debit) balances arising in respect of timing 
	 differences relating to:				  
					   
	 Taxable temporary differences				  
					   
	 -	 Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization		   1,044,324,380 	  954,918,103 
	 -	 Investment in associate		   130,005,357 	  -   

					      1,174,329,737 	  954,918,103 

	 Deductible temporary differences				  
					   
	 -	 Impairment allowance on trade debts		   (38,990,432)	  (19,124,793)
	 -	 Payable against investment		   (28,439,690)	  -   
	 -	 Provision for slow moving stocks		   (13,119,174)	  -   
	 -	 Provision for doubtful advances		   (2,596,727)	  (5,026,956)
				  
			    		  (83,146,023)	  (24,151,749)
				  
					      1,091,183,714 	  930,766,354 		

	
	 20.1	 Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities-net			 
					   
		  Opening balance		   930,766,354 	  866,233,780 
		  Recognized in statement of profit or loss 		   145,381,783 	  64,532,574 
		  Recognized in other comprehensive income		   15,035,577 	  -   

		  Closing balance		   1,091,183,714 	  930,766,354 		
		

	 20.2	 Deferred tax assets / liabilities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 
39% (2023: 39%).			 

				  
	 20.3	 Analysis of change in deferred tax

Statement of Financial 
Position

Statement of Profit or 
Loss

2024 2023 2024 2023
						    
                                                                                         	----------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------
	
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortization	  1,044,324,380 	  954,918,103 	  89,406,277 	  73,854,377 
Investment in associates	  130,005,357 	  -   	  114,969,780 	  -   
Impairment allowance on trade debts	  (38,990,432)	  (19,124,793)	  (19,865,639)	  (7,094,214)
Payable against investment	  (28,439,690)	  -   	  (28,439,690)	  -   
Provision for slow moving stocks	  (13,119,174)	  -   	  (13,119,174)	  -   
Provision for doubtful advances	  (2,596,727)	  (5,026,956)	  2,430,229 	  (2,227,589)

	  1,091,183,714 	  930,766,354 	  145,381,783 	  64,532,574
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

21	 Long term payable				  
	 Opening balance		   -   		   -   
	 Payable against investment	  7.1.3 	  350,000,000 	  -   
	 Discounting of long term payable	 33	  (100,087,774)	  -   

				     249,912,226 	  -   
	 Unwinding of long term payable	 35	  27,165,493 	  -   
	 Payments made during the year		   (58,333,332)	  -   

	 Closing balance		   218,744,387 	  -   
	 Less: current portion shown under current liabilities		   (73,525,103)	  -   

				     145,219,284 	  -   
 	

22	 Trade and other payables				  
	 Trade creditors	 22.1	  1,548,880,451 	  1,137,819,954 
	 Accrued expenses		   368,593,095 	  331,277,910 
	 Provident fund payable		   9,487,953 	  8,711,105 
	 Retention payable		   3,216,963 	  5,298,179 
	 Security deposits	 22.2	  342,691,399 	  444,351,747 
	 Workers’ (profit) participation fund	 22.3	  315,426,539 	  231,250,471 
	 Workers’ welfare fund	 22.4	  117,898,148 	  83,932,891 
	 Withholding tax payable		   11,181,708 	  10,221,938 
	 Sales tax payable - net		   65,878,823 	  -   

				     2,783,255,079 	  2,252,864,195 
		
	 22.1	 This includes amount payable to M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a related party, 

amounting to Rs. 72.48 million (2023: Nil). The maximum amount outstanding during the 
year was Rs. 172.48 million (2023: Nil).

	 22.2	 These include interest-free security deposits obtained from dealers and distributors 
of the Company amounting to Rs. 319.83 million (2023: Rs. 425.19 million). These are 
adjustable or repayable on cancellation or withdrawal of the dealership / distributorship 
or cessation of business with the Company. As per the terms of the agreement, the 
Company can utilize these funds for the Company’s operations.

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees	   
22.3	 Workers’ (profit) participation fund				   		   
	 Opeing balance		   231,250,471 	  370,511,941 
	 Expense recognised during the year	 34	  310,258,285 	  221,394,751 
	 Interest on workers’ (profit) participation fund	 35	  5,168,254 	  9,855,720 

				     546,677,010 	  601,762,412 
	 Payments made during the year		   (231,250,471)	  (370,511,941)

	 Closing balance		   315,426,539 	  231,250,471 

22.4	 Workers’ welfare fund			 
				  
	 Opeing balance 		   83,932,891 	  127,894,960 
	 Expense recognised during the year	 34	  121,388,733 	  88,338,388 

				     205,321,624 	  216,233,348 
	 Payments made during the year		   (87,423,476)	  (132,300,457)

	 Closing balance		   117,898,148 	  83,932,891 
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

23	 Contract liabilities				   	
	 Advances from customers 			 
	  - Local		   262,057,763 	  235,035,244 
	  - Foreign		   101,207,636 	  63,627,831 

				     363,265,399 	  298,663,075 

	 23.1	 This represents consideration received in advance from the customers for future sale of 
goods. Revenue recognized from amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning 
of the year amounted to Rs. 298.66 million (2023: Rs. 291.93 million).	

		
		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

24	 Accrued mark-up			  		
	 Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks:					  

			 
	  - Long term finances		   28,529,377 	  37,602,374 
	  - Short term borrowings		   102,847,331 	  43,069,705 
			 
	 Islamic mode of financing:			 
			 
	  - Short term borrowings		   8,926,321 	  3,533,607 

				     140,303,029 	  84,205,686 
			  		
25	 Current portion of long term liabilities			  		
	 Long term finances - secured	 19	  986,817,501 	  914,360,754 
	 Current portion of long term payable	 21	  73,525,103 	  -   

				     1,060,342,604 	  914,360,754 
			 
26	 Short term borrowings			  		
	 Banking companies and other financial 			 
	 institutions (secured)			  		
	 Short term running facilities	 26.1	  1,766,620,768 	  731,922,448    		
	 Islamic mode of financing (secured)			  		
	  Islamic finance	 26.2	  720,714,022 	  189,624,000 
			 
		  			 
				     2,487,334,790 	  921,546,448 

			 
	 26.1	 This represents running finance, cash finance, export refinance, money market and 

short term advance facilities availed from various banks / financial institutions to meet 
the working capital requirements with a cumulative sanctioned limit amounting to Rs. 
6,250 million (2023: Rs. 6,050 million). Mark up on these facilities ranges from 1 to 3 
months KIBOR plus 5 bps to 50 bps per annum (2023: 1 to 3 months KIBOR plus 5 bps to 
50 bps per annum) and is payable on quarterly basis. These facilities are secured by way 
of joint pari passu charge amounting to Rs. 8,333.67 million (2023: Rs. 8,067 million) on 
present and future current assets of the Company. These facilities have various maturity 
dates up to January 31, 2025.
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	  26.2 	This represents various Islamic financing facilities availed from different Islamic banks / 
Islamic window of conventional banks having cumulative sanctioned limit amounting to 
Rs. 1,600 million (2023: Rs. 1,600 million). Profit on these facilities ranges from 3 months 
KIBOR plus 5 bps to 50 bps (2023: 3 months KIBOR plus 5 to 50 bps) per annum payable on 
quarterly basis. These facilities are secured by way of joint pari passu charge amounting 
to Rs. 2,133.67 million (2023: Rs. 2,023.67 million) on present and future current assets of 
the Company. These facilities have various maturity dates up to March 31, 2025.

	
		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

27	 Taxation - net		
			  		
	 Opening balance		   144,467,017 	  251,486,425 
	 Add: Charge for the year		   1,634,431,910 	  1,120,544,942 
	 Add: Super tax		   602,143,466 	  386,394,807 
	 Add: Appeal orders		   -   	  25,384,123 
	 Add: Prior year adjustment		   (603,267)	  (30,976,966)

				     2,380,439,126 	  1,752,833,331 
	 Less: Payment / adjustments		   (2,124,248,556)	  (1,608,366,314)

				     256,190,570 	  144,467,017 
28	 Contingencies and commitments					   	
	 Contingencies	
	 28.1	 Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) served a demand amounting to Rs.  198.44 

million (2023: Rs. 198.44 million) with reference to Gas Infrastructure Development 
Cess (GIDC), which represents the period prior to promulgation of Gas Development 
Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015. The SNGPL demand the GIDC cess from 
the client relating to pervious period. The Company, being aggrieved, challenged the 
demand before the Honourable Lahore High Court. The appropriate interim protection 
was granted to the Company by the Court and constituted the High Powered Committee 
(HPC).  The determination by HPC, constituted by the Honourable High Court, is still 
pending to date. The management is hopeful that no liability will accrued to the Company 
therefore, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

	
	 28.2	 The Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue (DCIR) raised income tax demand 

amounting to Rs. 147.12 million  (2023: Rs. 147.12 million), relating to the tax year 2011 
and 2014. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland 
Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). The Company also filed writ petition no. 231682-18 before 
the Honourable Lahore High Court (LHC) which has granted stay against recovery 
proceedings. The CIR (Appeals) partially decided the case in favour of the Company 
and partially remanded the case back to the taxation officer for proceedings. However, 
the Company has filed an appeal before ATIR on November 28, 2018 against the said 
order of CIR (Appeals), which has been remanded back to the concerned officer via 
order dated July 23, 2024 which is pending adjudication. Based on the opinion of the 
tax advisor, the Company is hopeful of a favorable outcome in the case; accordingly, no 
provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

	
	 28.3	 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue initiated proceedings under Section 122(9) 

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, with respect to the tax year 2019, and passed an order 
wherein the refund adjustment of prior tax years, i.e., 2015 and 2018, amounting to Rs. 79.75 
million was rejected, and a default surcharge amounting to Rs. 3.10 million was imposed 
on account of alleged short payment of advance tax. Being aggrieved, the Company filed 
an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A). Subsequently, the 
case was transferred from CIR-A to the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore (ATIR). 
As of the reporting date, the case is not fixed for hearing. Based on the opinion of the 
tax advisor, the Company is hopeful of a favorable outcome in the case; accordingly, no 
provision has been recorded in these financial statements.
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	 28.4	 Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue initiated the proceedings  u/s 161 (1) of the 

Ordinance through a notice dated September 07, 2023 for the tax year 2018 requiring the 
Company to submit the reconciliation of expenses as per Audited Accounts of the subject 
year. The said proceedings were finalized by the ACIR by passing the order dated April 
02, 2024 where the tax under different heads amounting to Rs 1.51 million was imposed. 
Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue 
Appeals. As at the reporting date, the case has not been fixed for hearing. Based on the 
opinion of the tax advisor, the Company is hopeful of a favorable outcome in the case; 
accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these financial statements.

	
	 28.5	 Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), through a notice, required the Company to 

deposit the alleged inadmissible input tax claimed during the tax periods from December 
2021 to October 2022, amounting to Rs. 252.07 million, along with a penalty of Rs. 12.60 
million. The Company provided the requisite information and data to the DCIR. The DCIR 
finalized the proceedings by passing an order dated January 31, 2024, where partial relief 
was provided to the Company to the extent of Rs. 217.72 million, and a sales tax demand 
of Rs. 34.35 million was raised. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before 
the Learned Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals (CIR-A). The Learned CIR-A-V 
confirmed the demand of Rs. 34.35 million, along with the penalty and default surcharge. 
The Company, being aggrieved the order, preferred an appeal before the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore (ATIR). The ATIR, after considering the arguments put 
forth, remanded the case back to the assessing officer by passing the Appellate order 
dated July 08, 2024. Based on the opinion of the tax advisor, the Company is hopeful of 
a favorable outcome in the case; accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these 
financial statements.

	
	 28.6	 The Deputy Commissioner of Inland Revenue (DCIR) on December 29, 2017, raised sales 

tax demand of Rs. 248.59 million (2023: Rs. 248.59 million) million along with a penalty of 
Rs. 12.39 million (2023: Rs. 12.39 million) relating to the tax year 2014. Being aggrieved, 
the Company filed an appeal before CIR(A) on the basis that demand was created on 
an assumption and needs to be annulled. The CIR(A) vide order no. 01 dated July 29, 
2018, has deleted the demand of Rs. 31.39 million (2023: Rs. 31.39 million) along with 
penalty of Rs. 1.57 million (2023: Rs. 1.57 million). The demand amounting to Rs. 209.35 
million (2023: Rs. 209.35 million) along with penalty of Rs. 10.47 million (2023: Rs. 10.47 
million) was remanded back to DCIR while the order of CIR(A) was silent relating to the 
tax demand of Rs. 7.84 million (2023: Rs. 7.84 million) along with fine of Rs. 0.36 million 
(2023: Rs. 0.36 million). Being aggrieved, the Company filed second appeal before ATIR 
on July 29, 2018, against the remand back of the case by CIR(A) pertaining to the demand 
of Rs. 217.19 million (2023: Rs. 217.19 million) along with penalty  of Rs. 10.82 million 
(2023: Rs. 10.82 million). The appeal was heard on January 12, 2024 and the judgment 
has been reserved for order. The Company on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is 
hopeful of favourable outcome of the case, accordingly no provision has been recorded 
in these financial statements.

	 28.7	 The Additional Commissioner Enforcement - III passed an order dated March 10, 2021, 
for the tax year 2016, u/s 14 & 19 of the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012, creating 
demand of Rs. 84.74 million (2023: Rs. 84.74 million) including penalty amounting to Rs. 
4.04 million (2023: Rs. 4.04 million). Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before 
Commissioner (Appeals) Punjab Revenue Authority, Lahore on May 31, 2021, which is 
pending adjudication. The Company on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful 
of favourable outcome of the case, accordingly no provision has been recorded in these 
financial statements.

	 28.8	 The Additional Commissioner Enforcement - III  initiated the proceedings for non-
deduction of Punjab Sales Tax dated January 19, 2021, for the tax year 2017, u/s 52 of 
the Punjab Sales Tax on Services (withholding) Rules, 2015. The said proceedings were 
finalized by the Additional CIR by passing the order dated April 28, 2021 creating demand 
of Rs. 51.32 million (2023: Rs. 51.32 million) along with penalty amounting to Rs. 2.57 
million and default surcharge u/s 49 of the PSTS (to be calculated at the time of payment). 
Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal before Commissioner (Appeals) Punjab 
Revenue Authority, Lahore on October 28, 2021. The Company on the basis of opinion 
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of the tax advisor is hopeful of favourable outcome of the case, accordingly no provision 
has been recorded in these financial statements.

	 28.9	 The Additional Commissioner Enforcement-III, Punjab Revenue Authority, Lahore, 
initiated proceedings under Section 52(1) of the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012, 
through a show cause notice dated September 20, 2023. The Company, through its legal 
counsel, contested the show cause notice before the Honourable Lahore High Court.

	 28.10	 There have been several notices requesting information from multiple authorities. The 
Company has promptly provided the necessary information, and as of now, no additional 
notices have been received from these authorities.

	 28.11	M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a subsidiary company of MMM Holding (Private) Limited, 
an associated company is defendant in the various legal and taxation proccedings 
initiated by the ex-employees, suppliers, contractors and the taxation authorities. The 
aggregate of the suits amounts is Rs. 32.30 million. The Company’s proportionate share 
in these suits amount to Rs. 13.62 million. The Company has not adjusted its share of net 
assets as the associated company expects favourable decision.

	
	
	 Guarantees
		  2024	 2023
	 Note	                      Rupees in million	

	 - Given by banking companies on behalf of the 
	   Company to SNGPL	 28.12	  767 	  745 
	 - Given by the Company on behalf of related party	 28.13	  1,686 	  -   

				     2,453 	  745 	

	 28.12	These guarantees are secured by way of charge on present and future fixed assets of the 
Company and counter guarantee of the Company.

	 28.13	These are cross-corporate guarantees provided by the Company on behalf of M/s 
Baluchistan Glass Limited, a related party.

	 28.14	Various banks have issued the guarantees amounting to Rs. 149.91 million on behalf of 
M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a subsidiary company of MMM Holding (Private) Limited,  
an associated company. The Company’s proportionate share of these guarantees is Rs. 
63.01 million.

	 Commitments

	 28.15	Letters of credit for capital expenditure amounted to Rs. 143.62 million (2023: Rs. 107.25 
million).

	 28.16	Letters of credit for other than capital expenditure amounted to Rs. 154.41 million (2023: 
Rs 203.93 million).

	 28.17	The amount of future ijarah rentals for ijarah financing, both prospective and in place, 
and the period in which these payments will become due are as follows:			
		

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
	 Not later than one year		   -   	  43,230,394 
				  
	 Later than one year but not later than five years		   -   	  -
   
				     -   	  43,230,394 
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

29.	 Revenue

	 Local			    35,243,667,854 	  30,740,514,087 
	 Export		   2,455,547,539 	  2,474,171,084 

				     37,699,215,393 	  33,214,685,171 

	 Less:	 Sales tax 		   5,039,256,424 	  4,668,360,044 
	              Trade discounts		   3,061,415,427 	  119,354,361 

				     (8,100,671,851)	  (4,787,714,405)

			   29.3	  29,598,543,542 	  28,426,970,766  

29.1	 Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers			  	
		  Type of products - net local sales			  					   
		  Tableware glass products		   8,961,078,763 	  9,057,054,641 
		  Float glass products		   18,187,686,085 	  16,904,818,271 

				     27,148,764,848 	  25,961,872,912 		
Type of products -  net export sales			  					   

		  Tableware glass products		   1,651,079,586 	  1,331,179,173 
		  Float glass products		   798,699,108 	  1,133,918,681 

				     2,449,778,694 	  2,465,097,854 
				  
				     29,598,543,542 	  28,426,970,766 
	
	 29.2	 Revenue has been recognised at a point in time for both local and export sales during the year.

	 29.3	 This represents the revenue earned from shariah compliant activities.
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

30	 Cost of sales

	 Raw materials consumed		   5,695,317,935 	  5,474,127,108 
	 Trading material consumed		   372,685,233 	  -   
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 30.1	  3,471,218,170 	  3,022,074,834 
	 Fuel and power		   9,177,965,143 	  9,559,970,319 
	 Packing materials consumed		   1,497,818,343 	  1,839,027,800 
	 Stores and spares consumed		   692,619,062 	  806,143,376 
	 Carriage and freight		   108,693,534 	  96,815,654 
	 Export freight and forwarding		   224,773,086 	  223,389,202 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   43,938,846 	  77,946,911 
	 Travelling and conveyance 		   53,901,931 	  52,788,618 
	 Insurance		   48,790,462 	  48,800,784 
	 Ijarah rentals		   47,026,976 	  46,276,047 
	 Postage and telephone		   4,563,470 	  3,431,230 
	 Rent, rates and taxes	 30.2	  38,859,780 	  37,846,627 
	 Printing and stationery		   854,149 	  696,071 
	 Advertisement		   732,480 	  954,694 
	 Depreciation	 5.1.1	  1,120,430,864 	  1,187,274,024 
	 Others		   34,227,331 	  22,904,039 

				     22,634,416,795 	  22,500,467,338 
	 Work in process			 
	 Opening stock		   112,256,421 	  109,548,657 
	 Closing stock		   (119,802,256)	  (112,256,421)

				     (7,545,835)	  (2,707,764)

	 Cost of goods manufactured		   22,626,870,960 	  22,497,759,574 
				  
	 Finished goods			 
	 Opening stock		   2,881,611,105 	  3,076,849,887 
	 Closing stock		   (3,736,677,350)	  (2,881,611,105)

				     (855,066,245)	  195,238,782 

				     21,771,804,715 	  22,692,998,356 

	 30.1	 This include contribution to defined contribution plans of Rs. 40.24 million (2023:  Rs. 
35.39 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

	 30.2	 This includes rent expenses related to leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases 
of low-value assets.					   
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
				  
31	 Administrative expenses
				  
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 31.1	  295,120,770 	  233,265,343 
	 Travelling expenses		   36,953,121 	  27,853,276 
	 Motor vehicle running expense		   18,138,827 	  7,648,655 
	 Postage and telephone		   7,634,934 	  6,671,554 
	 Printing and stationery		   3,043,917 	  3,208,009 
	 Repairs and maintenance		   11,679,812 	  10,333,829 
	 Legal and professional charges		   14,668,722 	  10,903,155 
	 Auditors’ remuneration	 31.2	  2,266,500 	  2,100,415 
	 Advertisement		   1,632,220 	  567,865 
	 Utilities		   13,255,934 	  10,273,478 
	 Rent, rates and taxes	 31.3	  12,852,232 	  10,613,822 
	 Entertainment		   7,591,706 	  7,376,869 
	 Insurance		   8,514,854 	  6,750,252 
	 Subscription, newspapers, periodicals and meeting fee		   28,854,702 	  20,014,984 
	 Depreciation	 5.1.1	  31,950,144 	  37,229,103 
	 Donations	 31.4	  21,035,000 	  51,115,000 
	 Amortization		   4,812,746 	  5,234,729 
	 Miscellaneous		   5,715,414 	  6,667,306 

				     525,721,555 	  457,827,644 

31.1	 This include contribution to defined contribution plans of Rs. 8.63 million (2023:  Rs. 7.30 
million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

31.2	 Auditors’ remuneration 					  
			

	 Audit fee		   1,600,000 	  1,475,000 
	 Half yearly review fee		   264,000 	  250,415 
	 Out of pocket expenses		   302,500 	  275,000 
	 Certification fee		   100,000 	  100,000 

				    2,266,500 	  2,100,415 	
	

31.3	 This includes rent expenses related to leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of 
low-value assets.

31.4	 The details of the donation to a single party exceeding 10% of the Company’s total amount of 
donation is as follows:					  
		

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees

	 Almarah Foundation 		   12,000,000 	  31,800,000 
	 Transparent Hands Trust		   -   	  10,600,000 

				    12,000,000 	  42,400,000 
				 
	 None of the directors has any interest in the donees.				  
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
32	 Selling and distribution expenses			 
			  	
	 Salaries, wages and other benefits	 32.1	  329,904,576 	  269,902,587 
	 Travelling expenses		   58,475,786 	  44,237,250 
	 Motor vehicle expenses		   15,954,811 	  12,423,274 
	 Postage and telephone		   9,546,466 	  7,280,883 
	 Printing and stationery		   10,699,344 	  9,059,975 
	 Advertisement, exhibitions and sales promotion		   60,810,879 	  36,913,638 
	 Rent		  32.2	  10,517,669 	  10,751,461 
	 Utilities		   14,176,540 	  10,742,593 
	 Insurance		   5,837,965 	  4,663,433 
	 Depreciation	 5.1.1	  9,210,430 	  10,987,473 
	 Ijarah rentals		   -   	  86,312 
	 Breakage, samples and incidental charges		   13,062,140 	  12,042,640 
	 Miscellaneous		   8,753,723 	  14,384,455 

				     546,950,329 	  443,475,974 

	 32.1	 This include contribution to defined contribution plans of Rs. 11.12 million (2023: Rs. 9.63 
million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

	 32.2 	 This includes rent expenses related to leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases 
of low-value assets.

			 
		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
33	 Other income			 
				 
	 Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		   168,231 	  26,661,328 
	 Income from sale of scrap		   61,900 	  110,299 
	 Excess liabilities written back		   9,998,781 	  6,919,869 
	 Recovery against provision for doubtful advances	 13.2	  1,803,671 	  827,978 
	 Interest income on bank deposits with banks		   54,623,759 	  22,996,718 
	 Foreign exchange gain - net		   -   	  67,918,177 
	 Gain from sale of stores, spare parts and 
	 raw material to related party	 33.1	  160,815,856 	  -   
	 Gain on discounting of investment to present value	 21	  100,087,774 	  -   
	 Profit on bank deposits - shariah compliant		   1,091,794 	  2,073,424 
	 Guarantee commission 	 33.2	  7,402,100 	  -   
	 Interest income on loan to associate		   242,874 	  -   

				    336,296,740 	  127,507,793 

33.1	 This represents the gain on sale of store, spare items and raw material to M/s Baluchistan 
Glass Limited, a related party.					   
	

33.2	 This represents the guarantee commission recognized for guarantees provided by the 
Company on behalf of M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, a related party.				 
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
34	 Other operating expenses			 
				 
	 Workers’ (profit) participation fund	 22.3	  310,258,285 	  221,394,751 
	 Workers’ welfare fund	 22.4	  121,388,733 	  88,338,388 
	 Bad debts written off		   5,912,580 	  3,666,517 
	 Advances written off		   1,645,793 	  -   
	 Foreign exchange loss - net		   9,124,774 	  -   
	 Provision for doubtful advances	 13.2	  795,700 	  5,701,843 

				    449,125,865 	  319,101,499 		
		 	

35	 Finance cost			 
				 
	 Mark-up based loans from conventional banks	    		
	 - Long term finances		   125,250,786 	  152,939,640 
	 - Short term borrowings		   346,810,454 	  275,829,067 
				 
	 Islamic mode of financing			 
	 - Short term borrowings		   41,465,248 	  44,500,505 

				    513,526,488 	  473,269,212 
				 
	 Interest on workers’ (profit) participation fund	 22.3	  5,168,254 	  9,855,720 
	 Bank charges		   20,334,680 	  17,151,006 
	 Unwinding of long term payable		   27,165,493 	  -   
	 Guarantee commission charges		   6,155,740 	  7,877,000 

				    572,350,655 	  508,152,938 		
			

36	 Taxation
				 
	 Current tax			 
	 - Charge for the current year		   1,634,431,910 	  1,120,544,942 
	 - Super tax		   602,143,466 	  386,394,807 
	 - Apeal orders		   -   	  25,384,123 
	 - Adjustment for prior year		   (603,267)	  (30,976,966)

				     2,235,972,109 	  1,501,346,906 
	 Deferred tax	 20	  145,381,783 	  64,532,574 

				     2,381,353,892 	  1,565,879,480 	
36.1	 Relationship between the tax expense and 
	 accounting profit			 
				 
		 Profit before taxation		   6,755,823,163 	  4,085,010,558 
				 
	 Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2023: 29%)		   1,959,188,717 	  1,184,653,062 
				 
	 Tax effect of amounts that are:			 
	 - Prior year adjustments		   (603,267)	  (30,976,966)
	 - Super tax		   602,143,466 	  386,394,807 
	 - Deferred tax		   145,381,783 	  64,532,574 
	 - Others		   (324,756,807)	  (38,723,997)

				    2,381,353,892 	  1,565,879,480 
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		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
36.2	 Reconciliation of Levy and Income tax under IAS-12			 
				 
	 Current tax liability as per applicable tax laws		   2,268,917,409 	  1,534,498,223 
	 Portion of current tax liability representing income 
	 tax as per IAS -12		   (2,235,972,109)	  (1,501,346,906)
	 Portion of current tax liability representing levy 
	 as per IFRIC 21 / IAS 37	 36.4	  (32,945,300)	  (33,151,317)

	 Difference		   -   	  -  

36.3	 The current tax expense for the year is calculated using corporation tax rate of 29% (2023: 29%) 
and super tax at 10% (2023: 10%). Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences 
are measured at effective rate of 39% (2023: 39%).

36.4	 Levy represents tax under final tax regime under section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 and requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37. Final tax regime is not available for set off against 
normal tax liability arising in future years.					   
	

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
	
37	 Earnings per share - basic and diluted			 

	 Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders	 Rupees	  4,374,469,271 	  2,519,131,078 
				 
	 Weighted average number of ordinary shares			 
	 outstanding during the year 	 Numbers	  172,167,187 	  172,167,187 
				 
	 Earnings per share 	 Rupees	  25.41 	  14.63 
	
37.1	 There is no dilution effect on the earnings per share of the Company as the Company does not 

have any convertible instruments in issue as at the reporting date (2023: Nil) which would have 
any effect on the earnings per share if the option to convert is exercised.				 
	

38	 The Credit Facilities Available to the Company - Short term borrowings:

2024 2023

Available 
limit

Utilised 
credit

Unavailed 
credit

Available 
limit

Utilised 
credit

Unavailed 
credit

- - - - - - - - Rupees in million - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees in million - - - - - - - - 

	 Funded facilities
				 
	 Short term borrowings						    
							    
	 Conventional mode						    
	 of finance	  6,250 	  1,767 	  4,483 	  6,050 	  732 	  5,318 
	 Islamic financing	  1,600 	  721 	  879 	  1,600 	  190 	  1,410 

			   7,850 	  2,488 	  5,362 	  7,650 	  922 	  6,728 		
					  

	 Unfunded facilities						    
							    
	 Letters of credits	  2,070 	  298 	  1,772 	  1,580 	  311 	  1,269 
	 Letter of guarantees	  1,628 	  767 	  861 	  1,578 	  745 	  833 

			   3,698 	  1,065 	  2,633 	  3,158 	  1,056 	  2,102 		
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39	 Financial instruments					     	
						   

	 The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
							    
	 - Credit risk
	 - Liquidity risk 
	 - Market risk
							    
	 The Company’s overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 

markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial 
performance.

							    
	 39.1 	 Risk management framework
							    
		  The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of 

the Company’s risk management framework. The Committee is responsible for developing 
and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The committee regularly meets 
and any changes and compliance issues are reported to the Board of Directors.			 
				  

		  Risk management systems are reviewed regularly by the Committee to reflect changes in 
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

	
		  The Committee oversees compliance by management with the Company’s risk 

management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

							    
	 39.2 	 Credit risk
							    
		  Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date 

if counter-parties failed completely to perform as contracted. The Company does not have 
significant exposure to any individual counterparty. To manage credit risk the Company 
maintains procedures covering the application for credit approvals, granting and renewal 
of counterparty limits and monitoring of exposures against these limits. As part of these 
processes the financial viability of all counterparties is regularly monitored and assessed. 
Some customers are also secured, where possible, by way of cash security deposit.		  	
	

		  Exposure to credit risk					  
			 

		  The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:		

		  2024	 2023
	 Note	 Rupees	 Rupees
			 
	 Trade debts - net of security deposit	 39.2.1	  3,059,624,344 	  1,532,704,075 
	 Bank balances 	 39.2.2	  670,946,863 	  422,667,648 
	 Investment in associates		   2,424,989,940 	  269,500,000 
	 Other receivables	 39.2.3	  670,866,991 	  -   
	 Interest income receivable on loan to associate	 39.2.4	  242,874 	  -   
	 Loan to associate		   58,333,332 	  -   

				     6,885,004,344 	  2,224,871,723 
		  Credit quality of financial assets					   	
		  Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where 

available, or to historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties, 
with the exception of customers, have external credit ratings determined by various 
credit rating agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by reference to historical 
defaults rates and present ages.				   		
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	 39.2.1	Trade debts - considered good	
		  The Company’s trade debts comprise receivables from industrial customers and 

distributors. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by individual 
characteristics of each customer such as repayment behavior, credit loss history and 
available securities etc. The management also considers other relevant factors that 
may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated 
with the customer. Majority of the Company’s customers have been transacting with 
the Company for over five years, and only trivial customers’ balances have been written 
off. In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are individually assessed according to 
their trading history and repayment behaviour with the Company.				 
		

		  The Company uses a recovery based provision matrix to measure ECLs of trade debts. 
Loss rates are calculated on the outstanding exposure after adjusting any available 
securities and future recoveries.

		
		  The breakup of trade receivables considered good at the reporting date is as follows:
	
		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				    	
			  Domestic		   3,214,686,115 	  1,761,976,971 
			  Foreign 		   164,765,595 	  195,921,354 

			  Total trade debts		   3,379,451,710 	  1,957,898,325 
			  Less: security deposits	 22.2	  (319,827,366)	  (425,194,250)

					     3,059,624,344 	  1,532,704,075 

			  June 30, 2024	 Weighted 	 Gross carrying	 Loss	 Credit  
			  average loss rate	 amount	 allowance	 impaired

		  	                                                                                             ------------------Rupees---------------------		
	

				 
	            0-365 days	 2%	  3,384,097,018 	  67,301,743 	  Yes 
	            365 days and above	 34%	  95,330,159 	  32,673,724 	  Yes 

				    3,479,427,177 	  99,975,467 			 
		

				 
			  June 30, 2023	 Weighted 	 Gross carrying	 Loss	 Credit  

			  average loss rate	 amount	 allowance	 impaired

		  	                                                                                             ------------------Rupees---------------------		
	
                       0-365 days	 -	  1,906,610,385 	  -   	  No 
	            365 days and above	 51%	  105,116,625 	  53,828,685 	  Yes 

				    2,011,727,010 	  53,828,685 	

	 39.2.2	Bank balances and deposits with financial institutions					  

		  The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information 
about counterparty default rate:			 
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				   Credit ratings		  2024	  2023
			  Short term	 Long term	 Agency	 Rupees	 Rupees
					  
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited	  A1 	  A+ 	  JCR-VIS 	  103,557 	  1,435,941 
Allied Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  PACRA 	  -   	  9,361,664 
Askari Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA+ 	  PACRA 	  104,947,738 	  6,012,578 
Bank Al Habib Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  PACRA 	  33,796,527 	  20,681,634 
Bank Alfalah Limited	  A1+ 	  AA- 	  PACRA 	  26,878,537 	  76,540,466 
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited	  A1 	  A+ 	  PACRA 	  6,127,737 	  4,417,046 
Faysal Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA 	  PACRA 	  9,698,273 	  10,146,517 
MCB Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  PACRA 	  318,712,142 	  31,976,140 
National Bank of Pakistan	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  PACRA 	  453,136 	  478,311 
SME Bank Limited	  A4 	  B- 	  PACRA 	  -   	  10,594 
MCB Islamic Bank Limited	  A1 	  A+ 	  PACRA 	  721 	  721 
The Bank of Khyber	  A1 	  A+ 	  PACRA 	  174 	  941,189 
The Bank of Punjab	  A1+ 	  AA+ 	  PACRA 	  33,228,470 	  36,874,349 
Habib Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  15,499,457 	  6,271,057 
Meezan Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  57,407,728 	  142,538,042 
United Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  15,205,899 	  42,908,213 
Sindh Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA- 	  JCR-VIS 	  10,078,432 	  9,286,892 
UBL Ameen	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  JCR-VIS 	  1,537,597 	  1,381,612 
Soneri Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA- 	  PACRA 	  50 	  100 
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited	  A1+ 	  AAA 	  PACRA 	  -   	  237 
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA+ 	  PACRA 	  33,637,915 	  21,352,471 
Samba Bank Limited	  A1 	  AA 	  PACRA 	  3,513,895 	  32,996 
Industrial and Commercial Bank of 	  F1+ 	  A- 	  Fitch Ratings 	  100,000 	  -   
China Limited					   
JS Bank Limited	  A1+ 	  AA 	  PACRA 	  18,878 	  18,878 
					  

Bank balance and deposit balance				     670,946,863 	  422,667,648 	

39.2.3	Due from related party							     
			  	

	 This represents amount receivable from a related party against the sales of stores, spares, 
raw materials and guarantee commission. The receivable is neither past due nor impaired and 
is estimated as collectable based on historical experience. There has been no impairment 
assessed on due from related parties and accordingly no allowance for credit losses against 
these dues has been recognized.

39.2.4	loan to associate		

	 This represents the long term loan provided to an associated company and the interest income 
receivable on this loan. The balances are neither past due nor impaired and is estimated as 
collectable based on historical experience and the current assessment by management. There 
has been no impairment assessed on these balances and accordingly no allowance for credit 
losses against these dues has been recognized.	

39.3 	 Concentration risk

	 Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly 
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to 
the Company’s total credit exposure. The Company’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly 
diversified and all other transactions are entered into with creditworthy counterparties thereby 
mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.	



Annual Report 2024 87

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				    	
	 Food and beverages		   130,118,046 	  1,389,038 
	 Corporates		   3,390,099,651 	  466,541,176 
	 Dealers and distributors		   2,529,074,189 	  1,138,352,506 
	 Foreign customers		   164,765,595 	  195,921,355 
	 Financial institutions		   670,946,863 	  422,667,648 

				    6,885,004,344 	  2,224,871,723 	
	 39.4	 Liquidity risk					  

				  
		  Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting 

its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is 
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. For this purpose, the Company 
has sufficient running finance facilities available from various commercial banks to meet 
its liquidity requirements. Further liquidity position of the Company is closely monitored 
through budgets, cash flow projections and comparison with actual results by the Board.

	
		  The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity 

groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to contractual maturity 
dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

						    
2024

Carrying 
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

Six to twelve 
months

One to two 
years

Two to five 
years

More than 
five years

------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------

	
	 Financial liabilities						    
								     
	 Long term financing	  2,147,908,603 	  2,310,735,004 	  537,023,533 	  528,556,661 	  748,860,268 	  435,337,796 	  60,956,746 
	 Trade and other payables	  1,917,473,546 	  1,917,473,546 	 1,917,473,546 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  16,369,361 	  16,369,361 	  16,369,361 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Accrued markup	  140,303,029 	  140,303,029 	  140,303,029 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowings	  2,487,334,790 	  2,487,334,790 	 2,487,334,790 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Long term payable	  218,744,387 	  291,666,668 	  58,333,333 	  58,333,333 	  116,666,668 	  58,333,334 	  -   

			   6,928,133,716 	  7,163,882,398 	 5,156,837,592 	  586,889,994 	  865,526,936 	  493,671,130 	  60,956,746 		
				 

2023
Carrying 
amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months
or less

Six to twelve 
months

One to two 
years

Two to five 
years

More than 
five years

------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees------------------------------------------------------------------------------
								      

	 Financial liabilities							     
								     
	 Long term financing	  2,821,364,361 	  3,057,699,327 	  497,042,098 	  537,472,566 	  1,063,152,243 	  734,797,874 	  225,234,546 
	 Trade and other payables	  1,474,396,043 	  1,474,396,043 	 1,474,396,043 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend	  13,825,399 	  13,825,399 	  13,825,399 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Accrued markup	  84,205,686 	  84,205,686 	  84,205,686 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowings	  921,546,448 	  921,546,448 	  921,546,448 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

			   5,310,039,758 	  5,546,374,724 	 2,991,015,674 	  537,472,566 	  1,063,152,243 	  734,797,874 	  225,234,546 	

		  It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur 
significantly earlier or at significantly different amount.	

			 
	 39.5	 Market risk					  

			 
		  Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk.
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	 39.5.1	Currency risk
			 
		  Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
			 
		  The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on foreign trade debts, foreign currency 

bank accounts and outstanding letters of credit that are denominated primarily in U.S 
Dollars (USD), Euro, Chinese Yuan and Pound Sterling.

	 39.5.1.1 Exposure to currency risk				  
					   
		  The summary quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk as 

reported to the management of the Company is as follows:		
		

	 			                    	    2024			 
			  USD	 Euro	 CNY	 GBP	 JPY

			  On balance sheet:
					  
			  Foreign debtors	  594,371   	  -	  -   	  -   	  - 
			  Foreign currency bank					   
			  balances	   30,804   	  -	  -   	  -   	  -   

				     625,175   	  -	  -   	  -   	  -  

			  Off balance sheet:					   
						   
			  Outstanding letter of credits	   (1,021,011)	  (46,331)	  -   	  -   	  -  
						   

				    (395,836) 	    (46,331) 	 -	 -	 - 

		                   			       2023			 
			  USD	 Euro	 CNY	 GBP	 JPY

			  On balance sheet:
					  
			  Foreign debtors	    682,853  	  -    	  -   	  -   	  -   
			  Foreign currency bank					   
			  balances	   130,565   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

				      813,418   	   -    	  -   	  -   	  -   
			  Off balance sheet:					   
						   
			  Outstanding letter of credits	    (625,882)	  (418,386) 	 -	 -	 - 
						   
				    187,536 	  (418,386)	 -	 -	 - 

	 39.5.1.2 Exchange rate applied during the year				  

		  The following significant exchange rates have been applied:				 
				  

		       	                        Average rate	                	  Reporting date rate	
	 		 2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
					  
			  USD to PKR	 283.12	 246.38	 278.34	 287.90
			  Euro to PKR	 305.95	 263.37	 298.97	 312.93
			  CNY to PKR	 38.92	 35.10	 38.24	 39.6
			  GBP to PKR	 358.19	 306.46	 351.95	 364.43
			  JPY to PKR	 1.86	 1.75	 1.73	 1.99
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	 39.5.1.3 Sensitivity analysis:			 
				  
		  As at the reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened or weakness by 10% against the 

foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, profit before tax for the year 
would have been higher / (lower) by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of 
net foreign exchange loss on translation of foreign debtors and foreign currency bank 
account.					   
	

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				    	
			  Effect on profit and loss			 

			  US Dollar		   (11,017,699)	  5,399,161 

			  Euro		   (1,385,158)	  (13,092,553)
				 
		  The weakening of the PKR against foreign currencies would have had an equal but 

opposite impact on profit before tax.			 
				  
	 39.5.2	Interest rate risk			 
				  
		  Interest rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from 
mismatch of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period.			
			 

		  Interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments			 
				  
		  The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments 

are mentioned in relevant notes to the financial statements. The Company’s interest / 
mark-up bearing financial instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

	 		 2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		       	                             Effective rate 	                          	    Carrying amount 
			                               (in Percentage)	                        (Rupees)

	 Financial assets				  
					  
	 Variable rate instruments:				  
	 Saving accounts	 17.5-22.5	 12-16	 362,091,647 	 56,237,992 
					  
	 Loan to associate	  3 months 	  -   	  58,333,332 	  -   
			   KIBOR plus 			 
		  	 1.5% 				  

	
	 Financial liabilities				  
								     

	Variable rate instruments:				  
	 Long term loans	  1-3 months 	  3 months 	  2,147,908,603 	  2,821,364,361 		

		  KIBOR plus 	  KIBOR plus 		
			   40 to 50 bps 	  50 to 90 bps 		
					  
	 Short term borrowings	  1-3 months 	  1-3 months 	  2,487,334,790 	  921,546,448 		

		  KIBOR plus 	  KIBOR plus 		
			   5 to 50 bps 	  5 to 50 bps 		
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	 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments			 
				 
	 A reasonably possible change of 10 percent increase / decrease in interest rates at the 

reporting date would have (decreased) / increased profit by Rs. 421.48 million (2023: Rs. 368.67 
million). The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, 
remain constant.

39.5.3	Other price risk

	 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate 
risk or currency risk). The Company is not exposed to any price risk as there are no financial 
instruments at the reporting date that are sensitive to price fluctuations.

39.6	 Fair values

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

	 Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern 
without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to 
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

	 The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares 
are based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The 
quoted market prices used for financial assets held by the Company is current bid price.

	 A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and 
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory 
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an 
arm’s length basis.

	 IFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurements’ requires the Company to classify fair value measurements 
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the 
measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

  - 	 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
Company can access at the measurement date (level 1).		
						    

 - 	 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2).					   
	

 - 	 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).			 
	

	 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments and 
non-financial instruments including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:				 
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	 Measurement of financial instruments		
2024

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial 
assets at 

amortized 
cost

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortized 

cost

 Total Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Note - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
	 On-Balance sheet financial instruments
							     
	 June 30, 2024							     
								      
	 Financial assets not measured at fair value							     
								     
	 Investment in associates		   2,424,989,940 	  -   	  2,424,989,940 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Loan to associate		   58,333,332 	  -   	  58,333,332 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade debts		   3,379,451,710 	  -   	  3,379,451,710 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Interest income receivable on 							     
	 loan to associate		   242,874 	  -   	  242,874 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Other receivable		   670,866,991 	  -   	  670,866,991 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Cash and bank balances		   682,395,720 	  -   	  682,395,720 	  -   	  -   	  -   

		  39.6.1	  7,216,280,567 	  -   	  7,216,280,567 	  -   	  -   	  -   

	 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 							     
								     
	 Long term loans - secured 			   -   	  2,147,908,603 	  2,147,908,603 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Long term payable			   -   	  218,744,387 	  218,744,387 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables 			   -   	  1,917,473,546 	  1,917,473,546 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend			   -   	  16,369,361 	  16,369,361 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Accrued mark-up			   -   	  140,303,029 	  140,303,029 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowing			   -   	  2,487,334,790 	  2,487,334,790 	  -   	  -   	  -   

		   39.4 	  -   	  6,928,133,716 	  6,928,133,716 	  -   	  -   	  -     

2023

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial 
assets at 

amortized 
cost

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortized 

cost

 Total Level 
1

Level 
2

Level 
3

Note - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Rupees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
								      
				  
	 On-Balance sheet financial instruments

	 June 30, 2023							     
								      
	 Financial assets not measured at fair value							     
								      
	 Investment in associates		   269,500,000 	  -   	  269,500,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade debts		   1,957,898,325 	  -   	  1,957,898,325 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Cash and bank balances		   431,749,673 	  -   	  431,749,673 	  -   	  -   	  -   

		  39.6.1	  2,659,147,998 	  -   	  2,659,147,998 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 							     
								      
	 Long term loans - secured 		   -   	  2,821,364,361 	  2,821,364,361 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Trade and other payables 		   -   	  1,469,097,864 	  1,469,097,864 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Unclaimed dividend		   -   	  13,825,399 	  13,825,399 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Accrued mark-up		   -   	  84,205,686 	  84,205,686 	  -   	  -   	  -   
	 Short term borrowing		   -   	  921,546,448 	  921,546,448 	  -   	  -   	  -   

		   39.4 	  -   	  5,310,039,758 	  5,310,039,758 	  -   	  -   	  -   

	 39.6.1	Fair value versus carrying amounts				   	
		  The Company has not disclosed the fair values of these financial assets and liabilities as 

these are for short term or repriced over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts 
are reasonable approximation of fair value.				  
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40	 Capital management			  	
	 The Company’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue 

as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for other stake holders and 
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.	

	 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes 
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust 
the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.			  	

	 The management seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible 
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital 
position. The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management 
of working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of 
finance to minimize risk.	

	 In line with the norms, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is 
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including 
current and non current and excluding sponsors’ loans) less cash and cash equivalents. Total 
capital is calculated as equity as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt. As at 
the reporting date, the gearing ratio of the Company was worked out as under:	

	
		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
	
	 Total borrowings		   4,635,243,393 	  3,742,910,809 
	 Cash and bank balances		   (682,395,720)	  (431,749,673)

	 Net debt		   3,952,847,673 	  3,311,161,136 
	 Equity			   18,623,627,238 	  15,331,959,487 

	 Total capital employed		   22,576,474,911 	  18,643,120,623 
				  
	 Gearing ratio		  17.51%	 17.76%	

41   	 Operating segments 			  	
	 41.1	 Sales from glassware products represents 100% (2023: 100%) of total revenue of the 

Company.	
	 41.2	 The sales percentage by geographic region is as follows:

		  2024	 2023
		  %	 %	
		  Pakistan		  91.72	 91.38
		  Sri Lanka		  1.53	 0.90
		  Kingdom of Saudi Arabia		  0.74	 1.50
		  Brazil		  1.35	 1.00
		  Others		  4.66	 5.22

				    100 	 100 		
	

	 41.3	 There is no individual customer to whom sales are more than 10% of total revenue.		  	
	 41.4	 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.		 	
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42	 Plant capacity and actual production			 
				  
	 The actual pull and pack production during the year is as follows:

		  2024	 2023
		  M. Tons	 M. Tons
			 
				  
	 Pull production		   226,176 	  242,163    
				  
	 Pack production		    183,460 	  195,780   
				  
	 42.1 	 During the year, no additional furnaces were fired up, and no existing furnaces were closed.

 	 42.2 	 The capacity of plant is indeterminable because capacity of furnaces to produce glassware 
varies with the measurement / size of glass produced.	 			
				  

		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
43	 Provident Fund			 
				  
	 Size of the fund / trust 		   241,991,954 	  234,065,659 
				  
	 Cost of investment made		   231,768,072 	  208,887,265 
				  
	 Fair value of investment		   232,079,001 	  224,069,626 		

		
				  
		  2024	 2023
		  (Percentage)	 (Percentage)
				  
	 Percentage of investment made		   0.9578 	 0.8924
				  
				  
		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees

	 Break up of investments - based upon fair value			 
				  
	 NBP NAFA Fund Management		   2,452,647 	  44,118,022 
	 Deposit and saving accounts		   229,626,354 	  179,951,604 

				     232,079,001 	  224,069,626
 	
		  2024	 2023
		                   Percentage of size of fund

	 Break up of investment			 
				  
	 NBP NAFA Fund Management		  0.0101	 0.1885
	 Deposit and saving accounts		  0.9489	 0.7688
	
	 43.1	 All investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of 

section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for the purpose.
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44	 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executives

Managing director  / 
chief executive officer/ 

executive director

Non executive 
directors / independent 

director
Executives Total

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration	  40,500,000 	  32,400,000 	  -   	  -   	  183,226,762 	  129,163,716 	  223,726,762 	 161,563,716 
House rent	  18,225,000 	  14,580,000 	  -   	  -   	  82,452,113 	  58,123,704 	 100,677,113 	  72,703,704 
Conveyance allowance	  48,000 	  48,000 	  -   	  -   	  579,749 	  505,080 	  627,749 	  553,080 
Contribution to provident								      
fund	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  17,537,889 	  12,556,737 	  17,537,889 	  12,556,737 
Bonus	  10,125,000 	  2,070,000 	  -   	  -   	  45,806,691 	  8,575,988 	  55,931,691 	  10,645,988 
Utilities	  4,050,000 	  3,240,000 	  -   	  -   	  18,322,729 	  12,916,416 	  22,372,729 	  16,156,416 
Medical and other 								      
allowances	  4,677,000 	  3,732,000 	  -   	  -   	  61,535,513 	  42,768,486 	  66,212,513 	  46,500,486 
Meeting fee	  -   	  -   	  3,200,000 	  1,800,000 	  -   	  -   	  3,200,000 	  1,800,000 
Travelling expenses	  9,864,062 	  854,099 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  2,372,735 	  9,864,062 	  3,226,834 

	  87,489,062 	  56,924,099 	  3,200,000 	  1,800,000 	 409,461,446 	 266,982,862 	 500,150,508 	 325,706,961 
								      

Number of persons	 2	 2	 5	 3	 72	 54	 79	 59	  	
				  
				     			 
	 44.1	 An Executive is defined as an employee, other than the Chief Executive Officer and 

directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year.
	
	 44.2	 The Company provides the Chief Executive Officer and certain directors and executives 

with company maintained vehicles.

45.	 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

June 30, 2024

                          Liabilities

TotalLong term 
finances

Short term 
borrowing

Finance 
cost paid

 Dividend 
paid 

Loan from 
director

                    - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - Rupees - - - -- --  - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

								      
Balance as at July 01, 2023		  2,821,364,361 	  921,546,448 	  84,205,686 	  13,825,399 	  135,000,000 	  3,975,941,894 		
					   
Changes from financing activities	  						    
							     
Repayments of long term finances - secured		  (908,455,758)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (908,455,758)
Receipt of long term finances - secured		   235,000,000 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  235,000,000 
Receipt of short term borrowings - net		   -   	  1,565,788,342 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  1,565,788,342 
Finance cost paid		   -   	  -   	  (483,919,565)	  -   	  -   	  (483,919,565)
Repayment of director’s loan		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (135,000,000)	  (135,000,000)
Dividend paid		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (1,030,459,160)	  -   	  (1,030,459,160)
						    
Total changes from financing cash flows	  	(673,455,758)	 1,565,788,342 	 (483,919,565)	 (1,030,459,160)	  (135,000,000)	  (757,046,141)		
					   
Other changes							     
							     
Dividend announced		   -   	  -   	  -   	  1,033,003,122 	  -   	  1,033,003,122 
Finance cost charged		   -   	  -   	  540,016,908 	  -   	  -   	  540,016,908 
							     
Closing as at June 30, 2024		  2,147,908,603 	 2,487,334,790 	  140,303,029 	  16,369,361 	  -   	  4,791,915,783 
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June 30, 2023

                          Liabilities

TotalLong term 
finances

Short term 
borrowing

Finance 
cost paid

 Dividend 
paid 

Loan from 
director

                    - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - Rupees - - - -- --  - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

								      
Balance as at July 01, 2022		  3,650,377,117 	 1,918,092,707 	  83,608,828 	  13,084,747 	 135,000,000 	  5,800,163,399 		
					   
Changes from financing activities	  						    
							     
Receipts of long term finances - secured		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Repayments of long term finances - secured		  (829,012,756)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (829,012,756)
Repayment of finance lease liabilities		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   
Repayment of short term borrowings - net		   -   	  (996,546,259)	  -   	  -   	  -   	  (996,546,259)
Finance cost paid		   -   	  -   	  (497,700,360)	  -   	  -   	  (497,700,360)
Dividend paid		   -   	  -   	  -   	  (274,726,848)	  -   	  (274,726,848)
						    
Total changes from financing cash flows		  (829,012,756)	 (996,546,259)	  (497,700,360)	  (274,726,848)	  -   	  (2,597,986,223)		
					   
Other changes							     
							     
Dividend announced		   -   	  -   	  -   	  275,467,500 	  -   	  275,467,500 
Finance cost charged		   -   	  -   	  498,297,218 	  - 	  -   	  498,297,218 

Closing as at June 30, 2023		   2,821,364,361 	  921,546,448 	  84,205,686 	  13,825,399 	  135,000,000 	  3,975,941,894 

46	 Transactions with related parties

	 Related parties comprise associated companies, directors of the Company and their close 
relatives, companies where directors also hold directorship, key management personnel 
and post employment benefit plans. Key management personnel are those persons having 
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company, 
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that Company. 
The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related 
parties. Details of transactions with related parties during the year, other than those which 
have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:
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	 Transactions during the year				  
	 Related party	 Relationship	 Nature of transactions		  2024	 2023		

				     Rupees 	  Rupees 
						    
	 Omer Glass Industries Limited	 Associate			 
		  Common control	 Dividend paid during the year		   108,756,000 	  29,001,600 
		  (10.53% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  36,252,000 
					   
	 M & M Glass (Private) Limited	 Associate			 
		  Common control	 Dividend paid during the year		   13,061,862 	  3,483,164 
		  (1.26% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued 		   -   	  4,353,950 
					   
	 Mr. Omer Baig	 Managing Director	 Repayment of director’s loan		   135,000,000 	  -   
		  (25.54% equity held)	 Dividend paid during the year		   294,671,118 	  124,997,024 
			   Bonus shares issued 		   -   	  156,246,280 
					   
	 Mr. Mansoor Irfani	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   48,678 	  12,982 
		  (0.0047% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued 		   -   	  16,220 
					   
	 Mr. Saad Iqbal	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   6,728,670 	  1,786,312 
		  (0.65% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  2,232,890 
					   
	 Mr. Mohammad Baig	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   103,293,360 	  8,592,734 
		  (11.49% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  10,740,910 
					   
	 Ms. Rubina Nayyar	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   8,106 	  2,160 
		  (0.0008% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  2,700 
					   
	 Mr. Faiz Muhammad	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   7,026 	  1,874 
		  (0.0007% equity held)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  2,340 
					   
	 Mr. Muhammad Ibrar Khan	 Director	 Dividend paid during the year		   4,686 	  1,250 
		  (Ex-director)	 Bonus shares issued		   -   	  1,560 
					   
	 Executives (other than directors)	 Key Management Person	 Dividend paid during the year		   103,767,360 	  79,000 
			   Bonus shares issued		   -   	  98,750 
					   
	 Lucky TG (Private) Limited 	 Associate	 Purchase of shares		   -   	  269,500,000 
		  (49% equity held)	 Buy Back of shares		   264,600,000 	  -   
			   Share in net assets 		   5,490,940 	  -   
			   Transfer of rights in plot 		   -   	  (242,301,600)
			   Receipt against transfer 		
			   of right in plot		   -   	  242,301,600 
					   
	 MMM Holding (Private) Limited	 Associate	 Investment made		   970,000,000 	  -   
		  (50% equity held)	 Purchase of right shares		   583,387,560 	  -   
			   Bargain purchase gain on		
			   initial investment		   915,162,011 	  -   
			   Share in net assets 		   (53,950,571)	  -   
			   Long term loan provided		   58,333,332 	  -   
			   Accured interest on long 		
			   term loan		   242,874 	  -  

	 Baluchistan Glass Limited 	 Subsidiary of MMM 	 Sale of stores, spare parts and  		
		  Holding (Private) Limited	 raw material		   1,496,714,891 	  -   
			   Purchase of trading materials		   172,478,993 	  -   
			   Guarantee commission 		   7,402,100 	  -   
					   
	 Provident fund	 Employee benefit plan	 Employer’s contribution during 		   59,994,005 	  52,270,909 
			   the year 		
 
 

46.1	 Balance outstanding as at June 30, 
	 Lucky TG (Private) Limited 	 Associate	 Investment in associate		   10,390,940 	  269,500,000 
		  (49% equity held)				  
						    
	 MMM Holding (Private) Limited	 Associate	 Investment in associate		   2,414,599,000 	  -   
		  (50% equity held)	 Long term loan		   58,333,332 	  -   
			   Interest receivable on long 			 
			   term loan		   242,874 	  -   
						    
	 Baluchistan Glass Limited 	 Subsidiary of MMM 	 Receivable against sales of 			 
		  Holding (Private) Limited	 stores, spares, raw materials			 
			   and guarantee commission		   670,866,991 	  -   
			   Payable against purchases		   72,478,993 	  -   
						    
	 Mr. Omer Baig	 Managing Director	 Loan from director		   -   	  135,000,000 
		  (25.54% equity held)				  
	
		

46.2	 Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The Company considers all members of 
their management team, including the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Directors 
and Head of Departments to be its key management personnel.
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		  2024	 2023
		  Rupees	 Rupees
				  
47	 Shariah screening disclosures	 		
				  
	 Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode	 26.2	  720,714,022 	  189,624,000 
	 Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances	 14	  74,175,452 	  148,430,302 
	 Profit earned from shariah compliant bank deposits /
	  bank balances	 33	  1,091,794 	  2,073,424 
	 Revenue earned from a shariah compliant
	  business segment	 29	  29,598,543,542 	  28,426,970,766 
	 Gain / loss or dividend earned from shariah
	  compliant investments		   -   	  -   
	 Gain earned from Shariah compliant investments		   -   	  -   
	 Break-up of late payments or liquidated damages		   -   	  -   
	 Exchange gains earned using conventional
	  derivative financial instruments		   -   	  -   
	 Exchange gain / (loss) earned from actual currency		   (9,124,774)	  67,918,177 
	 Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing		   36,072,534 	  37,672,109 
	 Profits earned on any conventional loan or advance	 33	  54,623,759 	  22,996,718 
	 Interest paid on any conventional loan or advance		   447,847,031 	  460,028,251

	 Relationship with shariah compliant banks

	 The Company has relationships with following shariah compliant banks during the year along 
with transactions with them:

	 Bank 	 Nature of transaction	 2024	 2023
			    Rupees 	  Rupees 
				  
	 Bank Islami 
	 Pakistan Limited	 Bank balance - closing	  6,127,737 	  4,417,046 
				  
	 The Bank of Khyber	 Bank balance - closing	  -   	  941,015 
		  Loan obtained - closing balance	  248,380,896 	  -   
		  Profit earned on bank deposits	  1,005,206 	  758,356 
		  Markup paid on islamic mode of financing	  8,216,554 	  24,174,550 
				  
	 Meezan Bank Limited	 Bank Balance - closing	  56,811,124 	  131,543,677 
		  Loan obtained - closing balance	  472,333,126 	  189,624,000 
		  Markup paid on islamic mode of financing	  12,037,521 	  12,234,747 
				  
	 Faysal Bank Limited	 Bank Balance - closing	  9,698,273 	  10,146,231 
		  Markup paid on islamic mode of financing	  5,089 	  1,262,812 
				  
	 MCB Islamic Bank	 Bank Balance - closing	  721 	  721 
				  
	 UBL Ameen	 Bank Balance - closing	  1,537,597 	  1,381,612 
		  Profit earned on bank deposits	  86,588 	  -   
				  
	 Pak Kuwait Takaful 
	 Company 	 Profit earned on bank deposits	  -   	  1,315,068 
	 Limited	 Markup paid on islamic mode of financing	  15,813,370 	  -  		

					   
					   
		

						    



98

		  2024	 2023
		                         No. of employees				  
48	 Number of employees				  
	 Number of employees as at June 30,		  1,034	 1,211
				  
	 Average number of employees during the year		  1,123	 1,231				  

49	 Date of authorization for Issue				  
				  
	 These financial statements were approved and authorized by the Board of Directors of the 

Company for issuance on September 20, 2024.			  				  

50	 General			 
				  
	 Corresponding figures are rearranged / reclassified for better presentation and comparison. 

Following re-arrangements have been made in these financial statements that does not have 
any impact on the statement of financial position and profitability of the Company.

	 Nature	 From 	 To		  2023
					      Rupees 
	 Statement of profit or loss				  
					   
	 Classification of levy	 Taxation	 Levy / final taxation	  	 33,151,317 
		  (Note 36)	 (Face of statement of 
			   profit and loss)	

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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Year 				   2024	 2023	 2022	 2021	 2020	 2019	
							    
Investment Measures							     
							    
Share capital	 Million Rupees	  1,721.67 	  1,721.67 	  1,377.34 	  1,377.34 	  1,101.87 	  734.58 
Shareholders equity	 Million Rupees	  18,623.63 	  15,331.96 	 13,088.30 	 10,600.43 	  6,741.56 	  6,138.80 
Profit before levy and tax	 Million Rupees	  6,788.77 	  4,118.16 	  6,268.09 	  2,958.70 	  1,045.46 	  1,854.64 
Profit after tax	 Million Rupees	  4,374.47 	  2,519.13 	  4,140.67 	  2,109.37 	  761.59 	  1,323.68 
							    
Dividend per share	 Rupees	  -   	  6.00 	  2.00 	  12.00 	  -   	  4.00 
Earning per share - basic	 Rupees	  25.41 	  14.63 	  24.05 	  12.25 	  4.42 	  7.69 
Break up value	 Rupees	  108.17 	  89.05 	  76.02 	  61.57 	  39.16 	  35.66 
Price earning ratio	 Rupees	  4.59 	  4.65 	  4.32 	  8.68 	  14.59 	  9.97 
							    
							    
 Measure of financial status 							     
							    
Current ratio	 Ratio	  1.72 	  1.86 	  1.41 	  1.54 	  1.01 	  1.00 
Number of days stock	 Days	  88 	  71 	  56 	  66 	  87 	  59 
Number of days trade debts	 Days	  33 	  24 	  18 	  28 	  42 	  25 
							    

 Measure of performance 							     
							    
Return on capital employed	 %	 32.52%	 26.62%	 41.67%	 23.88%	 15.76%	 23.66%
Gross profit ratio	 %	 26.44%	 20.17%	 26.34%	 21.54%	 16.19%	 19.59%
Profit before levy and tax to sales ratio	 %	 22.94%	 14.49%	 21.31%	 15.49%	 7.69%	 12.89%
Profit after tax to sales ratio	 %	 14.78%	 8.86%	 14.08%	 11.04%	 5.61%	 9.20%
Long term debt to equity ratio	 %	 6.23%	 12.44%	 21.51%	 34.99%	 54.75%	 28.60%

FINANCIAL STATISTICAL SUMMARY

Lahore	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 WAQAR ULLAH	
September 20, 2024	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER	
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1.1.   Name of the Company:	 Tariq Glass Industries Limited 
2.1.   Pattern of holding of shares held by the shareholders as at:	 June 30, 2024

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
As At June 30, 2024

	 2.2.   Number of  	                                    Share Holding 	                                            Total Shares  	
	  Shareholders 	                   From  	                                  To 	                                          Held	
				  
	  863 	  1 	  100 	  26,890 
	  1,089 	  101 	  500 	  305,823 
	  407 	  501 	  1,000 	  323,503 
	  1,122 	  1,001 	  10,000 	  3,962,704 
	  130 	  10,001 	  20,000 	  1,867,306 
	  77 	  20,001 	  30,000 	  1,900,507 
	  35 	  30,001 	  40,000 	  1,244,997 
	  27 	  40,001 	  50,000 	  1,235,723 
	  15 	  50,001 	  60,000 	  844,071 
	  15 	  60,001 	  70,000 	  975,296 
	  11 	  70,001 	  80,000 	  816,716 
	  9 	  80,001 	  90,000 	  765,264 
	  11 	  90,001 	  100,000 	  1,093,442 
	  1 	  100,001 	  110,000 	  102,616 
	  4 	  110,001 	  120,000 	  466,874 
	  5 	  120,001 	  130,000 	  636,581 
	  6 	  130,001 	  140,000 	  813,178 
	  6 	  140,001 	  150,000 	  884,738 
	  3 	  150,001 	  170,000 	  468,924 
	  3 	  170,001 	  190,000 	  552,991 
	  3 	  190,001 	  200,000 	  600,000 
	  2 	  200,001 	  230,000 	  415,030 
	  10 	  230,001 	  300,000 	  2,587,407 
	  4 	  300,001 	  360,000 	  1,300,506 
	  4 	  360,001 	  420,000 	  1,581,770 
	  1 	  420,001 	  500,000 	  490,500 
	  4 	  500,001 	  600,000 	  2,250,936 
	  4 	  600,001 	  720,000 	  2,634,053 
	  3 	  720,001 	  840,000 	  2,340,443 
	  3 	  840,001 	  1,120,000 	  3,146,875 
	  7 	  1,120,001 	  1,760,000 	  9,559,876 
	  1 	  1,760,001 	  1,960,000 	  1,950,214 
	  4 	  1,960,001 	  3,080,000 	  9,040,320 
	  6 	  3,080,001 	  49,980,000 	  114,981,113 

	  3,895 	 		   172,167,187 
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
As At June 30, 2024

2.3	 Categories of Shareholders			   Shareholding	 Percentage
				    (Number of Shares)		

2.3.1	Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Children			 
	 Managing Director / CEO			 
	    - Mr. Omer Baig		   43,971,870 	 25.54%
	 Directors			 
	    - Mr. Mohammad Baig		   19,782,010 	 11.49%
	    - Mr. Mansoor Irfani		   8,113 	 0.0047%
	    - Mr. Faiz Muhammad		   1,171 	 0.0007%
	    - Mr. Saad Iqbal		   1,121,445 	 0.65%
	    - Mr. Adnan Aftab		   500 	 0.0003%
	    - Ms. Rubina Nayyar		   1,351 	 0.0008%
	 Directors’ Spouse and their Children		   -   	  -   
			    64,886,460 	 37.69%
2.3.2	 Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties		
	   - M/s Omer Glass Industries Limited		   18,126,000 	 10.53%
	   - M/s M & M Glass ( Private) Limited		   2,176,977 	 1.26%
	 Executives			 
	   - Mr. Mustafa Baig		   19,868,093 	 11.54%

	  		  40,171,070 	 23.33%
2.3.3	NIT and ICP			 
	   - M/s IDBL (ICP Unit)		   43,358 	 0.03%

2.3.4 	Banks, Development Financial Institutions & Non-Banking 
	 Financial Institutions	 	  4,901,456 	 2.85%

2.3.5 	Insurance Companies		     738,096 	 0.43%
2.3.6 	Modarbas and Mutual Funds		    14,996,257 	 8.71%
2.3.7	Shareholders holding 10% or more shares			 
 	   - Mr. Omer Baig		   43,971,870 	 25.54%
  	   - Mr. Mohammad Baig		   19,782,010 	 11.49%
   	   - Mr. Mustafa Baig		   19,868,093 	 11.54%
   	   - M/s Omer Glass Industries Limited		   18,126,000 	 10.53%
			    101,747,973 	 59.10%
2.3.8	General Public			 
	    - a.  Local		   35,159,555 	 20.42%
  	    - b.  Foreign		   172,945 	 0.10%
			    35,332,500 	 20.52%
2.3.9	Others			 
	 - Joint Stock Companies		   7,672,697 	 4.46%
	  - Investment Companies 		   983,661 	 0.57%
	  - Pension Funds, Provident Funds, Cooperative Societies etc.	  2,441,632 	 1.42%
	  		  11,097,990 	 6.45%

Lahore, September 20, 2024	

List of Shareholders holding 5% or more shares		
   	 - Mr. Omer Baig	  43,971,870 	 25.54%
   	 - Mr. Mohammad Baig	  19,782,010 	 11.49%
  	  - Mr. Mustafa Baig	  19,868,093 	 11.54%
  	  - M/s Omer Glass Industries Limited	  18,126,000 	 10.53%
  	  - Mr. Shahbaz Yasin Malik 	  10,187,875 	 5.92%

	 MANSOOR IRFANI	 OMER BAIG	 	
	 CHAIRMAN 	 MANAGING DIRECTOR / CEO	 	
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IMPORTANT NOTES FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholder(s)

Please go through the following notes. It will be appreciated if you please respond to your relevant 
portion at the earliest:

Dividend Mandate:

In terms of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and SECP’s Circular No. 18 dated August 1, 2017, 
the listed companies are required to pay cash dividend electronically directly into the designated 
bank account of a shareholder instead of paying the dividend through dividend warrants. Therefore, 
it has become mandatory for all of our valued shareholders to provide the International Bank Account 
Numbers (“IBAN”s) and other details of their designated Bank Account. In this regard, please send the 
complete details as per below format duly signed along with valid copy of your CNIC at the address 
of the Share Registrar of the Company (M/s Shemas International (Private) Limited, 533 - Main 
Boulevard, Imperial Garden Block, Paragon City, Barki Road, Lahore. Phone No.: 0092-42-37191262; 
Email: info@shemasinternational.com). In case shares of the members are held in CDC account then 
“Electronic Dividend Mandate Form” should be sent directly to the relevant broker / CDC Investor 
Account Services where Member’s CDC account is being dealt.

Folio No. / CDC Account No.:
Name of Shareholder:
CNIC Number of the Shareholder:
Title of Bank Account:
Bank Account Number:
IBAN Number:
Bank’s Name:
Branch Code:
Branch Name & Address
Mobile Number:
Land Line Number:
Email Address:

Date:______________
				     Signature of the Shareholder  	         CNIC (Copy Attached)

The above said form is available on website of the Company.
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CNIC No.:
Pursuant to the directives of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) inter alia vide 
SRO 779 (1) 2011 dated August 18, 2011, SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012, and SRO 19(1) 2014 
dated January 10, 2014, it is necessary to mention the Member’s computerized national identity card 
(CNIC) number for the payment of dividend, members register and other statutory returns. Members 
are therefore requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC (if not already provided) by mentioning 
their folio numbers to the Share Registrar of the Company failing which result in withholding of 
dividend payments to such members.

Deduction of Income Tax from Dividend under Section 150:
The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2024 has not made any certain amendments in 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 pertaining to withholding of tax on dividend whereby different rates are 
prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies. These 
tax rates are as under: 

Category Rate of Tax Deduction
Filers of Income Tax Returns 15%
Non-Filers of Income Tax Returns 30%

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend at normal rate i.e. 15% 
for filers of income tax return instead of higher rate i.e. 30% for non-filers of income tax return, all the 
shareholders who are the filers of income tax return and their names are not entered into the Active 
Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR are advised to make sure that their names are 
entered into ATL before the first day of book closure defined for the determination of entitlement of the 
proposed dividend.
Moreover, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will 
be determined separately on ‘Filer / Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder (s) 
based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.
In this regard all shareholders who hold shares Jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions 
of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to the Share Registrar, in 
writing as follows, at the earliest, otherwise it will be assumed that shares are equally held: 

 Sr.	 Folio/ CD 	 Total	 Principal		  Joint Shareholder	 Signature of	
	 A/C #	 Shares	 Shareholder			   Shareholder

			   Name &	 Shareholding	 Name &	  Shareholding	 (As per CNIC for CDC 
			   CNIC #	 Proportion	 CNIC #	 Proportion	 shareholder and as per
				    (No. of		  (No. of Shares)	 Company Record for
				    Shares)			   Physical shareholder)

  1.

  2.

  3.

  4.

  5.

Date:______________
				     Signature of the Shareholder  	         CNIC (Copy Attached)

The above said form is available on website of the Company.
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Annual Accounts:

In accordance with Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 
dated March 21, 2023, the annual report including the financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended June 30, 2024 can be viewed using the following link and QR enabled code:
Weblink: https://www.tariqglass.com/uploads/financials/Annual_Report_2024.pdf
QR Enabled Code:

The annual report for the year ended June 30, 2024 is also available on website of the Company i.e., 
www.tariqglass.com.

In compliance with section 223(6) of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to the S.R.O. 389(I)/2023 
dated March 21, 2023, the Company has electronically transmitted the Annual Report 2024 (including 
the financial statements) containing the weblink and QR enabled code through email to the Members 
whose email addresses are available with the Company’s Share Registrar. However, in cases, where 
email addresses are not available, the printed copies of the notice of AGM along-with the QR enabled 
code / weblink to download the Annual Report 2024 (containing the financial statements) have been 
dispatched. Notwithstanding the above, the Company will provide hard copies of the Annual Report 
2024, to any Member on their request, at their registered address, free of cost, within one (1) week of 
receiving such request. Further, Members are requested to kindly provide their valid email address 
(along with a copy of valid CNIC) to the Company’s Share Registrar if the Member holds shares in 
physical form or to the Member’s respective Participant / Investor Account Services, if shares are 
held in book entry form.

Zakat Declaration:

Please note that Zakat will be deducted from dividends at source in accordance with Zakat and Ushr 
laws and will be deposited within the prescribed period with the relevant authority. In the event that 
you would like to claim an exemption, please submit your Zakat Declaration Form CZ -50 under the 
Zakat and Ushr laws and rules, with your Broker / CDC / Company’s Share Registrar (M/s Shemas 
International Pvt. Ltd, 533 - Main Boulevard, Imperial Garden Block, Paragon City, Barki Road, Lahore. 
Phone No.: 0092-42-37191262; Email: info@shemasinternational.com).

The shareholders who already have submitted their Zakat Declarations on the format other than the 
Zakat Declaration Form (CZ 50) are advised to reinforce their Zakat declarations by resubmitting Zakat 
Declaration Form (CZ 50) to the Share Registrar of the Company. The Zakat Declaration Form (CZ 50) 
is available on website of the Company.

For any query / problem / information, the members may contact the company and / or the Share 
Registrar at the following phone numbers, email addresses - 

Company Contact:

Mohsin Ali 
Company Secretary 
Tariq Glass Industries Limited.
128-J, Model Town Lahore.
Phone No.: +92-42-111343434 
Fax :+92-42-35857692-93
Website: www.tariqglass.com

Share Registrar:

Mr. Imran Saeed
Chief Executive Officer
M/s Shemas International Pvt. Ltd.
533 - Main Boulevard, Imperial Garden Block, 
Paragon City, Barki Road, Lahore. 
Phone No.: +92-42-37191262
Email Address: info@shemasinternational.com

   	 Yours sincerely,

	 (Mohsin Ali)
	 Company Secretary
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Ballot paper for voting through post for poll to be held at the Annual General Meeting of Tariq Glass Industries Limited 
scheduled on Monday, the Otober 28, 2024 at 11:00 AM at the registered office of the Company situated at 128-J, Model 
Town, Lahore and through video conferencing.

Contact Details of the Chairman at which the duly filled in ballot paper may be sent: 
Address: The Chairman, Tariq Glass Industries Limited, 128-J, Model Town, Lahore, Email Address: corporateaction@tariqglass.com. 

Name of shareholder / joint shareholders 

Registered Address 

Number of shares held and folio number / CDC Account No. 

CNIC Number (copy to be attached) 

Additional Information and enclosures (In case of representative 
of body corporate, corporation and Federal Government.) 

The draft of resolution in respect of the Special Business to be conducted during the general meeting is as under:

DRAFT OF RESOLUTION

AGENDA No. 4: To renewal / extension short-term loan / running finance / short term advance of upto PKR 1,000,000,000 
to M/s Baluchistan Glass Limited, an associated company for a period of one (1) year:

To pass the following special resolution with or without modification, addition(s) or deletion(s):

“Resolved that approval of the members of Tariq Glass Industries Limited (the “Company”) be and is hereby accorded in terms 
of Section 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 read with the Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated 
Undertakings) Regulations, 2017, and the Company be and is hereby authorized to renew the investment of up to PKR 
1,000,000,000 (Rupees One Billion Only) in Baluchistan Glass Limited, an associated company, in the form of Short-Term Loan / 
Advance / Running Finance as and when needed by Baluchistan Glass Limited for a further period of one (1) year from the date 
of approval on rollover / renewable basis, provided that the return on any outstanding amount of loan shall be Average Borrowing 
Cost of TGL + 1% OR 3MK + 1.50%, whichever is higher and as per other terms and conditions disclosed to the members.

Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company be and are hereby singly empowered 
and authorized to undertake the decision of said investment. 

Further Resolved that the Managing Director / CEO and / or any Director of the Company and / or Company Secretary be and 
are hereby singly empowered and authorized to do all acts, matters, deeds and things, take any or all necessary actions and to 
complete all legal formalities including execution of all documents and agreements as may be necessary or incidental expedient 
for the purpose of implementing the aforesaid resolutions.”

I / we hereby exercise my / our vote in respect of the above-mentioned Special Business through postal ballot by conveying my 
/ our assent or dissent to the said resolution by placing tick (√) mark in the appropriate box below:

Sr. Nature and description of resolution No. of ordinary 
shares for which 

votes to be casted

I / We assent to 
the resolution

(FOR)

I / We dissent to 
the resolution

(AGAINST)

1. Special Resolution as per Agenda No. 4 (as given 
above)

Signature of shareholder(s): __________________________________________

Place: _____________________________  Date: _________________________

NOTES: 

1.	 Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to The Chairman, Tariq Glass Industries Limited, 128-J, Model Town, Lahore or 
through email at: corporateaction@tariqglass.com. 

2.	 Copy of CNIC should be enclosed with the postal ballot form.
3.	 Postal ballot forms should reach Chairman of the meeting on or before October 27, 2024 up till 05:00 PM. Any postal ballot 

received after this date / time, will not be considered for voting.
4.	 Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC / Company record.
5.	 Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot paper will be rejected.
6.	 The ballot paper has also been placed on website of the Company (i.e., www.tariqglass.com).
7.	 Alternatively, the details of E-Voting facility will be communicated via e-mail to the email addresses available in the Register of 

Members of the Company by the Company appointed E-Voting Service Provider namely M/s CDC Share Registrar Services 
Limited.

8.	 Members may cast E-Vote online from October 25, 2024 at 09:00 AM till October 27, 2024 at 5:00 PM.
9.	 The Board of Directors of the Company has designated M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants, as 

the Scrutinizer for the purpose of voting, bringing with them the relevant experience, in accordance with Regulation 11 of 
the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.

TARIQ GLASS INDUSTRIES LIMITED
PH: 042-111-343-434; FAX: 042-35857692-93 

Email Address: info@tariqglass.com;  Website: www.tariqglass.com

BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST
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Folio Number / CDC Account Number: ____________________________________________      Number of Shares: ________________________

I / We __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________  

of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

being a member of M/s Tariq Glass Industries Limited  hereby appoint

Mr. / Ms. _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

of _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

(the Folio / CDC Account Number of the person appointed as proxy is: _______________________) as my / our proxy to attend, 
speak and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the members of the Company to 
be held at 11:00 AM on Monday the October 28, 2024 at the Company’s Registered Office, 128-J, Model Town, Lahore 
and through video link and at any adjournment thereof.

Member’s Signature:

Signature:______________________________________

Name:__________________________________________

Address:________________________________________

CNIC No.:______________________________________	

Witness – 1	 Witness – 2

Signature:_____________________________________________	 Signature:_____________________________________________

Name:_________________________________________________	 Name:_________________________________________________

Address:______________________________________________	 Address:______________________________________________

CNIC No.:_____________________________________________	 CNIC No.:_____________________________________________

Notes:

1.	 Members are requested to strictly follow the guidelines mentioned in the Notice of annual general 

meeting.

2.	 A Member entitled to attend an annual general meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and 

vote instead of him / her. A proxy must be a member / shareholder of the Company. A member 

shall not be entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend any one meeting.

3.	 Members are requested:

	 a)	 To affix Revenue Stamp of PKR 50 at the place indicated above.

	 b)	 To sign across the Revenue Stamp in the same style of signature as is registered with the 

		  Company.

	 c)	 To write down their Folio Numbers / CDC Account Numbers.

	 d)	 To attach the copy of CNIC.

4.	 This form of proxy, duly completed and signed across a PKR 50 Revenue Stamp, must be deposited 

at the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the annual 

general meeting.

Please affix 
Revenue Stamp 
of PKR 50 and 
deface it with 

your signature.

FORM OF PROXY 
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